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Chairman’s Statement

FRHE

To our Shareholders

Despite a difficult first quarter of 2009, central
banks and governments managed to avoid a
collapse in the financial system with massive
stimulus packages across the board. 2009 ended
with the theme of gradual recovery. Followed by
heavy government stimulus packages, the Group’s
operating environments have improved in the second
half of 2009. Gross profit from continuing operations
increased by 65% from HK$27.70 million in the first
half of 2009 to HK$45.65 million in the second half.

As there is a continued doubt about how long
governments could afford to maintain the stimulus
which was the primary driver of the gradual recovery,
we continue to adopt a prudent and cautious
approach to the Group’s operations. Given the Group
is not able to secure a sufficient quantity of films
at reasonable prices for distribution and the cost of
maintaining a film distribution network is high, the
Group has further scaled down its film distribution
operations in the second half of 2009 in order to
improve the Group’s cost structure and position it to
better compete for success in the year to come.

Despite heavy government stimulus packages,
employment and personal income remain weak.
We believe that 2010 remains challenging. We also
believe that such kind of economic environment
provides opportunities to the Group to invest with
reasonable prices. We will continue to explore new
business developments to diversify the Group’s
businesses and broaden its revenue base.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to
extend our appreciation to all fellow directors and
employees for their invaluable efforts, dedication
and commitment to the Group and to thank all
shareholders and business associates for their
continuous support.

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 April 2010
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THEFWRE S

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Review

During the year, the Group disposed of its entire
interest in the issued share capital of Shinhan-Golden
Faith International Development Limited (“Shinhan-
Golden”) and World East Investments Limited (“World
East”) together with the loans due by each of them to
the Group. The major assets of Shinhan-Golden and
World East are their interests in the registered capital
of EFRDBEEHEMBABMRAT (“Beijing Suoma”).
The principal activity of Beijing Suoma is property
investment. Accordingly, the results of Shinhan-
Golden and World East and their subsidiaries, namely
Beijing Suoma, LEFFILEREMRAT (“Shanghai
Shengping”) and Beijing Jianguo Real Estate
Development Co., Limited (collectively the “Disposal
Group”) are presented separately as discontinued
operations.

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2009 from
continuing and discontinued operations was
HK$416,562,000, whereas the Group recorded a loss
of HK$224,508,000 for the previous year.

Results of continuing operations

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group
recorded a revenue of HK$74,711,000, a 288%
increase from HK$19,253,000 for the previous year.
The significant increase in revenue was attributable
to the full year effect of the Group’s expansion into
provision of management services business in August
2008 and the turnaround in the performance of sales
of financial assets. Of the total turnover amount,
HK$60,491,000 or 81% was generated from provision
of management services and HK$14,220,000 or
19% was generated from sales of financial assets.
Profit for the year ended 31 December 2009 from
continuing operations was HK$422,138,000, whereas
the Group recorded a loss of HK$96,736,000 for the

EEENRE DM
817 B B8

F AR K&K BEEE H R Shinhan-Golden
Faith International Development Limited
(I'Shinhan-Golden]) & World East
Investments Limited ([ World Eastl) 21T
RAEZ2HEREFRERBEREAEEZE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THERWE S

previous year. The turnaround was mainly attributed
to a gain on excess of acquirer’s interest in fair
value of associates’ identifiable net assets over cost
of acquisition of HK$702,500,000 and a gain on
adjustment to cost of combination in respect of an
acquisition in prior year of HK$103,434,000, which
were partly offset by impairment loss on intangible
assets of HK$117,320,000 and losses on disposal of
subsidiaries and associates of HK$328,888,000.

Cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2009
amounted to HK$1,362,000, which was wholly related
to provision of management services. Based on the
turnover of HK$60,491,000, the gross profit margin
for provision of management services was 97.75%.

As there was a V-shaped recovery in Hong Kong
equity market in 2009, the Group increased its sales
of financial assets activities and posted a gain on
sales of financial assets of HK$14,220,000 during the
year.

Other revenue and other income increased by 391%
from HK$2,427,000 in the year ended 31 December
2008 to HK$11,905,000 in the year ended 31
December 2009. The significant increase was due
to interest income of HK$5,102,000 arising from
loan advanced to and convertible note receivable
from China Star Entertainment Limited (“CSEL”)
(stock code: 326) and imputed interest income
of HK$5,901,000 arising from promissory note
receivable.

Administrative expenses (before depreciation,
impairment loss recognised in respect of trade
receivables and loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment) amounted to HK$16,634,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2009, a 35% decrease
from HK$25,768,000 for the previous year. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the payment of
consultancy fee of HK$1,650,000 and tax surcharge
of HK$3,637,000 in the year ended 31 December
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THEFWRE S

2008, whereas no such expenses in the year
ended 31 December 2009. In addition, the Group
recorded a decrease in legal and professional fees
of HK$3,150,000 in the year ended 31 December
2009 due to the increased corporate activities in the
previous year.

During the year, the directors reassessed the
recoverable amounts of management services
agreements held by Rich Daily Group Limited (“Rich
Daily”) with reference to the valuations performed
by an independent firm of professional valuers.
In light of the non-achievement of the service fee
income guarantee for the 12-month ended 30 June
2009, an impairment loss on intangible assets of
HK$117,320,000 was recognised.

As the closing price per share in China Star Film
Group Limited (formerly known as Golife Concepts
Holdings Limited (“CSFGL”)) (stock code: 8172)
dropped to HK$0.315 on 31 December 2009, the
Group recognised a loss on fair value change in
conversion options embedded in convertible note
receivable from CSFGL of HK$64,542,000.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement
dated 28 February 2008 relating to the acquisition
of Rich Daily, Mr. Ng Cheuk Fai has irrevocably
and unconditionally guaranteed to the Group
that the service fee income of Rich Daily for the
12-month ended 30 June 2009 shall not be less
than HK$72,000,000. However, the actual service
fee income of Rich Daily for the 12-month ended 30
June 2009 was HK$57,224,000. According to the
sale and purchase agreement, the consideration
for acquiring Rich Daily has to be adjusted from
HK$504,000,000 to HK$400,566,000. The adjustment
to the consideration of HK$103,434,000 was settled
by deducting HK$72,000,000 from a convertible
note payable to Well Will Investment Limited on
a dollar for dollar basis and cash payment of
HK$31,434,000 from Mr. Ng Cheuk Fai. As a result,
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THERWE S

the Group recorded a gain on adjustment to cost of
combination in respect of an acquisition in prior year
of HK$103,434,000 and a loss on cancellation of
convertible note payable of HK$18,247,000.

Finance costs increased by 141% from HK$3,350,000
in the year ended 31 December 2008 to
HK$8,086,000 in the year ended 31 December 2009.
The increase was mainly due to the full year effect
of the imputed interest expense on convertible
notes payable to Well Will Investment Limited as the
convertible notes were issued in August 2008.

The Group recorded a tax credit of HK$14,493,000
which represented deferred tax credits of
HK$14,078,000 on release of impairment loss on
intangible assets and HK$415,000 on imputed interest
expense on convertible notes payable.

Results of discontinued operations

Loss from property investment improved by 96% from
HK$127,772,000 in the year ended 31 December 2008
to HK$5,576,000 in the year ended 31 December
2009. This improvement was mainly attributable
to the recognition of a loss on fair value change
in investment properties of HK$74,045,000 and an
impairment loss on goodwill of HK$40,382,000 in the
year ended 31 December 2008, whereas the Group
recorded a gain on fair value change in investment
properties of HK$2,002,000 and no impairment loss
on goodwill in the year ended 31 December 2009.

Liquidity and financial resources

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group
mainly funded its operations through a combination
of cash generated from operations, equity attributable
to the Company’s owners, bank borrowings,
convertible notes payable and issuance of new
shares. Equity attributable to the Company’s owners
at 31 December 2009 amounted to HK$1,371,044,000
(2008: HK$894,423,000).
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At 31 December 2009, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to HK$275,802,000 (2008:
HK$7,218,000). The significant increase in cash
and cash equivalents was mainly attributable to
the repayment of HK$220,000,000 to the Group
by Shanghai Shengping and the funds raised from
issuance of new shares.

At 31 December 2009, the total borrowings of
the Group amounted to HK$54,563,000 (2008:
HK$106,403,000), representing the liability
component of the convertible note of HK$72,000,000
which is unsecured, interest bearing at 5% per annum
and maturing on 28 August 2018. The decrease
in total borrowings was mainly attributable to the
cancellation of a convertible note of HK$72,000,000
in settling the adjustment to the consideration for
acquiring Rich Daily. The gearing ratio calculated
as a percentage of total borrowings over equity
attributable to the Company’s owners was 4% (2008:
12%).

Net current assets and current ratio

At 31 December 2009, the Group’s net current assets
and current ratio were HK$450,386,000 (2008:
HK$602,720,000) and 40.5 (2008: 2.3), respectively.

Capital structure

On 9 January 2009, 39,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued at a price of HK$0.102 per
share by way of top-up subscription of new shares
under general mandate raising HK$3,820,000 (net of
expenses) for reducing the Group’s bank borrowings.

On 11 February 2009, 200,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued at a price of HK$0.102 per
share by way of placing of new shares under specific
mandate raising HK$19,870,000 (net of expenses) for
reducing the Group’s bank borrowings.
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On 20 February 2009, the directors proposed the
following changes to the capital of the Company in
order to reduce the overall transaction and handling
costs for dealing in the Company’s shares:

(@) share consolidation — that every ten
issued existing shares of HK$0.01 each be
consolidated into one issued consolidated
share of HK$0.10; and

(b) capital reduction — that (i) the total number
of consolidated shares of HK$0.10 each in the
issued share capital of the Company following
the share consolidation be rounded down to
a whole number by cancelling the fractional
share arising from the share consolidation;
(i) the nominal value of each of the issued
consolidated shares of HK$0.10 be reduced
to HK$0.01 by cancelling the paid-up capital
to the extent of HK$0.09 on each issued
consolidated share; and (iii) the amount of
credit arising from capital reduction be credited
to the contributed surplus account of the
Company.

The capital reorganisation was approved by the
shareholders on 22 April 2009 and became effective
on 23 April 2009.

On 2 March 2009, 300,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued at a price of HK$0.091 per
share by way of placing of new shares under specific
mandate raising HK$26,850,000 (net of expenses) for
reducing the Group’s bank borrowings.
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On 30 March 2009, 367,093,498 new shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued at a subscription price
of HK$0.10 per share by way of open offer to the
qualifying shareholders of the Company on the
basis of one new share for every two existing shares
held on 6 March 2009 raising HK$34,339,000 (net
of expenses) for financing possible diversified
investments and general working capital of the
Group.

On 10 September 2009, 22,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued at a price of HK$0.42 per
share by way of top-up subscription of new shares
under general mandate raising HK$9,030,000 (net of
expenses) for general working capital of the Group.

On 29 December 2009, 56,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued to Thought Diamond
International Limited at a price of HK$0.50 per share
raising HK$27,700,000 (net of expenses) for possible
diversified investments of the Group.

Disposal of subsidiaries and acquisition of
associated companies

On 8 April 2009, the Group sold its interests in the
entire issued share capital of Shinhan-Golden and
World East together with the loans due by each of
them to the Group to Mega Shell Services Limited
(“Mega Shell”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CSFGL, at a consideration of HK$212,732,000. The
consideration was settled in the following manner
(a) the cash payment of HK$6,847,000, (b) the issue
of 11,769,194 new shares in CSFGL credited as fully
paid at an issue price of HK$0.50 per share, (c) the
issue of a promissory note of HK$100,000,000 by
CSFGL and (d) the issue of a convertible note of
HK$100,000,000 by CSFGL with an initial conversion
price of HK$0.50 per conversion share (subject to
adjustment). A loss on disposal of subsidiaries of
HK$48,868,000 and a gain on excess of acquirer’s
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interest in fair value of associates’ identifiable net
assets over cost of investment of HK$16,286,000
were recognised. The disposal together with
the related transactions were approved by the
shareholders on 12 February 2009.

On completion of the disposal of Shinhan-Golden and
World East, the Group was interested in 20.36% of
the issued share capital of CSFGL.

On 23 April 2009, the Group signed an undertaking
to subscribe for 94,153,552 new shares in CSFGL at
a subscription price of HK$0.10 per share to which
the Group was entitled to under the open offer to
the qualifying shareholders of CSFGL on the basis
of eight new shares for every one existing share
as announced by CSFGL on the same date. The
subscription price for the new shares in CSFGL
amounted to HK$9,415,000. The reasons for the
Group for entering into the undertaking are to
maintain its substantial level of shareholding interest
in CSFGL and to facilitate the open offer for raising
additional capital to strengthen CSFGL's capital base.
The open offer was completed on 2 July 2009.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, CSFGL
issued new shares pursuant to a private placement
and upon exercise of share options causing a dilution
on the Group’s interest in CSFGL to 15.66% at the
year end. Accordingly, the Group recognised a loss
on deemed disposal of an associate of HK$6,629,000.
Despite the Group’s interest in CSFGL stood at
15.66%, it was accounted for investment in associate
as the Group has retained its significant influence
over CSFGL by having a representation on the board
of directors of CSFGL.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, CSFGL
recorded a profit attributable to its owners
of HK$26,099,000 and contributed a profit of
HK$6,372,000 to the Group.
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On 29 April 2009, the Company made a loan of
HK$200,000,000 to CSEL pursuant to the conditional
loan agreement dated 11 March 2009. The loan
was unsecured, interest bearing at prime rate as
quoted by The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited per annum and maturing on 28
April 2012. The loan made to CSEL was approved by
the shareholders, other than Mr. Heung Wah Keung,
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany and their associates, on
22 April 2009.

On 21 September 2009, the Group subscribed the
convertible note of HK$200,000,000 from CSEL
pursuant to the conditional subscription agreement
dated 23 July 2009. The subscription price of the
convertible note was satisfied by setting off the
loan of HK$200,000,000 made by the Company to
CSEL on 29 April 2009. The convertible note was
unsecured, interest bearing at prime rate as quoted
by The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited per annum and maturing on 20 September
2012. The convertible note entitled the Group to
convert the outstanding principal amount into shares
in CSEL at an initial conversion price of HK$0.20 per
share (subject to adjustment). The subscription of the
convertible note was approved by the shareholders,
other than Mr. Heung Wah Keung, Ms. Chen Ming
Yin, Tiffany and their associates, on 14 September
20009.

During the second half of 2009, the Group converted
the convertible note of HK$200,000,000 entirely
into 1,000,000,000 shares in CSEL at a conversion
price of HK$0.20 per share. As a result, the Group
recorded a gain on fair value change in convertible
note of HK$55,244,000, which represented the
difference between the fair value of the convertible
note of HK$255,244,000 and their carrying amount of
HK$200,000,000 and a gain on excess of acquirer’s
interest in fair value of associates’ identifiable net
assets over cost of investment of HK$686,214,000.
On 10 December 2009, the Group disposed of
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ZEENE=ZRA+ BT L Z2EREERBGED
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—EZAF LA+ =ZATIZERSRE
1% 3% [ CSEL 5288 200,000,000 78 7T 2 A/ 2 IR
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R-ZEZAFNA-+HhBECSELELEZE
200,000,000 T 11 - AJ2IRZE B EK
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HomBREEETFAEEES  TRYSE
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320,000,000 shares in CSEL to independent
third parties at a price of HK$0.20 per share and
recorded a loss on partial disposal of an associate of
HK$280,020,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2009,
CSEL made a profit attributable to its owners
of HK$204,388,000 and contributed a profit of
HK$16,116,000 to the Group.

Loan to Shanghai Shengping

As at the date of completion of the disposal of
Shinhan-Golden and World East, Shanghai Shengping
(a subsidiary of World East) was indebted to the
Group in the sum of HK$375,536,000. Pursuant to
the sale and purchase agreement, the loan made
to Shanghai Shengping by the Group was not
settled immediately upon completion and CSFGL
has provided a guarantee to the Group for a term
of maximum of three financial years ending 31
December 2011 to secure the repayment. If any part
of the loan has not been settled on the day falling on
the fifth anniversary of the date of completion, CSFGL
will issue a convertible note to settle the outstanding
balance of the loan.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, Shanghai
Shengping repaid HK$220,000,000 to the Group. At
31 December 2009, the outstanding balance of the
loan was HK$155,536,000.

The loan is secured by a corporate guarantee given
by CSFGL, interest-free and has no fixed terms of
repayment.

Pledge of assets

At 31 December 2009, no assets of the Group were
pledged.

14 | China Star Investment Holdings Limited FEIZREHR AT

H AEERSR020BTZ2EBRABILSE
=75 1€ 320,000,000 )R CSEL Bz {5 » 415
B9 HER & N 5] 2 B8 280,020,000 8 JT ©

REZ-ZEZNE+_A=+—HILEE"
CSEL$: 5 H#EH AFE{LE R 204,388,000 78
gt WAREBEREH 16,116,000 8 JTiEA] o

[ E&7FEF

A H £ Shinhan-Golden & World East 5 i
BE > EBFF(World EastzMB A E]) &
RAREE B H375,536,000/8 T RIBEEE
& AEBEOLSRFFEE2ERALERT
REENEE®E - MCSFGLE MAEBIRMEE
R FHEZARBE_ZT——F+=-A=+—
HIE=EMBFE  EBRBERER - HEAME
REBHRUENTERX AR RTEAFEREE
BICSFGLH##TAIERENE > WEEEEHEE

=)
o

RBE-ZEEANF+-_A=+—HLFER
EBEFEAREEEE220,000,00087T ° B
“ETAF+TZA=+—H BRZAKREELE
£ 4 155,536,000 8 T ©

BEHENRUCSFGLEEH 2 A A ERFEA -

DR EREBERERY -

BERHA

REZZBZEAF+ZA=Z+—B » AEELEEK
HEE -



Management Discussion and Analysis

THEFWRE S

Commitments

At 31 December 2009, the Group had no material
commitments.

Exchange risk and hedging

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the
majority of the Group’s transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. Accordingly, no financial instruments for
hedging purposes have been used by the Group.

Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2009, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Employees and remuneration policy

At 31 December 2009, headcount of the Group
was 21 (2008: 22 for continuing operations; 96 for
discontinued operations). Staff costs (including
directors’ remuneration) for continuing operations and
discontinued operations amounted to HK$8,903,000
(2008: HK$9,574,000) and HK$942,000 (2008:
HK$4,615,000) in the year ended 31 December 2009,
respectively. In addition to basic salaries, provident
fund and discretionary bonus, staff benefits include
medical scheme and share options.

RIE
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TR ©
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Operations Review

Continuing operations

During the year ended 31 December 2009, no revenue
was generated from the Group’s film distribution
business as the Group was not able to secure a
sufficient quantity of films at reasonable prices for
distribution. As the cost of maintaining a distribution
network is high, the Group has further scaled down
its film distribution operations in the second half of
2009 in order to improve its cost structure.

Following a range of quantitative easing measures
carried out by central banks, the market sentiment
improved and global equities rallied. During the year
ended 31 December 2009, the Group reactivated its
sale of financial assets business. As Hong Kong stock
market rallied shapely in the third quarter of 2009,
the Group took profit on its Hong Kong equities by
selling all of them in September 2009 and recorded a
gain on sales of financial assets of HK$14,220,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, Rich
Daily generated services fee income amounted
to HK$60,491,000. Rich Daily is a management
services provider to the concierge departments of
gaming promoters. The monthly service fee earned
by Rich Daily is calculated at 0.03% of the monthly
rolling turnover generated by the gaming promoters.
Following the outbreak of global financial crisis, Rich
Daily recorded a drop in its services fee income from
September 2008 to February 2009. With Beijing’s
efforts to reflate the Chinese economy, the Group has
seen a gradual improvement on the monthly service
fee income since March 2009. The directors believe
that Rich Daily strengthens the Group’s profitability
and cash inflow.

16 | China Star Investment Holdings Limited FEIZ&EHR AT

£ e
FEREER

RBE-ZTNF+-A=1t—-HLFE A
RASEEEASEERNESEANHES H &
T BAEECELRTEBLBEELEWS -
HREFBITRBZEASS  AKEER
“ETNFTHFE-—SHBREELRTER
2R DI EE AR -

PRIBITEHEN—EFSCEREBRE > TER
SEFRE 2RI FREH  REBEE-Z
ZAF+A=+—HILEE  AEEWREH
HETREEXER BAR-ZEZNFE=FE
BRTEERE  HEAEER-_ZFZENAFNA
HEHS2NFERELEF  WHRESHESTHE
E 2 Wi 14,220,000 8 7T °

RBE-ZZEAF+-ZA=+—-BLFE"
Rich DailyZE 4% AR #% & W& A 60,491,000%
JC ° Rich Daily BBEHRINAZEBEN2E
BRI R o Rich Daily RNz & A R
BREEPNAEEZSARTHEEEZ
0.03%TE - BRHE2HES BB HE - Rich
DailyR=—ZEZENFNAZ=_ZZENF A
BRBEBRATK - HARIERH DS HELE
BREBEBR  SAKEUTRESAREBERA
BZZZAF=AURELHRE - ESHEE
Rich DailymiEr B 2B FEHIRRER
A °



Management Discussion and Analysis

THEFWRE S

Best Season Holdings Corp. (“Best Season”), a
75% owned subsidiary of the Company, has been
established to invest in, manage and conduct
branding for real estate and/or related properties
in Macau. Due to the downturn in Macau’s
property market in the second half of 2008 and the
concentration on the Group’s resources on newly
expanded business, the business development of
Best Season has temporarily been suspended. As a
result, no contribution was made from Best Season
for the year ended 31 December 2009.

Discontinued operations

During the period from 1 January 2009 to 8 April
2009, the Disposal Group generated an average
monthly rental income of HK$1,045,000 and achieved
an average monthly occupancy of 18%. The
unsatisfactory occupancy was a direct result of weak
leasing demand in the first half of 2009. The weaken
demand for serviced apartments in Beijing primarily
resulted from the negative impact of the global
financial crisis which caused a cut in the number of
expatriates staff stationed in Beijing by multinational
companies.

Future Prospects

Given the Hong Kong stock market performed so well
in 2009, there may be a consolidation in the second
and third quarters of 2010. The directors believe that
any consolidation in Hong Kong equities presents
an opportunity to the Group for building a stocks
portfolio for sustainable growth. The Group will
continue to adopt a prudence approach in investing
Hong Kong equities to enhance the returns to its
shareholders.
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With Macau’s gaming revenue surged to its highest-
ever quarterly figure in the fourth quarter of 2009, the
directors believe that the provision of management
services business will continue to contribute
positively to the Group in coming years.

Although the global economy shown a sign of
improvement in 2009, the directors believe that 2010
remains challenging. However, the directors consider
that such kind of economics climate provides
opportunities to the Group to invest with reasonable
prices. The Group will actively seek investment
opportunities to diversify its businesses and broaden
its revenue base.

Events After the Reporting Period

Subsequent to 31 December 2009, Riche (BVI)
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement with Mr. Man Kong Yui, an independent
third party, relating to the acquisition of a 4.5%
interest in the issued share capital of Hantec
Holdings Investment Limited, at a consideration of
HK$18,000,000. The consideration was satisfied by
Riche (BVI) Limited procuring the Company to allot
and issue 26,420,000 new shares credited as fully
paid to Mr. Man upon completion. Please refer to the
Company’s announcements dated 31 March and 9
April 2010 for details.

The conditional sale and purchase agreement was
completed on 16 April 2010.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance, in line with the principles
of the code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules (the “Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has
complied with the Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2009, except that the non-executive
directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws.

The Board periodically reviews and improves the
corporate governance practices and standards of
the Company with a view to continuously improve
the Company’s corporate governance practices by
assessing their effectiveness with evolving standards
to meet changing circumstances and needs.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules for securities transactions by the
directors of the Company. All the members of the
Board have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2009.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and comprehensible assessment of the
Company’s annual and interim reports, price-sensitive
announcements and other financial disclosure
required under the Listing Rules.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING (Continued)

The directors acknowledge that it is their
responsibilities for preparation of the financial
statements of the Group and ensure that the
financial statements are in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The directors also ensure that the timely publication
of the financial statements of the Group.

The directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made
all enquires, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditors of the
Company, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng, about
their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 49 to 51.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership
and control of the Company and oversees
the Group’s businesses, strategic direction
and financial performance. The management,
consisting of executive directors along with other
senior executives, is delegated the authority and
responsibility by the Board for the management of
the Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the four committees,
namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Finance Committee, to assist the Board in
discharging its duties and to oversee particular
aspects of the Group’s activities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Decisions on important matters are specifically
reserved to the Board while decisions on the Group’s
general operations are delegated to the management.
Important matters include those affecting the Group’s
strategic policies, major investment and funding
decisions and major commitments relating to the
Group’s operations.

The day-to-day management of the Group is
delegated to the management. This delegation of
authority includes responsibility for developing and
formulating business plans and budgets of the Group
for the Board’s approval, operating the Group’s
businesses within the parameters set by the Board,
keeping the Board informed of material developments
of the Group’s businesses, identifying and managing
operation and other risk and implementing the
policies and processes approved by the Board.

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary
balance skills and experience desirable for effective
leadership of the Company and independence in
decision-making.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lei Hong Wai
(appointed on 18 January 2010)
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy
(appointed on 18 January 2010)
Mr. Heung Wah Keung
(resigned on 1 February 2010)
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
(resigned on 1 February 2010)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert
Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul
Mr. Lien Wai Hung

There is no relationship between members of the
Board, except that Mr. Heung Wah Keung is the
husband of Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Board
at all times met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive directors an annual
written confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2009, four full
regular board meetings were held and the attendance
of each director is set out below:

Exg#)
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Number of Attendance

meetings attended rate

Name of director EEnA HESBERE HE=R

Mr. Heung Wah Keung OEEREE 4/4 100%

Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany FREAZE 22+ 4/4 100%

Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert WEMEE 4/4 100%

Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul EERLE 4/4 100%

Mr. Lien Wai Hung EEELE 4/4 100%
CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN FEHEBEFE

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the
Chairman of the Board, Mr. Heung Wah Keung, was
responsible for the leadership and effective running
of the Board, while the Vice Chairman, Ms. Chen
Ming Yin, Tiffany, taking the role of chief executive
officer, was responsible for recommending policy
and strategic directions for Board’s approval,
implementing the strategies and policies adopted
by the Board, and conducting the day-to-day
management of the Group.

For ensuring the balance of power and authority, the
division of responsibilities between the Chairman of
the Board and the Vice Chairman were clearly defined
and have been set out in writing which was approved
by the Board on 31 August 2005.
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TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. The term of office for the
non-executive directors of the Company is subject to
retirement from office by rotation and is eligible for
re-election in accordance with the provisions of the
Company’s bye-laws. At each annual general meeting,
one-third of the directors for the time being, (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not greater than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation. As such, the Company
considers that such provision is sufficient to meet the
underlying objective of this code provision.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees with
clearly defined written terms of reference. The main
roles and responsibilities of these committees,
including all authorities delegated to them by the
Board, as set out in the terms of reference, are
published on the Company’s website, www.chinastar.
com. The independent views and recommendations
of the four committees ensure proper control of the
Group and the continual achievement of the high
corporate governance standards expected of a listed
company. The chairman of each committee reports
the outcome of the committee’s meetings to the
Board for further discussions and approvals.

The majority of the members of each board
committees are independent non-executive directors.
The board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the
Remuneration Committee comprised two independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Tang Chak Lam,
Gilbert and Mr. Lien Wai Hung, and one executive
director, namely Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany. Ms.
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany was the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s remuneration policy and structure of
directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for establishing a
formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no director or any of his/her associates
will involve in deciding his/her own remuneration.

In determining any specific package for directors, the
Remuneration Committee takes into account factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment, responsibilities of the directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
whether any part of the remuneration package should
be performance-based.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the
Remuneration Committee met once to review the
remuneration packages of the directors and senior
management. All the committee members attended
the meeting.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the
Nomination Committee comprised one executive
director, namely Mr. Heung Wah Keung, and two
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr.
Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert and Mr. Lien Wai Hung.
Mr. Heung Wah Keung was the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The main function of the Nomination Committee is to
review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
on a regular basis and make recommendations to
the Board regarding any proposed changes, identify
individuals suitable and qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated
for directorships and assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors. In addition,
the Nomination Committee makes recommendations
to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors in particular, the
Chairman and the Vice Chairman.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the
Nomination Committee met once to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board. All the
committee members attended the meeting.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Finance Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the
Finance Committee comprised one executive director,
namely Mr. Heung Wah Keung, and one independent
non-executive director, namely Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul.
Mr. Heung Wah Keung was the chairman of the
Finance Committee.

The main function of the Finance Committee is to
review and approve banking facilities and financial
instruments to be granted or issued by the Company
for the Group’s needs, the provision of corporate
guarantees by the Company for its subsidiaries and
associates, financial assistant of the Company and
the provision of financing to third parties.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, no Finance
Committee meeting was held.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Tang Chak Lam,
Gilbert, Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul and Mr. Lien Wai Hung.
Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The main function of the Audit Committee is to assist
the Board to oversee the financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control procedures and
the external audit function.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee reviews the interim and
annual reports before submission to the Board for
approval. The Audit Committee annually assesses
the appointment of the external auditors, taking into
account the quality and rigor of the audit, the quality
of the audit service provided, the auditing firm’s
quality control procedures, relationships between
the external auditors and the Company, and the
independence of the external auditors.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, two Audit
Committee meetings were held. All the committee
members attended the meetings.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting
principles and policies adopted by the Company and
discussed with management the internal controls and
financial reporting matters. To monitor the integrity
of the financial statements of the Company, the Audit
Committee reviewed the unaudited interim results
and audited annual results for 2009 and was of the
opinion that the preparation of such results complied
with the applicable accounting standards and
requirements and that adequate disclosure had been
made.

At the meeting held on 23 April 2010, the Audit
Committee concluded that it was satisfied with its
review of the audit fee, process and effectiveness,
independence and objectivity of HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng. The Audit Committee has therefore
recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng be re-appointed as the Company’s external
auditors at the annual general meeting in 2010.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the Company engaged HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng to perform audit services and non-
audit services and incurred audit services fees
of HK$600,000 and non-audit services fees of
HK$1,107,000.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
internal control system and to ensure that a sound
and effective internal control system is maintained.
The Board is responsible for approving and reviewing
internal control policy while the responsibility of
day-to-day management of operational risks and
implementation of mitigation measures lies with
the management. As the internal control system
is designed to manage the Group’s risks within an
acceptable risk profile, rather than to eliminate the
risk of failure, and to achieve the business objectives
of the Group. Accordingly, it can only provide
reasonable assurance but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement of management and
financial information and records or against financial
losses or fraud.

Key control procedures of the Group’s internal control
system are as follows:

o Segregation of duties and functions of the
respective operational departments of the Group

° Monitoring the strategic plan and performance

° Designing an effective accounting and
information system

° Controlling price-sensitive information
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (Continued)

The Board has established an on-going process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant
risks faced by the Group and this process includes
updating the internal control manual when there
are changes to business environment or regulatory
guidelines.

The Group has conducted an annual review of the
effectiveness of its internal control system covering
all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance as well as risk management. Besides
the Group has also engaged HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Consultants Limited (the “Consultant”) to
conduct review and make recommendations for the
improvement and strengthening of the internal control
system.

The review by the Consultant is conducted with
reference to the principles outlined in Internal
Control and Risk Management — A Basic Framework
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The assessment covers the
major internal controls and measures, including
financial, operational and compliance as well as
risk management. Any material non-compliance or
failures in internal controls maintained by the Group’s
management and relevant recommendations for
improvements are reported to the Audit Committee.

Based on the assessments made by the Consultant,
the Audit Committee and the Board considered
that the key areas of the Group’s internal control
system are reasonably implemented with room for
improvement. The Group shall use its best endeavour
to implement the recommendations made by the
Consultant in order to further improve the internal
control system.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company reports to its shareholders twice
a year. Interim and annual results are announced
to keep shareholders informed of the Group’s
performance and operations. The general meetings
of the Company provide a forum for communication
between the shareholders and the Board. All
shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual
general meeting to discuss the progress of the
Group’s business. The Chairman of the Board as well
as chairman of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Finance
Committee, or in their absence, other members of
the respective committees, and where applicable,
the independent Board Committee, are available
to answer questions at the shareholders’ meeting.
Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meeting on each substantial issue, including the re-
election of directors. Our corporate website which
contains corporate information, interim and annual
reports, announcements and circulars issued by the
Company, enables the Company’s shareholders to
access information on the Group on a timely basis.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

The directors present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries and associates
are set out in notes 38 and 20 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

In prior years, the Group was also engaged in
property investment. This operation was discontinued
in the current year (see note 31).

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2009 are set out in the consolidated
income statement on pages 52 to 53.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2009
(2008: Nil). No interim dividend was paid during the
year (2008: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years
ended 31 December 2009 is set out on page 196.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements during the year in the property,
plant and equipment and investment properties of the
Group are set out in notes 16 and 17 respectively to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

EFEHE

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements during the year in the share
capital of the Company are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme
and details of movements during the year in the share
options of the Company are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2009.

RESERVES

Details of movements during the year in the reserves
of the Group and of the Company are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 58 to 59 and in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders at 31 December 2009 amounted to
HK$141,004,000 (2008: HK$148,241,000). In addition,
the Company’s share premium may be distributed in
the form of fully-paid bonus shares.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

Details of convertible notes payable of the Company
are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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EEEHE

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lei Hong Wai
(appointed on 18 January 2010)
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy
(appointed on 18 January 2010)
Mr. Heung Wah Keung
(resigned on 1 February 2010)
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
(resigned on 1 February 2010)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert
Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul
Mr. Lien Wai Hung

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s
bye-laws, Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul and Mr. Lien Wai
Hung retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and pursuant to Bye-law 86(2) of the
Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Lei Hong Wai and Mr. Chan
Kin Wah, Billy retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. All the retiring directors, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of the directors are set out under

the section headed “Profiles of Directors” on pages
47 to 48.
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Report of the Directors

EFEHE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the
independent non-executive directors, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

a. On 11 March 2009, the Company entered into
the conditional loan agreement with China Star
Entertainment Limited (“CSEL”), pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed
to make available an unsecured loan facility of
up to HK$200,000,000 to CSEL. As Mr. Heung
Wah Keung, Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany and
their associates were interested in 1,143,722,019
shares of CSEL, representing approximately
23.88% of the issued share capital of CSEL,
Mr. Heung Wah Keung and Ms. Chen Ming Yin,
Tiffany were considered to have interests in the
conditional loan agreement. Please refer to the
Company’s circular dated 30 March 2009 for
further details.

The conditional loan agreement was approved by
the shareholders of the Company, other than Mr.
Heung Wah Keung, Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
and their associates, on 22 April 2009.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

b. On 23 July 2009, the Company entered into the
conditional subscription agreement with CSEL,
pursuant to which CSEL has conditionally agreed
to issue and the Company has conditionally
agreed to subscribe or procure subscription for
the convertible bond in the principal amount of
HK$200,000,000. The subscription price of the
convertible bond should be satisfied by setting
off against the loan of HK$200,000,000 made
by the Company to CSEL on 29 April 2009. As
Mr. Heung Wah Keung, Ms. Chen Ming Yin,
Tiffany and their associates were interested
in 70,403,099 shares of CSEL, representing
approximately 5.43% of the issued share
capital of CSEL, Mr. Heung Wah Keung and
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany were considered to
have interests in the conditional subscription
agreement. Please refer to the Company’s
circular dated 28 August 2009 for further details.

The conditional subscription agreement was
approved by the shareholders of the Company,
other than Mr. Heung Wah Keung, Ms. Chen
Ming Yin, Tiffany and their associates, on 14
September 2009.

Other than as disclosed above, no contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.
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EFEHE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the
following directors of the Company had interests in
the following businesses (apart from the Company’s
businesses) conducted through the company named
below, its subsidiaries, associates or other investment

EENBFEXEB 2 ES

forms which are to compete or likely to compete, =

either directly or indirectly, with the principal

businesses of the Group conducted during the year.

Directors

=

Name of company

kL

Nature of interests
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Nature of
competing
business

BREREME

Mr. Heung Wah Keung
mEBETE

Ms. Chen Ming Yin,
Tiffany
FREA Z +

Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul
AEELE

CSEL

CSEL

CSEL

Chairman and executive
director of CSEL
CSELZ FERHTES

Vice chairman and executive
director of CSEL
CSELZRIEFERINTES

Independent non-executive
director of CSEL
CSELZBIUFHTES

Film distribution

ERRT

Film distribution

ERRT

Film distribution

BERRT
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING EENBRER2ER(F)
BUSINESS (Continued)

Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying EERROREBERG 2ER

Shares

At 31 December 2009, the interests of the directors R-ZEZENFE+=-A=1+—8 ' BEQAFRE
and chief executive of the Company and their EENPER(TEHREBERG 1) 5352
associates in the shares and underlying shares of FEzBTMARE SRR D T RERR
the Company and its associated corporations (within BT ARESETESRZWEESTH FTE
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures B AARBETESREBEALIREAA
Ordinance (the “SFO”), as recorded in the register AREEELIE(EERBSRBEMRMIEXV
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 B 2RO REERGFERE ZERNT

of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions #E
a. Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the a. ZARAEKREE.01ETZEEK
Company
Percentage
Interests in of the issued
Interests underlying Total interests  share capital of
Director Capacity in shares shares in shares the Company
EARAC R
gz af gz RRRGES Ry g REED
Mr. Heung Wah Keung Held by controlled 32,928,286 - 32,928,286 17.50%
MEREE corporation
HEEHARRE
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Held by controlled 32,928,286 - 32,928,286 17.50%
Tiffany corporation
REAHEZ L M EHARRE
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS (Continued)

Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares (Continued)

Long positions (Continued)

b. Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of CSEL

EERNROKAERKRG 2 EEa)

ESRROREERD 2B (F)

7E(HE)

b. CSEL#REEO0.01ET2EBERK

Interests in Percentage of
Interests underlying Total interests  the issued share
Director Capacity in shares shares in shares  capital of CSEL
1hCSEL
gz &t RiyER RBROER hitégEs  CROREFELM
Mr. Heung Wah Keung Beneficial owner - 26,367 26,367 0.00%

MERLE BRAEBA
Held by spouse - 700,026,367 700,026,367 30.48%

mEENE
Held by controlled 137,025 - 137,025 0.00%

corporation
MEEHARRE

137,025 700,052,734 700,189,759 30.48%
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Beneficial owner - 700,026,367 700,026,367 30.48%

Tiffany BREBA
ReAK L Held by spouse - 26,367 26,367 0.00%

mEENE
Held by controlled 137,025 - 137,025 0.00%

corporation
MEEHARRE

137,025 700,052,734 700,189,759 30.48%

Other than the holdings disclosed above, none of
the directors, chief executive and their associates,
had any interest or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations at 31 December
20009.

BREXFERBEZEREN  REZEZEAF+Z
A=+t—H #BEALQTES - TETHAE
REBBATRAQXFAHEE[ABBEE 2 1E
ARt - HERDHES FEEEAEDIR

o

mp
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Beijing Suoma has a management services contract
with HMBAEWEER (E)8) BR2AF (“Shama”) in
respect of its investment properties in Beijing, the
People’s Republic of China for a period of ten years,
with an option for Shama to extend another two “five-
year period”, starting from the date of handover of
the investment properties to Shama for management.
On 8 April 2009, the Group disposed of its entire
interest in Beijing Suoma.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company and its
subsidiaries had no management contract subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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EFEHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS TERSE
R-ZZBZEAF+ZA=+—8  FQAREE
FREMEHRGIEBHEFEZTERRE LM
BT THRRCHERAAEEAQATCEH
TRAZEBER

At 31 December 2009, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO shows that the following
shareholders had notified the Company of relevant
interests in the issued share capital of the Company:

Long positions — ordinary shares of HK$0.01

each of the Company

FE — XAFEBREEMBIZEAER

Percentage
Interest in of the issued
Interest underlying share capital of
Name Notes  Capacity in shares shares Total interest the Company
HRQFCRTRE
g Wi af B ER HBRGER AR B
Thought Diamond 1 Beneficial owner 56,000,000 - 56,000,000 29.77%
International Limited ERBEA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan 1 Held by controlled 56,000,000 - 56,000,000 29.77%
REBEE corporation
REHAAZER
Classical Statue Limited 2 Beneficial owner 32,928,286 - 32,928,286 17.50%
ERBEA
Glenstone Investments 2 Held by controlled 32,928,286 - 32,928,286 17.50%
Limited corporation
REFAFR R
Porterstone Limited 2 Held by controlled 32,928,286 - 32,928,286 17.50%
corporation
REHAAZER
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, 2 Held by controlled 32,928,286 - 32,928,286 17.50%
Tiffany corporation
BHRELL REHAT 2R
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EEEHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued) FERRE)
Long positions — ordinary shares of HK$0.01 HE — XAFREREEOIEBTIZEBRAR
each of the Company (Continued) (#&)
Percentage
Interest in of the issued
Interest underlying share capital of
Name Notes Capacity in shares shares Total interest the Company
HARRACRTRA
£ i) R ER RERGER mEL BAl
Mr. Heung Wah Keung 2 Held by controlled 32,928,286 - 32,928,286 17.50%
MERLE corporation
SEHARCRR
Asia Vest Partners VIl 3 Held by controlled 1,294,921 - 1,294,921 9.95%
Limited corporation
ZEHNR 2 ER
Asia Vest Partners X 3 Held by controlled 1,294,921 - 1,294,921 9.95%
Limited corporation
REHNR 2 ER
Asia Vest Partners Limited 3 Held by controlled 1,294,921 - 1,294,921 9.95%
corporation
REHNR 2 ER
Mr. Andrew Nan Sherrill 3 Held by controlled 1,294,921 - 1,294,921 9.95%
HERLE corporation
REHRR ER
Notes: BrEE -
1. Thought Diamond International Limited is wholly owned 1. Thought Diamond International Limited Hi5&
by Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan. BEEEERERER °
2. Classical Statue Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of 2. Classical Statue Limited % Glenstone
Glenstone Investments Limited. Glenstone Investments Investments Limitedz &= & Mt B & &
Limited is owned as to 60% by Porterstone Limited and Glenstone Investments LimitedH
as to 40% by Mr. Heung Wah Keung. Porterstone Limited Porterstone Limited R B EBELE D B EE
is wholly owned by Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany. 60% K& 40% ° Porterstone Limited HFREAK &
T2EHES -
3. The number of shares was adjusted for the share 3. RBRHOBECHAN-_ZENFEAE=+HR=-ZEE
consolidations that became effective on 30 April 2008 NWEMAZ+=ZBERZBRDEOELAE -

and 23 April 2009.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Long positions — ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company (Continued)

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not
been notified of any other relevant interests or short
positions in the issued share capital of the Company
at 31 December 2009.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES
13.13 AND 13.20 OF THE LISTING RULES

a. Corporate guarantee provided by the Company

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement
dated 26 November 2008 relating to the disposal
of the Group’s interests in the entire issued
share capital of Shinhan-Golden and World East
together with the loans due by each of them
to the Group, the Company has undertaken
with Mega Shell, the purchaser, to maintain
its guarantee dated 11 September 2006 in
favour of Hang Seng Limited, Fuzhou Branch
to remain in full force and effect in all respect
until the loan facilities granted to Beijing Suoma
are repaid or settled in full absolutely. Other
than the corporate guarantee provided by the
Company, the loan facilities are secured by
certain of Beijing Suoma’s investment properties
and bank deposits. The loan facilities mature on
10 September 2011. The provision of corporate
guarantee was approved by the shareholders on
12 February 2009.

In September 2009, Beijing Suoma repaid the
loan facilities in full and the corporate guarantee
given by the Company in favour of Hang Seng
Limited, Fuzhou Branch, was released.

FERR (&)

FE — XPABREEIIEBIZEEBR
(#&)

BREXFIIREES  RRBABERAMEN-F
ENFTZRA=T-BHEEAQFTHITRAE
ZIEAEMBEEERIKXE -

BELETRAFE13.13K% 13.201KEH
2B

a. ARAFAREZDFER

REBBHAEA-ZENET+ A=+
BzEEWR (AR ERLEEREER
Shinhan-Golden & World Eastz &
ERITRAZEDERZBEXRETERBZ
BERzER) ZIK"_JE',I'"JEJFMega
Shell R #BF R -_ZEZRFNA
+—8 - HUE4£R TEEE@EE’J‘N%?T
ATRAZERERFE—EBEAETERE
MORER BEEOLRSHREZE
NAEELHBRHEERSIFERAL - B
AARRBEZATERIN  EXEME N
ERF B 2ETRENMERBRITFRIE
3‘%?55?'? cHMMENR-—ZFT——FNAT

EHf - REQAAEREN_-ZZLEF
:ﬁ THERR#E

REZZBZANFAA  ERFHEEHE
BEENBME MALAUELERITAR
AEMDPITRIZEAZERECER

A 7]
BR
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES BELFTTHRAINE13.13%13.201FEH

13.13 AND 13.20 OF THE LISTING RULES ZIE(E)
(Continued)
b. Loan to Shanghai Shengping ALELERTFER

On 8 April 2009 (being the date of completion
of the disposal of Shinhan-Golden and World
East), Shanghai Shengping, a subsidiary of
World East, was indebted to the Group in the
sum of HK$375,536,000. Pursuant to the sale
and purchase agreement, the loan made to
Shanghai Shengping by the Group was not
settled immediately upon completion and CSFGL
has provided a guarantee to the Group for a
term of maximum of three financial years ending
31 December 2011 to secure the repayment. If
any part of the loan has not been settled on the
day falling on the fifth anniversary of the date of
completion, CSFGL will issue a convertible note
to settle the outstanding balance of the loan.
The loan to Shanghai Shengping was approved
by the shareholders on 12 February 2009.

During the year ended 31 December 2009,
Shanghai Shengping repaid HK$220,000,000 to
the Group.

At 31 December 2009, the loan amounted
to HK$155,536,000, which is secured by a
corporate guarantee given by CSFGL, interest-
free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

R-ZZEEANEFENANBEEHE
Shinhan-Golden & World East 5 % H
Hi) » World EastzHfiB AR LBRF
R AREE A E375,536,0008 T o 1R
BEEHZ FAEERLEBFFRMZ
BRI N A RFENEFEE - ™ CSFGL
COAEERBER FHEZEE=
E——F+ZA=+—HL=ZEHEKEF
B ERERER - M EMIBPMHRIEL
BENERBHETEEFEREFE 8
CSFGLH#RTARKRMES » WEED L
BEFERZREEZEH HLBRYF
ERER=ZZEZBENF-AT-HERR
#Ef o

BE-STAFT=B=t-ALF
E - LB 5 F¥{E3E220,000,000% T F
AEE -

R-ZZ2BAFE+-A=1tA BLBER
¥ & X £155,536,0007% 7T LLCSFGL
RHUZERFERR 2EREBTEN
e

RIRERETE

AEBZRABAEFBEN G HHRE
Mk 45 o

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme
are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Details of the compliance by the Company with the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices are set out
on pages 19 to 31.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2009.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s turnover amounted
to HK$74,711,000. Of the turnover amount,
HK$60,491,000 was generated from provision of
management services and HK$14,220,000 was
generated from sales of financial assets. There was
not supplier to the Group.

The Group has provided management services to
three customers. In 2009, the largest customer and
the combined contribution from the three customers
accounted for 30% and 81% of the Group’s total
turnover respectively.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate
of a director or a shareholder of the Company (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) have an interest in
any of the Group’s three customers.

BEABE

ARB 2z AAARAHERELEALEFEEEL
RBEZRE  EARRXFAREARBEERR
BREMKRD -

BIEEERFRTA

AADNBFLEEAERTUBRZHERR
#19E31H °

EHANBERE

REBEEZZEZAF+ZA=1T-HLFER
RRF-—ERFEHLIRFTRE -

FEEFRHERD

FR AEBEZEREET4711,000/8 7T
2 060,491,000 8B T ELEBRME
AR - K% 14,220,000 Bt ELXBHESH
BE - NEMALMAER o

AEECO=FFFRHEERK -HN=-ZZ
hWE  BABEEFRZBEFAHZERD AL
AREBHEEIE 30% K 81% °

REREMEGE  EF - EFHWEALTIHAE
RARR(RESHAEEARDFRA5% L
PIRAEEERA=EFFPHEEES -
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events occurring after
the reporting period are set out in note 49 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2009 have been audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment.

On Behalf of the Board

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 April 2010
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Profiles of Directors

EFRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lei Hong Wai, aged 43, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company and the Chairman
of the Board on 18 January 2010 and 1 February
2010, respectively. Mr. Lei is responsible for the
development of the overall strategic planning and
management of the Group. He has over eight years
of extensive experience in corporate management,
investment and business development. He was an
executive director of the Company during the period
from 28 September 2001 to 13 October 2005. He
was a director of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies Limited, which promotes interaction
amongst its members which are listed companies in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China, in
2002. He was the chairman and an executive director
of Brilliant Arts Multi-Media Holding Limited (now
known as Xing Lin Medical Information Technology
Company Limited), a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market operated by the Stock Exchange,
during the period from 10 July 2007 to 24 June 2009.

Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy, aged 47, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 18
January 2010. Mr. Chan is responsible for the
financial management of the Group. He has over
15 years of experience in accounting and financial
control. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a CPA member of
CPA Australia and a non-practicing member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He holds a Bachelor of Administration Degree from
the University of Ottawa in Canada and a Master of
Commerce Degree in Professional Accounting from
the University of New South Wales in Australia. He is
currently an independent non-executive director of
Ching Hing (Holdings) Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and Eternite
International Company Limited, a company listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market operated by the Stock
Exchange.

ZHELE BFELAR DR —ZFF
— B+ \NBR=ZZE—ZHF_F—HEZEAX
RAZPTESRESTECER - Fh4EEE
AEEERREITECBRREREE - HEER
BNFLEERE REREBBRZEZL
BN -_ZET-FAA=-+N\BE=-ZZH
FTAT=ZBHBABTES R=-ZZ=
o oRECEBLTATEECES  ZBE
ZIEAREEKREQAT(NIEERTEAR
HMBEz EHm AR BEAZEHEGE - RZET
tE+LtA+HEZZEZEAFEARAZ+TEAH
B HAXREZEBERERAACEBEM
BEEEEREERATAIZEERITES
ZATRBREEZAIZER LT °

PREFELE BE4THR R=ZT—-ZTF—A
TNEEZEARDRZHTES - RELER
EAEECHHEEERE - HBEEBBI5FEE:
RV BREZR K BABBSHMAGZE
E - BNEHMABZERBERTRHIME
FTEEZHHERE - HIFEMERERE
AREBIHEESTENRBRMNFTERBEH A
BrEXeHEETEN  RBEABIHE
WMETAREE(EE)BRATRAIZERL
mARKEEBRROERAGDZBIIFHITE
g °
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert, aged 59, is a practicing
solicitor in Hong Kong since 1987 and is a senior
partner of Messrs. Gilbert Tang & Co.. He joined
the Company in February 2002. He was a director
of Pok Oi Hospital in 1993 and a member of the
Kowloon West Advisory Committee of Hong Kong
Bank Foundation District Community Programme
between July 1991 and November 1995. Mr. Tang
holds a Bachelor of Law Degree from the University
of Buckingham in the United Kingdom, and a Diploma
in Chinese Law from the University of East Asia in
Macau.

Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul, aged 59, is the sole proprietor
of Paul W. C. Ho & Company, Certified Public
Accountants (Practising), and is an associate of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, United Kingdom and a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ho
joined the Company in September 2004.

Mr. Lien Wai Hung, aged 46, is a practicing solicitor
in Hong Kong since 1997 and is a partner of Messrs.
Leung & Lien, a firm of solicitors in Hong Kong. He
graduated from the University of East London with a
LLB Degree in the United Kingdom. Mr. Lien joined
the Company in April 2005.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

#5 1L % BU B 3R

H B & st 5 F B oA
Hodgson Impey Cheng

Chartered Accountants

Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA STAR INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial
statements of China Star Investment Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to
195, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December
2009, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
these financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

31/F, Gloucester Tower &t

The Landmark IR

11 Pedder Street STH 1135
Central BEiES

Hong Kong FETITRKE3E
FHEHEREERATRE

(REREZEZMA L ZERAE])

EECERERE1BEMHACHEERE
BERAFATEXADRAEWEL R (SRBIE
EEDHNGESUBERX BER-ZFNEF
TZA=+t—HNGEERLABHMRRARKE
EZALFENGERER GE2EHKWE
% RERFTEDHRIGESRERER - UK
EETTHRMER H MR o

EERRNVBHRR2ER

BERRESECREBETMASHEANES
MEBREEAUREBAARANIEERTE
BEREREEAFHEN HETKRREK -
ZETBERS  BERRAEFHEGFEREED
Fih 254 M SRR EE 2 AIBEIE » LU
RE M E KRR (R R B BREFF S8R 5l
) BERERABESTEE YERERE
MTEHEE 2 EE
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#5 1L % BB 3R

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981 and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit includes performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors
of the Company, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group as at 31 December 2009 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 April 2010
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Consolidated Income Statement

FelRR

For the year ended 31 December 2009 EE—ZEZEAF+=-H=1—

AL FE

2009 2008
—EEhE “BENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kt FET FET
(Restated)
(E%))
Continuing operations BESEEK
Turnover 2] 7 74,711 19,253
Cost of sales SHER A (1,362) (493)
Gross profit EF 73,349 18,760
Other revenue and other income  HkzEEE MUk A 8 11,905 2,427
Administrative expenses THAX (17,563) (26,462)
Impairment loss recognised in CRZAEERESE
respect of goodwill - (101,965)
Impairment loss recognised in ERIABFEEREBR
respect of intangible assets 19 (117,320) —
Loss arising on change in fair R THRBEEERNEZ KR
value in respect of conversion BEERCLATEEBEL
options embedded in 2B
convertible note receivable 28 (64,542) —
Gain arising on change in fair BEERAFEFABRRZ
value in respect of convertible ABRREEATFEERE
note designated as at fair value £z W
through profit or loss 29 55,244 —
Adjustment to cost of combination RBEFEETREZSH
in respect of an acquisition in By 7S 2
prior year 18 103,434 -
Loss on cancellation of HHEHENTRREBEZEE
convertible note payable 36 (18,247) —
Loss on partial disposal of an B HEHE AR 2EE
associate 20 (280,020) —
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMNB A& ZEE 40 (48,868) —
Share of results of associates FEL B E N R EE 20 724,988 -
Loss on deemed disposal of an BELEBE AR ZER
associate 20 (6,629) —
Profit/(loss) from operations R (&8) 9 415,731 (107,240)
Finance costs mMEE R 10 (8,086) (3,350)
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Consolidated Income Statement

FelRR

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEFEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

2009 2008
—EEhE —EENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kt FETT FET
(Restated)
(E%))
Profit/(loss) before taxation MELADGR R, (&518) 407,645 (110,590)
Income tax credit g% 13 14,493 13,854
Profit/(loss) for the year from REFELSEXEB2ERFE
continuing operations wBRL(EE) 422,138 (96,736)
Discontinued operations EARIEREEK
Loss for the year from RECKILREER ZAKRE
discontinued operations EEiE 31 (5,576) (127,772)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERF,(FH#E) 416,562 (224,508)
Profit/(loss) attributable to RATRFEEAEEER,
owners of the Company (&) 416,562 (224,508)
Dividend KE 15 - —
Earnings/(loss) per share BREF,(FHE) 14
From continuing operations REFEKSEER
Basic and diluted BEXK#EHE HK395.08 centsi#fll  HK(49.56) centsil
From discontinued operations RECAIEEER
Basic and diluted BERREE HK(5.22) cents#fll  HK(65.46) centsil

From continuing and
discontinued operations
Basic and diluted

REFRACERCRIEEE
£
EXR#E

HK389.86 centsil  HK(115.02) centsfll

The accompanying notes form an integral part of

these consolidated financial statements.

BER M B R A GRS B I|R 2 — A2 -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FezEba®

For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENFF+-—HA=1—HIEFE

2009 2008
—EEhE —EENF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Kt FET FET
Profit/(loss) for the year REEBF,(FEE) 416,562 (224,508)
Other comprehensive income AEEHM2EKE
for the year (after tax and (RBEREFSE
reclassification adjustments): FER) -
Share of exchange reserve FE(REEE N A
change of associates ER#EE2D 20 (99) —
Exchange differences on MEBIMER
translating foreign operations ZEHERE 483 34,550
Total comprehensive income/ REEFHAZHE K
(loss) for the year S (EE) 416,946 (189,958)
Attributable to: T AL :
Owners of the Company KARHEB A 416,946 (189,958)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

i 8 MBIk R

At 31 December 2009 R=—ZFEZEANF+=-H=+—H

2009 2008
—EENE —EENF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Btat FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENERE 16 1,838 2,155
Investment properties REYHE 17 - —
Goodwill GRS 18 - —
Intangible assets B EE 19 339,537 456,857
Interests in associates REE QAR 2R 20 641,908 —
Promissory note receivable FEWE A Z 21 31,853 =
Convertible note receivable FEUS AT R =5 22 3,670 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AIftHEZSREE 172 172
1,018,978 459,184
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables B 5 ERFE 23 6,022 6,839
Deposits, prepayments and ®E - BARERHEAM
other receivables FEW R IE 24 1,015 1,627
Loan to an associate mEEE NTER 25 155,536 =
Amount due from an associate JE W B & N B FRIE 26 5,103 —
Conversion options embedded ERTBBREEANSZ
in convertible note receivable HiRERIERE 28 18,316 =
Cash and cash equivalents HeERBESEEY 30 275,802 7,218
461,794 15,684
Assets of disposal group PERABEHEZHEER
classified as held for sale BE 31 - 1,049,412
461,794 1,065,096
Total assets EEHAE 1,480,772 1,524,280
EQUITY IR
Capital and reserves FUNETE 2SN
attributable to owners BERAR&EE
of the Company
Share capital &N 32 1,881 1,952
Reserves #H1E 1,369,163 892,471
Total equity e Tt 1,371,044 894,423
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

= 8 MBIk R

At 31 December 2009 R=FEENF+=-HA=1+—H

2009 2008
—EENE —EEN\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kzt FET FET
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables EtERREMENRIE 34 10,200 32,956
Trade deposits received CRESRE 477 477
Amount due to a related B EEE A F)
company A 35 - 600
Tax payable FES iR 731 731
11,408 34,764
Liabilities of disposal group PEARBEHECHEMAR
classified as held for sale =L 31 - 427,612
11,408 462,376
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Convertible notes payable A ARERE 36 54,563 105,803
Deferred taxation IEFEF 18 37 43,757 61,678
98,320 167,481
Total liabilities BEA% 109,728 629,857
Total equity and liabilities RERBEEE 1,480,772 1,524,280
Net current assets REBEEZEE 450,386 602,720
Total assets less current liabilities EFEAERRBEE 1,469,364 1,061,904
The consolidated financial statements were approved FEUBRREN =T —SFTNA=+REALK
and authorised for issued by the board of directors EESHERRETR  YHTIATRERSE
on 26 April 2010 and signed on its behalf by: F
Lei Hong Wai Chan Kin Wah, Billy
TiEE PRAEEE
Director Director
EE EE
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Statement of Financial Position

MBI AE
At 31 December 2009 R=—FZFAF+=-F=+—H
2009 2008
—EEBNF —EENE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’009
HiaE FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN 38 215,091 366,305
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments, and Ze - EARER
other receivables H U TR I8 24 101 =
Loan to an associate F]E%ED\TET” 25 155,536 —
Amount due from an associate FE Y B = A B R 26 3,973 —
Cash and cash equivalents BERk Eé*—'ﬁf#@ 30 40,027 278
199,637 278
Total assets BEEAE 414,728 366,583
EQUITY B
Capital and reserves AATEE AEML
attributable to owners of the BEARKRHE
Company
Share capital B A 32 1,881 1,952
Reserves = 33 308,509 214,983
Total equity R4 EE 310,390 216,935
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FREBAE
Convertible notes payable A AREREE 36 54,563 105,803
Deferred taxation IEFERL 18 37 3,012 6,855
57,575 112,658
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables st & AR EMmEARIE 34 3,042 1,080
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE A B B & R FRIE 43,721 35,910
46,763 36,990
Total liabilities =Rt b 104,338 149,648
Total equity and liabilities REREELE 414,728 366,583
Net current assets/(liabilities) FREEE (8&)FE 152,874 (36,712)
Total assets less current EEAERABARE
liabilities 367,965 329,593
The financial statements were approved and BERRER-Z_ZFFOA-TABEE
authorised for issued by the board of directors on 26 ESHERTEENE THTIHALTRERRE
April 2010 and signed on its behalf by: F
Lei Hong Wai Chan Kin Wah, Billy
- 2 R {2 =
Director Director
= =8
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FeREEEHXR

For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENFF+-—HA=1—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAARBAEL
Share- (Accumulated
based  Convertible losses)/ Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Contributed Special ~ payment notes  Exchange  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve profits ~ Sub-total  interests Total
HREFA b (BitEE)/

Ba  ROEE  EABF  REER  GBRE  XNRE  BRERE  EXRE  REEH bt HEEREE it
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
7L 7Er 7Er 71 7/ 71 71 i i 7Er 7Er 7Er
(Note &) (Note b) (Note c) (Note d) (Note ¢) (Note f)
Wda)  (BED)  (Wde)  (BEd (KHe) (W1

At 1 January 2008 H=ZENE-F-B 195,186 813,068 19,844 80,103 (19,955) 28442 = 36,734 (107,332 1,046,080 3806 1040976

Capital reorganisation (note 32(a)) REEEKZ30)

- capital reduction — BAHE (193,235) - - 193,235 - - - - - - - -
~ share premium cancellation — HHRREE - (813,008) - 813,058 - - - - - - - -
- set-off accumulated losses against — {{E8ERvHE

contributed surplus ZitEE - - - (183 - - - - 518,974 - - -
Exercise of share options fiEBRE 1 - - - - - - - - 1 - 1
Share-based payment expenses HREFAZRZER - - - - - 3,608 - - - 3,608 - 3,608
Acquisition of remaining interest Wi -BRELTZE

in a subsidiary Ei - - - - - - - - - - (3,896) (3,896)
Issuance of convertible notes payable  EfTEATARES

- equity component - hEss - - - - - - 4547 - - 4547 - 4547
Deferred tax recognised BEZZELRE - - - - - - (6,855) - - (6,855) - (6,855)
Total comprehensive income KEERENAEE

for the year - - - - - - - 34,550 (224,508) (189,958) - (189,958)
At 31 December 2008 and RBENETCA=1-R

1 January 2009 R-%E05-A-R 1952 - 19,844 568,022 (19,955) 32,050 34,692 71,284 186,534 894,423 - 894,423
[ssue of new shares RrERA 9,841 115,516 - - - - - - - 125,357 - 125,357
Cost of issuance of new shares RTHRAEA - (1,136) - - - - - - - (1,136) - (1,136)
Capital reorganisation (nofe 32(f) RKEE (K2 3)
- capital reduction — BadE (9,912 - - 9912 - - - - - - - -
— set off accumulated losses - LESRSwEH

against contributed surplus ZitEE = - - (9,012) - - - - 9912 - - -
Release on disposal of subsidiaries HERBLARER

(10te 40) (#it40) = - - N - - My g () - M)
Share of reserves of associates EhUENTRE - - = = = = = (99) = (%9) = (99)
Share-based payment expense HREFALR 2B - - - - - 3729 - - - 3729 - 3729
Cancellation of convertible note payable  HEEFTRRES - - - - - - (20774) - 0,174 - - -
Reversal of deferred tax upon cancellation  FEEATERZEEEED

of convertible notes payable (note 36)  EEREH %) - - - - - - 3428 - - 3428 - 3428
Total comprehensive income KEERENAEE

for the year - - - - - - - 483 416,562 417,045 - 447,045
At 31 December 2009 R-EEAFT=R=1-R 1,881 114,380 19,844 568,022 - 35,179 17,346 (35) 613,827 1,371,044 - 131,044
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FeREEEH=R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEFEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

Notes:

(a)

(e)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the
difference of the share capital and share premium of the
subsidiaries and the nominal value of the 880 shares
issued by Riche (BVI) Limited (formerly known as Ocean
Shores (BVI) Limited) prior to the allotment of 120 shares
to Classical Statue Limited and the amount arising from
issue of share by a subsidiary.

The contributed surplus account of the Group represents
the net amount transferred from the share capital, share
premium account and to the retained profits/accumulated
losses account pursuant to the special resolution passed
at the special general meetings held on 22 August 2003
and 30 April 2008.

The special reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the fair value and the contracted
value of consideration in respect of the acquisition of
Shinhan-Golden Faith International Development Limited
during the year ended 31 December 2006. The special
reserve was transferred to the retained profits when
Shinhan-Golden Faith International Development Limited
was disposed during the year.

Share-based payment reserve represents the fair value
of services estimated to be received in exchange for
the grant of the relevant share options over the relevant
vesting periods, the total of which is based on the fair
value of the share options at grant date. The amount for
each period is determined by spreading the fair value of
the options over the relevant vesting period (if any) and
is recognised as staff costs and related expenses with
a corresponding increase in the share-based payment
reserve.

Under Hong Kong Accounting Standard 32 “Financial
Instruments: Presentation”, convertible notes issued and
split into their liability and equity components at initial
recognition by recognising the liability component at its
fair value which is determined using a market interest rate
for similar non-convertible debts and attributing to the
equity component the difference between the proceeds
from issue and the fair value of the liability component.
The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The equity component is recognised in
the convertible notes reserve until the convertible notes
are either converted (in which case it is transferred to
share premium) or the convertible notes are redeemed (in
which case it is released directly to retained profits).

Exchange reserve represents exchange differences
relating to the translation of the net assets of the Group’s
foreign operations from their functional currencies to
the Group’s presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange reserve. Such
exchange differences accumulated in the exchange
reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the foreign operations.

(b)

AEEERREDEMNB AR ZBRARRK GG
{BEL[) Classical Statue Limited Eg2% 120 A% %
{371 Riche (BVI) Limited (51 Ocean Shores
(BVI) Limited) FTE17 2880 R M 2 EHERE
MBARBTROMEEZRIEELE.

AEECERBRRERBER=-ZSZT=FNA
T+ HRZEENFNA=THETZREY
BIRE LEBEBRERARAS - RODEER
EREREERN RIS ER2FE -

AEBEZHEANREDEEERBE-ZZTRF
TZA=+-—HEFERARBZREZLAFE
R E&#EER 2= - Shinhan-Golden Faith
International Development Limited BERER
Bl FhFENESEREREEA o

LR R A R BIE R EEEERA X HEE
BB LR A SIS B IR T 2 A P E - HABER
DREBRERRE A ZAFERE - SHE
ZERNEBBBREL T EREEREEEH (W
BI)A#D  WHEABETIHARMEEER » I
RERD TR XA R 1EAE RS hn o

BEEBSTTERNERRICHMTE: 28 |-
ERTUTBMREBERNSEIRRASEERES
B BEBIDEREARCATRRESZZH
SHAEEEHDNFPETUER  BRloReR
BRITZMERERBERIAFEZEHE - BF
o HRRBERATER - SO RATRERR
BEERED  BEEUBRRIBELZBRLER
THERERERMEE) X TRRIZEFEEED (R
LEER T HiS HEBBRERERR)

ELRREEERAEEBIER 2 EEFERAA
DREEBBREAAEB 2 EH (AET) 2E
REE HEEREMEEWAPEIRRER
RETH R - ZERELRERF 2ERZER
HEBIIRBRERDERRE

Annual Report 2009 &% | 59



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FEBaRE

For the year ended 31 December 2009 EZ—ZFEZENF+=-H=+—

AL FE

2009 2008
—EBAF ZBENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
Notes FET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEEH
Profit/(loss) before taxation from REZFELSEEK >
continuing operations BREADER(&E) 407,645 (110,590)
Loss before taxation from RECKIEREEK 2
discontinued operations PR AT E 1B (4,975) (149,986)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRI A RN (EE) 402,670 (260,576)
Adjustments for: FE
Interest income FE WA (11,886) (3,639)
Impairment loss recognised in CHRRE S EWRIERE
respect of trade receivables 58 396 —
(Gain)/loss on disposal of HEWE - MERFZEZ
property, plant and equipment (=), EE (20) 3
Gain arising on change in fair REVMEZAFEEE
value in respect of investment rEERE
properties - 74,045
Loss arising on change in fair R R EER S EignE
value in respect of conversion ZRFESH
options embedded in FEEEE
convertible note receivable 64,542 —
Gain arising on change in fair EBERATFEFABRRZ
value in respect of convertible ARREE AL EES
note designated as at fair value EEzlz
through profit or loss (65,244) —
Finance costs MEEA 8,086 28,639
Depreciation of property, plant M- BERBRBINE
and equipment 533 5,033
Impairment loss recognised in CRIABMBRERSE
respect of goodwill - 142,347
Impairment loss recognised in CRERBEEERERESE
respect of intangible assets 117,320 —
Adjustment to cost of RBEFEETWREZ
combination in respect of an SO AR
acquisition in prior year (103,434) —
Loss on cancellation of THEMNTRREE ZEE
convertible note payable 18,247 —
Loss on partial disposal of an M HEBRE AT ZEBEB
associate 280,020 =
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEKBARZEE 48,868 —
Loss on deemed disposal of an RIELEBE AR 2EE
associate 6,629 =
Share of results of associates iy N e (724,988) -
Share-based payment expenses URHFEX X2 x 3,729 3,608
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HFEBeRER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEFEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

2009 2008
—EEhE ZBENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
Notes FET FHET
Operating cash flows before EEESEPH 2 KE
movements in working capital RERE 55,468 (10,540)
Decrease in inventories BFERD - 3,814
Decrease/(increase) in trade g5 EWEIE
receivables WA, (1) 421 (5,806)
Decrease in deposits, & BIRIE
prepayment and other RE MR
receivables IR D 612 20,505
(Decrease)/increase in accruals fEFTE AR HMWENKE
and other payables CRIA) /180 (22,756) 27,672
Decrease in receipts in advance 78U FRIE R 2 (175) (7,094)
Decrease in amount due to EAREQRRIE
a related company Voo (5,703) (101)
Cash generated EEMELERSE
from operations 27,867 28,450
Tax refund REIHIE - 3,736
Net cash generated from RETEMELE
operating activities ZHREFE 27,867 32,186
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Adjustment to cost of combination FhiBEEEWEE > &6
in respect of an acquisition PN A
in prior year 31,433 —
Interest received 2 WF 2 - 3,639
Interest paid 2RFE (3,723) -
Repayment from loan to an BEBRERATRER
associate 220,000 —
Proceeds from disposal of HEVHE BERREZ
property, plant and equipment FR8FR1E 39 -
Proceeds from partial disposal of FEEFHEKE AT Z
an associate S 1E 63,310 =
Loan to a related company BEATER (200,000) -
Acquisition of an associate Wi —EHE QR (9,415) -
Net cash outflow of disposal of HEMBARZEER
subsidiaries RER (67,547) -
Effect from acquisition of interests WEEKHIB AT 2 E#H =
in subsidiaries 2! 39 - (364,821)
Additions of investment properties IREYERE - (42,202)
Purchase of property, plant and BEYX - BER
equipment B:di] (236) (22,397)
Net cash generated from/(used REFEFELS (FiA)H
in) investing activities ZREeFE 33,861 (425,781)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEHeRER

For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENFF+-—HA=1—HIEFE

2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
Notes FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEE
Interest paid 2R E - (25,289)
Issuance of new shares and BT RITHEERE
exercise of share options 125,357 1
Cost of issuance of new shares EATH IR 9 A AN (1,136) -
Repayment of secured bank loan {EEAEMIBTER — (28,602)
Net cash generated from/(used REFEREL (FTHA)Z
in) from financing activities HE B 124,221 (53,890)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash RERRLSZEY
and cash equivalents i, CRd) R 185,949 (447,485)
Effect of foreign exchange rate HEZBREZE
changes 483 5,459
Cash and cash equivalents at FOZRERRLEEY
beginning of year 89,370 531,396
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZBSRBRESEEY
end of year 275,802 89,370
Analysis of the balances of cash HE&REEEBYELEIT
and cash equivalents
Included in cash and cash FTAGEEEEERH
equivalents per the ZARERREEEY
consolidated balance sheet 30 275,802 7,218
Included in assets of disposal SFADBEABIEHE
group classified as held for ZHEARIEE
sale 31 - 82,152
275,802 89,370
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M358 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEFEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as
an exempted company with limited liability and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The address of the registered office of the
Company is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company’s principal activity is investment
holding and the principal activities of its
subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes
38 and 20 respectively to the consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong
Dollars (HK$’°000), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The accounting policies adopted in the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2009 are consistent with
those followed in the preparation of the Group’s
annual financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2008 except as described below.

The Group has applied, for the first time,
a number of new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations (the “new
HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”),
which are effective for the Group’s financial year

beginning on 1 January 2009.

—REH

AKABANBREZIMR I ERRE
BRAF MERDESTBHERZFE
BRAR([BERAT]) £

NN 7] 2 7E M P = E it A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda °

KRBz EEBE£KEREER  MEK
BAERBMEANTD 2EEX£K 2 BIEHRN
R HRERMFEI8 K 20 °

REMBHRRUTBT(FEBIT)Z5
BRATBARRZINEER

FERFTR] RAGERT BB M BREE
(T EBHMHHREER D)

RRBEZE-_ZFEZFAFT-A=+—HL
FEZRERGAVBRRARAZE
ARRRARRAKEEBE_ZTZTNF
ToZA=T-HLEFEZFEVHRE
FRX &R —B  HETHRERD o

AEBERERAZEHEBSHTMAS
(Félﬁé%ﬁmﬁéj)ﬁEﬁZ%ﬁ%‘T&,@éﬂ%
TR BRI AR ZRE(HE R UBR
.:L?EEJJJ)’ tEHBBMBREZEIR
—EZENF-A-HRAKRZAEEHTEK
FEERH-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= 8 M58 R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENFF+-—HA=1—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS (Amendments)

HKFRS (Amendments)

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27

(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 and
HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 13

HK(IFRIC) — Int 15

HK(IFRIC) — Int 16

HK(IFRIC) — Int 18

* Except for the amendment to HKFRS 5 that is
effective for the annual periods beginning on or

after 1 July 2009.

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2008*

Improvement to HKFRSs issued in
2009 in relation to the amendment
to paragraph 80 of HKAS 39

Presentation of Financial Statements

Borrowing Costs

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or
Associate

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments

Operating Segments

Embedded Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Agreements for the Construction of

Real Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation

Transfers of Assets from Customers
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M358 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEFEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The application of the new HKFRSs has resulted
in the following changes:

(@) HKAS 1 (Revised) “Presentation of Financial
Statements” separates owner and non-
owner changes in equity. The statement of
changes in equity includes only details of
transactions with owners, with non-owner
changes in equity presented as a single
line. In addition, the standard introduced
the statement of comprehensive income,
it presents all items of recognised income
and expense, either in one single statement,
or in two linked statements. The Group has
elected to present two linked statements.

(b) The amendments to HKFRS 7 “Improving
Disclosures about Financial Instruments?”,
enhances disclosures about fair value
measurement and liquidity risk of the
Group’s financial instruments. A three-level
fair value hierarchy has been introduced
to categorise the fair value measurements
according to the degree to which they
are based on observable market data.
The Group has not provided comparative
information for the expanded disclosures in
accordance with the transitional provisions
set out in the amendments.

(c) HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” replaces
HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting”. The
new standard requires a ‘management
approach’, under which segment information
is presented on the same basis as that
used for internal reporting purposes. This
has resulted in an increase in the number of
reportable segments presented. In addition,
the segments are reported in a manner
that is more consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker.

Save as described above, there is no material
effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the current or prior accounting
periods by adopting the new HKFRSs, thus no
prior period adjustment has been required.
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AL FE

3. IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not early adopted the following
“new HKFRSs” that have been issued but are not
yet effective.

HKFRS (Amendments) ~ Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of
improvements to HKFRSs in 2008

HKFRS (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 20092

HKFRS 1 (Revised) First time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards'

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)  Additional Exemptions for First-time
Adopters®

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)  Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions®

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations'

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures®

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements'

HKAS 32 (Amendment)  Classification of Rights Issues*
HKAS 39 (Amendment)  Eligible Hedged ltems'

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 Prepayment of a Minimum Funding
(Amendment) Requirement?
HK(IFRIC) — Int 17 Distribution of Non-cash Assets to
Owners'
HK(IFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments®

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009 and 1 January 2010, as appropriate

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2010

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 February 2010

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2010

< Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2011

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEFEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business
Combination” may affect the accounting for
business combination for which the acquisition
date is on or after 1 January 2010. HKAS 27
(Revised) “Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements” will affect the accounting treatment
for changes in the Group’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control, which will be accounted for as equity
transactions.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” introduces
new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets and will be
effective from 1 January 2013, with early
application permitted. Under HKFRS 9, all
recognised financial assets that are currently in
the scope of HKAS 39 will be measured at either
amortised cost or fair value. A debt instrument
that (1) is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows and (2) has contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost. All other debt
instruments and equity instruments must be
measured at fair value with gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The application of
HKFRS 9 might effect the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial assets.

The Group is in the process of assessing the
potential impact of these new HKFRSs but is not
yet in a position to determine whether these new
HKFRSs will have a significant impact on how
its results of operations and financial position
are prepared and presented. These new HKFRSs
may result in changes in the future as to how the
results and financial position are prepared and
presented.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable HKFRSs, which is a collective
term that includes all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”), and Interpretations (“Ints”)
issued by the HKICPA and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements included applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under historical cost
convention except for certain financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss,
investment properties, conversion options
embedded in convertible note receivable
and convertible note designated as at
fair value through profit or loss which
are carried at fair value. The preparation
of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the
Company’s accounting policies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z -—FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of preparation (Continued)
The Group’s books and records are
maintained in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”)
as the directors of the Company control
and monitor the performance and financial
position of the Group in HK$.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
special purpose entities) over which
the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operation policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that
are currently exercisable are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4., TEESTHEME(#HE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (b) HEBRE(E
Subsidiaries (Continued) B8 A e (4

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used
to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries
by the Group. The cost of an acquisition
is measured as the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of
exchange, plus costs directly attributable to
the acquisition. ldentifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date, irrespective of the extent
of any non-controlling interest. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
the cost of acquisition is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated income
statement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEFEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4., TEESTHEME(#HE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (b) HEBRE(E
Subsidiaries (Continued) B8 A e (4

All significant inter-company transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies
are eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which
the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Interests in associates
are accounted by the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at
cost. The Group’s interest in associates
includes goodwill (net of any impairment
losses) identified in acquisition.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4., TEESTHEME(#HE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (b) HEBRE(E

Associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities
of associates are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, interests in associates
are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost as adjusted for
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and of changes in
equity of the associate, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share
of losses of an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for
and a liability is recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of that associate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 EZ —FEZENF+ -F=+—HILFE
4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4. FEGHBERBESR)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (b) HZEEE(E)
Associates (Continued) BENa(E)

On acquisition of the investment any
difference between the cost of the
investment and the investor’s share of the
net fair values of the associate's identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
3 (Revised) “Business Combinations”.

Therefore:

(i) Goodwill relating to an associate is
included in the carrying amount of
the investment. However, amortisation
of that goodwill is not permitted
and is therefore not included in the
determination of the investor’s share of
the associate’s profits or losses.

(ii) Any excess of the investor’'s share of
the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and

contingent liabilities over the cost of

the investment is excluded from the
carrying amount of the investment and
is instead included as income in the
determination of the investor’s share
of the associate’s profit or loss in
the period in which the investment is

acquired.

Where a group entity transacts with an
associate of the Group, profits and losses
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the relevant associate.

Dilution gains and losses in associates
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4. FEETBRRBE@R)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Goodwill (c) EmE

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost P2 T 5 W B PR AN B A £ (B FE A 1
of an acquisition over the fair value of the WEEM B AR EERKEER 2
Group’s share of the net identifiable assets EEFEZATEEZH2HE -
of the acquired subsidiaries, associates RBRBHBLARNEEZEED
and jointly controlled entities at the date REERTRBILESY o AUREEE
of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of EARRNHEEHERBAEEZ
subsidiaries is presented separately in the EMEDETRENR EFRERE
statement of financial position. Goodwill MRz HD BURAZHESE
on acquisitions of associates or jointly HEETHERNS  WURRRER
controlled entities is included in interests AREREIER BB 2RERE
in associates or jointly controlled entities RFHEE o

and is tested for impairment as part of
the overall balance. Separately recognised
goodwill is tested annually for impairment
and carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Impairment losses on
goodwill are not reversed.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4. TEESHEME(HE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Goodwill (Continued) (c) BEB(E

For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill arising from an acquisition is
allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit first, and then to the other
assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement. An impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
reporting periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary,
jointly-controlled entity and associate, the
gain or loss on disposal is calculated by
reference to the net assets at the date of
disposal, including the attributable amount
of goodwill which remains unamortised and
any relevant reserves, as appropriate.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4. FESHBEBE#E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Revenue recognition (d) Wz
Revenue from distribution of films is £ SR ERTEEMSE

recognised when video products or master

TER
BEMHNETEFRIARE
R ABR ©

EAS
materials of films are delivered to customers %
and the title has passed.

EREFRTEFBUREESESR
THRNETFEFRBANR-

Revenue from sub-licensing of film rights
is recognised upon delivery of master
materials of films to customers.

Revenue from sales of financial assets

HEEAFEFABERZEHME

at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised when sale and purchase
contracts became unconditional.

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in
advance, from properties under operating
lease is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the respective leases.

Service fee income is recognised when the

EFSREINRESAAREERK
B A BR ©

HEWA(BRELEHATZY
ERPRECBRECHEHES)NER
FEREZEZENFHAR-

AR 7% B WA TR R AR B B A BR o

services are rendered.

REZBREBVATRBRRAEKS
ZRERIHE S B AR ©

Dividend income from investments is
recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(e)

Interest income is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the interest rate applicable.

Impairment of assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment of assets, or
whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated. An
impairment loss is recognised whenever
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is charged to the consolidated income
statement in the reporting period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, when the impairment loss
is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant policy for that revalued asset.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
higher of its net selling price and value in
use. The net selling price is the amount
obtainable from the sale of an asset in an
arm’s length transaction while value in use
is the present value of estimated future cash
flows expected to arise from the continuing
use of any asset and from its disposal at
the end of its useful life. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of asset that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss of goodwill is reversed
only if the loss was caused by a specific
external event of an exceptional nature that
is not expected to recur, and the increase
in recoverable amount relates the reversal
effect of that specific event.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M5 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Reversals of impairment losses (Continued)

A reversal of impairment losses is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior periods.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to the consolidated income statement in the
reporting period in which the reversals are
recognised.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of
the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the reporting period.
Taxable profit is the profit for the reporting
period, determined in accordance with the
rules established by the taxation authorities,
upon which income taxes are payable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be
payable or recoverable on differences
between the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the balance sheet
liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible
temporary difference can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill (or negative goodwill) or from the
initial recognition (other than a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investment in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part
of the assets to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M5 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the reporting
period when the liability is settled or the
asset realised. Deferred tax is charged
or credited in the consolidated income
statement, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also dealt
with in equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after the property,
plant and equipment has been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the consolidated
income statement in the reporting period
in which it is incurred. In situations where
it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in
the future economic benefits expected to
be obtained from the use of the property,
plant and equipment, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of that
asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the
cost of property, plant and equipment,
using the straight-line method, over their
estimated useful lives. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 33.3%
Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 15%

The gain or loss arising from disposal
of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the
net sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset and is recognised in
the consolidated income statement in the

reporting period the asset is derecognised.

Investment properties

On initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are
measured using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair
values of investment properties are included
in the consolidated income statement in the
reporting period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M5 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised
upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use
or no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the investment
properties (calculated as the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the consolidated income statement in the
reporting period in which the investment
properties are derecognised.

Investments in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enterprise controlled
by the Company. Control exists when
the Company has the power, directly or
indirectly, to govern the financial and
operating policies of an enterprise so as
to obtain benefits from its activities. In the
Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less provision for impairment losses.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-—HA=1—HIEFE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

(k)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately
are recognised initially at cost. After
initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses.
Expenditure on internally generated goodwill
and brands is recognised as an expense in

the reporting period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis
over the assets’ estimated useful lives from
the date when they are available for use.

Both the estimate useful lives and method
of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Inventories

Inventories on finished goods are stated
at lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out
method.

Inventories on stock of properties, which are
held for trading, are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value is determined by reference to sale
proceeds received after the reporting period
less selling expenses, or by management
estimates based on the prevailing market
conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M58 R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEFEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised on the statement of financial
position when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in consolidated
income statement.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified
into one of the four categories, including
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments and available-for-
sale financial assets. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace. The
Group’s major financial assets fall within
the category of loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets
respectively and the accounting policies
adopted are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M58 R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over
the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments other
than those financial assets designated as
at fair value through profit or loss, of which
interest income is included in net gains or
losses.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables including other receivables,
short-term loans receivable, short-term loan
to a fellow subsidiary and time deposits,
bank balances and cash are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).
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4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated
or not classified as any of the other
categories under HKAS 39. At the end of
each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial
assets are measured at fair value. Changes
in fair value are recognised in equity, except
for impairment losses and foreign exchange
gains and losses, until the financial asset is
derecognised, at which time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in
equity is removed from equity and
recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income (see accounting
policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).

For the purpose of recognising foreign
exchange gains and losses, a monetary
available-for-sale financial asset is treated
as if it were carried at amortised cost in
the foreign currency. Accordingly, for such
a financial asset, exchange differences
resulting from changes in carrying amount
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

However, interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale
financial assets are recognised in statement
of comprehensive income. Impairment
losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not reverse in subsequent
reporting periods. For available-for-sale
debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss has two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those
designated at fair value through profit or
loss on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M5 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4, FESTBEBE(E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(I) Financial instruments (Continued) )y =WMIAE
Financial assets (Continued) THEE &

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for
trading if:

(i) it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near future; or

(i) it is a part of an identified portfolio of
financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

(iii) it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial
asset held for trading may be designated at
fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition if:

(i) such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

(i) the financial asset forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (Continued)

(iii) it forms parts of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives,
and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability)
to be designated at fair value through
profit or loss.

At end of each reporting period subsequent
to initial recognition, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are measured
at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair
value through profit or loss, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been
impacted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For an available-for sale equity investment,
a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of that investment below its cost
is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective
evidence of impairment could include:

(i) significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or counterparty; or

(iiy default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

(iii) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset,
such as trade receivables, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually
are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised
cost, an impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement when
there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the
amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment loss
will not be reversed in subsequent reporting
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are
recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectable,
it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent reporting period,
the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale
equity investments will not be reversed
in the consolidated income statement in
subsequent reporting periods. Any increase
in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognised directly in equity.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
issued by a group entity are classified
according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the asset
of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M58 R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

The Group’s financial liabilities are mainly
comprised of other financial liabilities which
include accruals and other payable and
amounts due to fellow subsidiaries which
fall within the category of other financial
liabilities. These financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method.

Convertible notes payable

Convertible notes payable issued by the
Company that contain both the liability
and conversion option components are
classified separately into respective items
on initial recognition. Conversion option
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments is classified as an equity
instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between
the proceeds of the issue of the convertible
notes payable and the fair value assigned
to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert
the notes into equity, is included in equity
(convertible bonds reserve).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M5 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n

Financial instruments (Continued)

Convertible notes payable (Continued)

In subsequent reporting periods, the
liability component of the convertible
notes payable is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The
equity component, represented by the
option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible notes reserve until
the embedded option is exercised (in which
case the balance stated in convertible
notes reserve will be transferred to share
premium). Where the option remains
unexercised at the expiry date, the balance
stated in convertible notes reserve will be
released to the retained profits. No gain
or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement upon conversion or
expiration of the option.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value at the date a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of
each reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss from fair value changes is recognised
in consolidated income statement.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative
host contracts are treated as separate
derivatives when their economic risks and
characteristics are not closely related to
those of the host contacts and the host
contacts are not measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M58 R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets on
derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised directly in equity
is recognised in consolidation income
statement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when
the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid is recognised in
consolidated income statement.

Determination of fair value

The fair value for financial instruments
traded in active markets at the end of the
reporting period is based on their quoted
market price or dealer price quotations (bid
price for long positions and ask price for
short positions), without any deduction for
transaction costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M5 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n

(m)

(n)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Determination of fair value (Continued)

For all other financial instruments not
listed in an active market, the fair value is
determined by using appropriate valuation
techniques. Valuation techniques include
discounted cash flow analysis, comparison
to similar instruments for which market
observable prices exist, option pricing
models and other relevant valuation models.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate. The amount of the
provision is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, other
short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less,
and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M58 R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #E—ZEZEAF+-H=1—

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Transaction costs are incremental costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition,
issue or disposal of a financial asset
or financial liability, including fees and
commissions paid to agents, advisers,
brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory
agencies and securities exchanges, and
transfer taxes and duties. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases
when the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets concerned to the
Group. Assets held under finance leases
are capitalised at the lower of fair values
or the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding liability
to the lessor, net of interest charges, is
included in the consolidated statement
of financial position as a finance lease
obligation. Finance costs are charged to
the consolidated income statement over the
term of the relevant lease so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations for
each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M5 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(a)

Leases (Continued)

All other leases are classified as operating
leases and the annual rentals are charged
to the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the relevant lease
term.

Translation of foreign currencies

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the functional currency). The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at the rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting date of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying
net investment hedges.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M58 R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4, FESTBEBE(E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(q) Translation of foreign currencies (q) IMEEHIR(E
(Continued)
Transactions and balances (Continued) XER46 (1B

Translation differences on non-monetary
items, such as equity instruments held
at fair value through profit or loss, are
reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Transaction difference on non-
monetary items, such as equities classified
as available-for-sale financial assets, are
included in the fair value reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the end
of the reporting period;

(b) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M5 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q) Translation of foreign currencies

(r)

(Continued)

Group companies (Continued)

(c) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component
of equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

Employee benefits

Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability for bonuses
when there is a contractual obligation and
the amount can be estimated reliably.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which
are held in separate trustee-administered
funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M58 R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefit obligations (Continued)

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% to 10%
of the employees’ relevant income, with the
employees’ contributions subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000.
The Group’s contributions to the MPF
Scheme are expensed as incurred. 5% of
relevant income vests immediately upon
the completion of service in the relevant
service period, while the remaining portion
vests in accordance with the MPF Scheme’s
vesting scales. Where employees leave the
MPF Scheme prior to the full vesting of the
employer’s contributions, the amount of
forfeited contributions is used to reduce the
contributions payable by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M5 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based compensation

The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of
the share options and restricted share
awards is recognised as an expense in the
consolidated income statement.

The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined with reference
to the fair value of the share options and
restricted share awards granted. At the
end of each reporting period, the Company
revises its estimates of the number of
share options that are expected to become
exercisable and the number of restricted
share awards that become vested. It
recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated
income statement, and a corresponding
adjustment to equity in the consolidated
statement of financial position will be made
over the remaining vesting periods.

The proceeds received, net of any directly
attributable transaction costs, are credited
to share capital and share premium
accounts when the share options are
exercised and when the restricted share
awards are vested.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M5 R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Share options granted to consultants

(t)

Share options issued in exchange for goods
or services are measured at the fair values
of the goods or services received, unless
that fair value cannot be reliably measured,
in which case the goods or services
received are measured by reference to the
fair value of the share options granted.
The fair value received are recognised as
expenses immediately, unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets.
Corresponding adjustment has been made
to equity (share options reserve).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the
construction of any qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use. Other borrowing costs
are expensed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M58 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z _—FEZEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4. FTEESHEME(HE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(u) Contingent liabilities and contingent () BAEBRIREE

assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation
that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also
be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it
is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably. A
contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so
that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset
that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. A contingent
asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M5 R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Related party transaction

Parties are considered to be related
if one party has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to
be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influences.
A transaction is considered to be a related
party transaction when there is a transfer
of resources or obligations between related
parties.

Financial guarantees issued and
provisions

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee
(being the transaction price, unless the fair
value can otherwise be reliably estimated)
is initially recognised as deferred income
within creditors and accruals. Where
consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on initial
recognition of any deferred income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M58 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z _—FEZEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Financial guarantees issued and

(x)

provisions (Continued)

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a present obligation as a result of a
past event, and it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligations.
Provisions are measured at the directors’
best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the obligation at the end of the
reporting period, and are discounted to
present value where the effect is material.

Disposal groups classified as held for
sale and discontinued operations

Disposal groups classified as held for
sale

A disposal group is classified as held for
sale if it is highly probable that its carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing
use and the disposal group is available for
sale in its present condition. A disposal
group is a group of assets to be disposed of
together as a group in a single transaction,
and liabilities directly associated with
those assets that will be transferred in the
transaction.

Immediately before classification as held
for sale, the measurement of all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group is
brought up-to-date in accordance with the
accounting policies before the classification.
Then, on initial classification as held for
sale and until disposal, the disposal group,
is recognised at the lower of its carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 EHZ—ZFEZENF+=-H=+—

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

Disposal groups classified as held
for sale and discontinued operations
(Continued)

Disposal groups classified as held for
sale (Continued)

Impairment losses on initial classification
as held for sale, and on subsequent
remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in the consolidated income
statement. As long as a disposal group is
classified as held for sale, the non-current
asset is not depreciated or amortised.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component
of the Group’s business, the operations
and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group
and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area
of operations, or is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of a separate
major line of business or geographical area
of operation, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation
occurs upon disposal or when the operation
meets the criteria to be classified as held
for sale (as referred to in (i) above), if
earlier. It also occurs when the operation is
abandoned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x) Disposal groups classified as held
for sale and discontinued operations
(Continued)

Discontinued operations (Continued)

Where an operation is classified as
discontinued, a single amount is presented
on the face of the consolidated income
statement, which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised
on the measurement to fair value less
costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the
assets or disposal group(s) constituting
the discontinued operation.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
reporting period are discussed below.

TESTRRBE#E)

(x) PERAFFHEZHEARNRER
LSRR (F
EBRILEEXE (EF)

MEEREZEIE/EKLEEE A
REGERBERERIITR - B

- CRIESEEBIRBRRE
@ R

- RBRAVEREERSNKFAES
BETHEBMERZRBERR
B IR EREBRERL
REXB cEEYHEARI
R ZRBTERE -

AR & et fh 5T & M

HERAHSRITENG  LRB\EBE
ERLHOGRZETHGE BEEEH
BRTHEAREZHARENH R
A e

REBMERRELMEARRBER - B2
BRffATTNEER  ROSEABRE
REE - RAKEERT -—2HH &
EHREBEZRABFLEERNARE 2GS
RBRFABUT ©

Annual Report 2009 %R | 109



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M58 R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets

The Group performs annual tests on
whether there has been impairment
of goodwill and intangible assets
in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in notes 4(c) and 4(j) to
the consolidated financial statements
respectively. The recoverable amounts
of cash-generating units are determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates
and assumptions made by management on
the future operation of the business, pre-
tax discount rates, and other assumptions
underlying the value-in-use calculations.
Information about the assumptions and the
risk factors on impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets is stated in notes 18 and
19 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Trade receivables

The aged debt profile of trade debtors is
reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that
the trade debtor balances are collectible
and follow up actions are promptly carried
out if the agreed credit periods have been
exceeded. However, from time to time, the
Group may experience delays in collection.
Where recoverability of trade debtor
balances is called into doubts, specific
provisions for impairments are made based
on credit status of the customers, the aged
analysis of the trade receivable balances
and write-off history. Certain receivables
may be initially identified as collectible,
yet subsequently become uncollectible
and result in a subsequent write-off of the
related receivables to the consolidated
income statement. Changes in the
collectibility of trade receivables for which
provisions are not made could affect our

results of operations.
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5 8 M5 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group
estimates the useful lives of property, plant
and equipment in order to determine the
amount of depreciation expenses to be
recorded. The useful lives are estimated
at the time the assets are acquired based
on historical experience, the expected
usage, wear and tear of the assets, as well
as technical obsolescence arising from
changes in the market demands or service
output of the assets. The Group also
performs annual reviews on whether the
assumptions made on useful lives continue
to be valid.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes
in numerous jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the
worldwide provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

6.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the chief
operating decision-maker that are used to make
strategic decisions.

For management purposes, the Group currently
engages in four operating divisions — (i)
distribution; (ii) sub-licensing; (iii) sales of
financial assets and (iv) provision of management
services. The segmentations are based on the
information about the operations of the Group
that management uses to make decisions.

Principal activities are as follows:

(i) Distribution Distribution of films

(ii)  Sub-licensing Sub-licensing of film

rights
(iii)  Sales of Sales of financial assets
financial at fair value through
assets profit or loss

(iv)  Provision of Provision of management

management  services to concierge
services departments of gaming
promoters appointed by

Macau casinos

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic
business units that operate different activities.
They are managed separately because each
business unit has different market and requires
different marketing strategies.

Further, the business units are also managed
to operate in different countries separately.
Revenue and result are attributed to countries on
the basis of the assets located.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. EEIHE
An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment REEREBIZEESIE D 27 23R
results, assets, liabilities, and other selected PHEE -EE - BERHMBRENK
financial information for the year by operating EROMOT
segment is as follow:
For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE-ZEENFE+=-H=1+—HLEE
Sales of  Provision of
financial management
Distribution Sub-licensing assets services Consolidated
) e Rt
BT BREGE SHEE EERE &8

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET 7 FEr 7

Continuing operations BEREER
Revenue #
Revenue from external customers REHNEE R - - 14,220 60,491 74,711
Results EF
Segment results for reportable segment 2o Bz H$E - - 14,220 59,129 73,349
Other revenue and other income EtkER S 11,905
Administrative expenses G (17,563)
Finance costs HaER (8,086)
Share of results of associates BlBENT%E 724,988
Profit before taxation and discontinued operations HIBFIERDAL ELLRAHA 784,503
Income tax credit FrEHER 14,493
Profit for the year from continuing operations ~ AAREEABLEREEE
attributable to owners of the Company BEEB REE R 799,086
Discontinued operations BRILEEER
Loss for the year from discontinued operations ~ AAFEEAEERARALE
attributable to owners of the Company EERVARERE (5,576)
Core profit (excluding major non-cash items) ~ Bl&H (FEEIEXRS
ER) 793,510
Major non-cash items ITEREER
— Adjustment to cost of combination in respect — RBAEEETKEZ
of an acquisition in prior year AREARE 103,434
— Impairment loss recognised in respect of — ERDEVEEHERR
intangible assets (117,320)
— Loss arising on change in fair value in respect — ERABREEAS 2 ik
of conversion options embedded in BRELLTEEDREY
convertible note receivable pd (64,542)
— Loss on disposal of subsidiaries — LENBAR B (48,868)
— Loss on deemed disposal of an associate — BEHEREAT Y EE (6,629)
— Loss on partial disposal of an associate — B tER= N ER (280,020)
— Gain arising on change in fair value in respect — KERATEFAERER
of convertible note designated s at fair valuie ~ TRRZEAFERY
through profit or loss Erobs 95,244
— Loss on cancellation of convertible note payable — #EEATRREE 2 EiE (18,247)
416,562
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. EEDHGE
Sales of  Provision of
financial management
Distribution Sub-licensing assets services Consolidated
#E Rt
BT BREGE SHEE EE R &a
HK$’000 HK$’°000 HK$’°000 HK$’°000 HK$’000
FEn FEn FEn TEn FEn
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Assets BE
Segment assets for reportable segment 2RI P2z aHEE
— Hong Kong — &8 56,979 - 114,054 - 171,033
— Macau — B - - - 110,015 110,015
56,979 - 114,054 110,015 281,048
Interests in associates REENR 2 ER 641,908
Unallocated corporate assets AIREEEE 557,816
Consolidated total assets GREESE 1,480,772
Sales of  Provision of
financial management
Distribution Sub-licensing assets services Consolidated
#E Rt
BT EREOE SRHEE EERH &e
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr
Liabilities af
Segment liabilities for reportable segment ERA Bz ABEE
— Hong Kong — &k (40,207) - (13,713) - (58,290)
— Macau — B - - - (31,306)  (31,306)
(40,207) - (13M3)  (31,306)  (85,226)
Unallocated corporate liabilities AREEEE (24,502)
Consolidated total liabilities GREfAE (109,728)
Other segment information A HER
Depreciation and amortisation EREH 448 - - 85 533
Additions to non-current assets (other than FEFRBER (SRMIAR
financial instruments and deferred tax assets) ~ EEHEEERI) - 235 - 1 236
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. EEDIGE)
For the year ended 31 December 2008 BE—ZEENF+=-A=+—HILEEFE
Sales of  Provision of
financial  management
Distribution  Sub-licensing assets services  Consolidated
e Rt
B EBREME SHEE ER R &a
Continuing operations FERERE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fér Fér Fér Fér Fér
Revenue g
Revenue from external customers REHNEPZ UG - 2,000 (962) 18,215 19,253
Results Y |
Segment results for reportable segment CES kbR 3 - 2,000 (962) 17,722 18,760
Other revenue and other income EtlER EbBA 2421
Administrative expenses TR (26,462)
Finance costs HEER (3,350)
Loss before taxation and discontinued operations HIBHERDAL FLLHHER (8,625)
Income tax credit frEfRER 13,854
Profit for the year from continuing operations ~ AARHEABLRERE
attributable to owners of the Company BexRoREE A 5,229
Discontinued operations BRLEEEE
Loss for the year from discontinued operations ~ AATEEABEREDALE
attributable to owners of the Company EXUVAEERE (127,172)
Core loss (excluding major non-cash item) B FERTEELER) (122,543)
Major non-cash item IEHREER
— Impairment loss recognised in — EEABEHE
respect of goodwil | (101,965)
(224,508)
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. EEDIE)
Sales of  Provision of
financial management
Distribution  Sub-licensing assets services  Consolidated
#E Rt
BT EREOE SHEE ERRE &4
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
Assets and liabilities EERER
Assets EE
Segment assets for reportable segment 2RI A HEE
— Hong Kong — A 9,559 2,019 - - 11,578
- Macau — A - - - 461,301 461,301
9,559 2,019 - 461,301 472,879
Unallocated corporate assets FABEEEE 1,989
Assets of disposal group classified as PEARELEL
held for sale HEARIERE 1,049,412
Consolidated total assets GREESE 1,524,280
Liabilities &f
Segment liabilities for reportable segment CEE V=t
— Hong Kong — &k (722) - - - (722)
— Macau —2f - - - (54,829) (54,829)
(12) - —(483)  (55,549)
Unallocated corporate liahilities FIREEEE (146,700)
Liabilities of disposal group classified as PERBELEZ
held for sale HERRIEE (427,612)
Consolidated total liabilities RaBBeR (629,857)
Other segment information HitAHEs
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH
— Continuing operations — BELERE 691 - - - 691
— Discontinued operations — BRALEEEE 4,342
5,033
Additions to non-current assets (other than AEXRDER (SRIARE -
financial instruments and deferred tax assets)  EHEEERD)
— Continuing operations — BELERE 864 - - - 864
— Discontinued operations — BRLEEEE 63,359
— Unallocated expenses — ROBEX 1,240
65,463
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were
no inter-segment sales in the year (2008: Nil).

Segment results represent the profit earned/(loss
incurred) by each segment without allocation
of administrative expenses, finance costs and
income tax credit/(expense). This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision maker
for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments:

— all assets are allocated to reportable
segments other than goodwill. Assets used
jointly by segments are allocated on the
basis of the revenues earned by individual
segments; and

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable
segments other than current and deferred
tax liabilities. Liabilities for which segments
are jointly liable are allocated in proportion
to segment assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. EESBE
Geographical information i & & K
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and AEEFZEREBRBEMALE - X5H
Macau. The Group’s revenue from continuing i EE D Zﬂiﬁ?-r,.;?é‘é'%ﬁﬁiﬁl‘%
operations from external customers and FrzRaRkEBHEIERBEE 2ERF
information about its non-current assets by FNATF -

geographical location are detailed below:

Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
REHMEF 2 W FRBEE
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEBAE ZBEN\F —BENE ZBIN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET FET

Hong Kong b 14,220 1,038 679,441 2,327
Macau 4 60,491 18,215 339,537 456,857

74,711 19,253 1,018,978 459,184

Information about major customers FBETEREFZER

Included in revenues arising from provision of REEERSEE 4 2 W %60,491,000
management services of HK$60,491,000 (2008: BX(ZZEZE )\ £ 18,215,000 T )
HK$18,215,000) are revenues of HK$22,684,000 BREETFTAEEREAEFEELE Z
(2008: HK$9,742,000) which arose from sales to I 22,684,000 (= & Z N\ &£ :
the Group’s largest customer. 9,742,000/ T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

7. TURNOVER 7. XX
Continuing
operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
57 | BALL
Texy Texn &4
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

ZERAE ZERNE CREAE ZRTNF CREAE SRR
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET 7T FEr FEn FEn

Sub-licensing of film rights BREZRTE - 2,000 - - - 2,000
Sales of financial assets at fair value ~ BERATEFARHEEZ

through profit o loss, net (note) SHEE FE W) 14,220 (962) - - 14,220 (962)
Rental income 20N - = 3,102 20,826 3,102 20,826
Service fee income BHERA 60,491 18,215 - - 60,491 18,215

74,1 19,253 3,102 20,826 77,813 40,079

Note: Kiat -
The gains or losses from sales of financial assets at fair HERAFEFABERZERNEENELEZR
value through profit or loss are recorded in “turnover” on B IR R AR ELE A & EE R ECR o
a net basis.
An analysis of sales of financial assets at fair value HERAFEFTAEBERZEMEEZI TN
through profit or loss is as follows: T

2009 2008
—EEAF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Proceed from disposal of financial HEZRAFEFABIZRZ
assets at fair value through profit £REEZFFBFIE
or loss 15,470 2,627
Cost of financial assets at fair value QA FEFTABRRZEH
through profit or loss BEZHAR (1,250) (3,589)
14,220 (962)
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

8. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 8. HttmRkHmuA
Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Consolidated
RELEER BALEEEH &4
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

“EIAF CETNE CEEAF CERTE CEEAF CERR
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
7 FET FEr FEr FET FET

Other revenue Rl
Interest income on loan to arelated ~ AEBATEH
company ZHIBRA 3,072 - - = 3,972 =
Interest income on convertible note ~ ERTRREE
receivable ZHIEWA 1,130 - - = 1,130 =
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZFSMA 1 2,427 465 1,212 466 3,639
5,103 2,427 465 1,212 5,568 3,639
Other income 010N
Imputed interest income on: THEEEERIE
— convertible note receivable — BUTRRZE 881 = - = 881 =
— promissory note receivable — EWA{Z 5,901 - - - 5,901 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and  HEWE BER
equipment B G 20 - - - 20 -
Sundry income BB - - 47 45 47 45
6,802 - 47 45 6,849 45
11,905 2,421 512 1,257 12,417 3,684
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

9. PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 9. RERA (FEE)
Profit/(loss) from operations has been arrived KRR (BR) SR THEE !

after charging:

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
FELEER BRIEREEK &a
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

“ERNE 2% “ERNE ZERNE “ERNE ZEINE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FEr FEr Fér FEr Fér Fér
Auditors’ remuneration wEmme 600 600 - - 600 600
Depreciation of property, plant and 4% BER
equipment REHE 533 691 1,293 4,342 1,826 5,033
Impairment loss recognised in
respect ERAEARY
of trade receivables FERERE 396 - - - 396 -
Loss on disposal of property, ~ H&E¥E BER
plant and equipment FEER - 3 - - - 3
Share-based payment expenses in HLERRENRA
respect of consultancy services AT ZBX 1,330 985 - - 1,330 985
Operating lease rentals in respect HEE
of rented premises mEAnfe 1,403 1,640 19 174 1,422 1,814
Staff costs including directors’ ~ BIFRA
remuneration (BEESHE)
— salaries and other allowances — H& R Ef2E 6,394 6,808 942 4,615 7,336 11,423
— contributions to retrement  — &4AEA
benefits scheme HERE 110 143 - - 110 143
— share-based payment — RAFA %A
eXpenses ZB% 2,399 2,623 - - 2,399 2,623
8,903 9,574 942 4,615 9,845 14,189
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. MEEH
Continuing operations  Discontinued operations Consolidated
HEEERE BALEEEK &a
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

ZERAE ZERNE CREAE ZRTNF CREAE SRR
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET 7T FiEr FEn FEn

Interest expense on secured bank loan EREERREGEEZ

wholly repayable within five years FERRTERNEEX - - 5,678 25,289 5,678 25,289
Imputed interest expense on convertible ERTREZE
notes payable RENSHER 8,086 3,350 - — 8,086 3,350

8,086 3,350 5,678 25,289 13,764 28,639
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11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate amount of emoluments payable
to the directors of the Company during the
year was HK$360,000 (2008: HK$360,000).
The remuneration of each director for the years
ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 is as below:

11.

Salaries and
Fees bonuses
Name of director ESHZ ik FER#A

2009 2008 2009

2008

5 8 M5 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

EEME

ERENFAADEEZMEAES
360,000 T(=ZF & )\ ¥ : 360,000
%) BE-BERER-BBNFF=
A=Et-BLEE SEEB2HHM
T

Contributions to
retirement Share-based
benefit scheme  payment expenses Total

BURAHERR AROFARMZAX Bt
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

-REAE TRE\G RAE SRI\E SR SRI\E SRR SRIE SR SRR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS’000 HK$'000 HKS$’000 HK$'000

T8t TEr TEr  TEn  FEr  TFEr  TEr  TEr  TEr TEn

Mr. Heung Wah Keung HERLE - - - - - - - - - -
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany ~ BEAEZL - - - - - - - - - -
Mr. Tang Chak Lam, Gilbert ~ EPEMEE 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul MESEE 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Lien Wai Hung BRERE 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
360 360 - - - - - - 360 360

During the year, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the directors of the Company as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. None of
the directors of the Company has waived any
emoluments during the year.

TR AEETEGADTES M
T EAMAREB 2 RBRNBERS
& - MEXRQBESNF X HE T
ﬁo
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 12. AEBREHFAL
The emoluments paid to the five highest paid FRENFAEEEEZRSH AL 2B
individuals of the Group during the year were as LWT :
follow:
2009 2008
ZEBAF —EZN\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries and other allowances e R HMIER, 4,037 4,699
Contributions to retirement benefits R{RKERIFHEIELTT
scheme 42 48
Share-based payment expenses NSRBI 907 376
4,986 5,123
None of the five highest paid individuals of the NREBREReHFATHRIERNT Z
Group was a director of the Company (2008: EE(ZEENE HE) o
Nil).
Their emoluments were within the following BEZMENFUTEER :
bands:

Number of employees

BEAR
2009 2008
—EThF —ETN\F
Nil - HK$1,000,000 Z£%1,000,00087T 4 3
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 %1,500,000/8 7T -
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001t £2,000,000/& 7T - —
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001% 7T %2,500,000/% T 1 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

13. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)

13.

Continuing operations

FrigBiE s, (Bx)

Discontinued operations Consolidated

BESEER BRIEREEHR o
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEENE  ZEI\F ZEENE  ZEE\E ZEERE ZEINE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FEr FEr FiEr FET FET
Current tax credit REHERS - 13,854 - - - 13,854
Deferred taxation (note 37) BERE (hits7) 14,493 = (601) 22,214 13,892 22,214
14,493 13,854 (601) 22,214 13,892 36,068

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax, the PRC
Corporate Income Tax or Macau Complementary
Profits Tax has been made for the year ended
31 December 2009 (2008: Nil) as the Group
either has no estimated assessable profits or
its estimated assessable profits are wholly
absorbed by the estimated tax losses brought
forward.

On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative
Council passed the Revenue Bill 2008 which
includes reduction in corporate profits tax
rate by 1% to 16.5% effective from the year
of assessment 2008/2009. Accordingly, Hong
Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profits of certain
subsidiaries in Hong Kong for the year ended 31
December 2009 (2008: 16.5%).

An objection was lodged by Ocean Shores
Licensing Limited (“OSLL”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, against
the estimated assessments for the years of
assessment from 1994/1995 to 2000/2001 in
relation to the offshore claims of sub-licensing
income. Provision for taxation of HK$22,238,000
had been made in the Company’s 2007 audited
consolidated financial statements. In February
2008, OSLL reached a compromise settlement
on the estimated assessments with the Inland
Revenue Department for settling the estimated
tax liabilities in an aggregate amount of
HK$12,021,000, which included a surcharge
of HK$3,637,000. Therefore, a tax credit of
HK$13,854,000 was recognised in the year
ended 31 December 2008.

HRAEEGEMGTERBEFNHE
fl 5t E R B R R © M &[T 5 R BB
B2AEE RBE-_FTNF+=A
S+-RLEFELIERBFTENES - F
B 1> 3 FiT 45 B0 S8 P 4 7 R 45 B A B
BEENF HE) -

RZBZENEXA=Z+XB  FBILE
FEBCZEENFRAKHAER)
ETEEBCENESRARIRE
6.5% H-ZZTZEN / —ZEZAFHEF
EEN @Al BEZZEZENEFE+ A
S+ BLEFEEZEBAESHRETS
BB LR 2 htERFIERN216.5%
(ZBZENFE 1 16.5%):TE o

—

AKQA 22 EH B AT Ocean Shores
Licensing Limited ([ OSLL ) gt ¥ #2 3
TRERAZERSRZR 8 —Ahm~
—ANEBEE-ZZT —ZTZT-RUF
EzAsBiEERE - AQ2FERZ
EZELF U RERFEVBRRFPED
22,238,000 B T2 HIEREE - HR_ZTZ
NEZ R » OSLLEHE B ERME
B B S 12,021,000 T 2 &K
EEHFR B EES,637,0008 T2
MmE - Bt RBEZE-ZEZENF+=
B=+—HIFEE#E13,854,0008
TRZBBEIRR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

13. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) 13. FiBHER (BAX) (&)
(Continued)
The taxation for the year can be reconciled AFEEREAEEFESRERANZBRBA
to the profit/(loss) before taxation per the wmR(BE)HIRMT -

consolidated income statement as follows:

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Consolidated
BEEERR RESREE S &8
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
JERNF TR ZERNF “ERE ZEENE k3

HK$000 %  HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HKS'000 %  HK$'000 % HK$000 %
fér At TEn B TEr B TEr BRR  TEr At TEn BOM

Profit{loss) before  BRERAER]/
ttion 58 w1 (1059 (4979 (14398 40260 (0578

Taxation at income R AT &R =
tax rate of 16.5%  16.5% (=
08654 FEIAE:

16.5%) it
B78E  (67,261) (16.5) 18,246 16.5 821 16.5 24,7471 165  (66,440) (16.5) 4299 16.5

Effect of different  AEf7ER
tax rates of HEhED
subsidiaries ATEhE
operating in other  2&/€
jurisdictions 2,933 0.7 819 0.1 474 95 9,204 6.2 3,407 0.8 10,113 39

Tax effect of income EEEERH
that s not taxable  AEFT
indetermining ~~ EFhAZ
taxable profits fBgeE 140,597 35.0 2,229 2.0 330 6.7 200 01 142,867 35.5 2,429 0.9

Taxeffoctof  EEEERR
expenses thatare ZRIBFT
not deductble A%z
indetermning ~~ H#ZE
tavable prois 4860 [184) (TGS (60 (226 (W8 (39 (b

Tax losses not yet ~ AEZRH
recognised BE (3797 (0.9 (3610) (32) - (26862 (9 (3191 (09) (04  (it])

Tax refund £ - - % 125 - - - - - - 1 53

Deferred tax EiEsE
credit/expense) &% 14,041 37 - - -

(2=}

| (mose) (94 (063 (97)

2214 18 14,94 8 2 8.6

Taxation credt/  AEEHE
(expense] for the %
Jear A 36 B 25 (BM) (2 224 18 1382 35 0 18
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ENF+ZA=1F—HAULFE

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z ==

14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 14. SREBF (E#E)
The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per BREAERN (BR)DREBEZ=-ZZ

share is based on the profit/(loss) attributable hWERZZEENF+ZA=1+—HILHF

to owners of the Company for the years ended EXARBEEAERMEEF (BE)R

31 December 2009 and 2008 and the weighted ZEFERNCRITEBERMEFTEG

average number of ordinary shares in issue Ho

during these years.

SRERERN (BB)DRET I EE

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per

share is based on the following data: FTE:
2009 2008
—EEAF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit/(loss) for the year AATHEE AR
attributable to owners of the REERR (FHE)
Company
From continuing operations REFELEER 422,138 (96,736)
From discontinued operations RECARIKEXT (5,576) (127,772)
From continuing and REFERER
discontinued operations BRI &R 416,562 (224,508)
2009 2008
—EEAF —EENFE
’000 ’000
i Fhg
(Restated)
(E%))
Number of ordinary shares ZEREE
Weighted average number of FAECRTZBER
ordinary shares in issue during LRSSk
the year 106,850 195,187
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #E—ZEZEAF+-H=1—

14.

15.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
(Continued)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue for the purposes of basic earnings/(loss)
per share has been adjusted to take into the
effect of the share consolidations that became
effective on 2 May 2008 and 23 April 2009.
Details of the share consolidations are set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the years
ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 were the
same as the basic earnings/(loss) per share.
The Company’s outstanding share options and
convertible notes payable were not included in
the calculation of diluted earnings/(loss) per
share because the effects of the conversion of
the Company’s outstanding share options and
convertible notes payable were anti-dilutive.

DIVIDEND

The directors of the Company do not recommend
the payment of any dividend for the year ended
31 December 2009 (2008: Nil).
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15.

AL FE

SREF(BE)#)

REEERELRRF (FR)BFAZ
E%ﬁ"%ﬁﬂ“bn*&%’]%&ﬂ#tﬂﬁﬁ%’
LEFARZEENFEREA-_HEK=-ZE
AEMA= + EEx‘ﬂlZﬂﬁﬁAﬁZw
Z.ROEHZFBIARGESHBRE
MiEE32 o

BE_ZZNEFR-ZFZENF+Z=A
ST-BLEFEZEREBERA (B
BIESREARR(FB)HEE - BR
RBEARRBZRTEBREREN TR
REBEEERBEER  MAESRE
BEAN(BR)BYEEERQATZR
TEBREREYTRERRERS -

iz 2

RARESIFEBREBE_ZZN
F+=A :‘I'— BEFEZEARE(Z
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. ¥ - BERRE

The Group REH
Furniture
Leasehold Office Motor and
improvements equipment vehicles fixtures Total
HENEERE BAZRME RE BRR%EE @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEr FiE7 FiE7 FiE7 FEr
Cost B
At 1 January 2008 W-BENE-A-A 2,381 5,114 1,257 1,008 9,850
Additions NE 1,074 20,510 813 - 22,397
Disposals HE - 2) - (5) (7)
Exchange alignments EiAE - 290 - - 290
Transfer to assets of disposal EHZEHEABELE
group classified as held ZHERRIEE
for sale (note 31) (Hz231) (709) (25,752) - - (26,461)
At 31 December 2008 and ~ R=BENE+=R
1 January 2009 ST-AR-EENE
-A-H 2,746 160 2,070 1,093 6,069
Additions ME - - 236 - 236
Disposals LE - - (156) - (156)
At 31 December 2009 R-ZENE
+ZB=t-H 2,746 160 2,150 1,093 6,149
Accumulated depreciation ~ E3ti&
At 1 January 2008 RZBEN\E-F-H 1,665 664 791 730 3,850
Charged for the year TEEER 439 4,283 256 55 5,033
Elimination on disposals HERH - (1) - (3) )
Exchange alignments ENAE - 75 - - 75
Transfer to assets of disposal EREHBABELE
group classified as held JHERRIEE
for sale (note 31) (Hz£31) (79) (4,961) - - (5,040)
At 31 December 2008 and ~ RZEENFETZA
1 January 2009 Zt-HBR=ZEhE
-A-H 2,025 60 1,047 782 3,914
Charged for the year rEEER 240 20 221 46 533
Elimination on disposals HERLE - - (136) - (136)
At 31 December 2009 RZBENF
+=A=t-H 2,265 80 1,138 828 4,311
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2009 RZZENE
+=B=t-H 481 80 1,012 265 1,838
At 31 December 2008 RZZENE
TZA=1-H 21 100 1,023 311 2,155
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REWEE
The Group KEH
2009 2008
—EBENF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
At 1 January Hn—HB—H - 887,450
Additions NE - 36,495
Transfer from inventories EREFE - 5,707
Gain arising on change in FERRRTEERZ
fair value recognised in the NPERBELEZ
consolidated income statement Y =% - (74,045)
Exchange alignment AR - 51,353
Transfer to assets of disposal BERESEABELE
group classified as held for sale ZHEAREE
(note 31) (K& 31) - (906,960)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H - —

The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties as at 31 December 2008 has been
arrived at on the basis of the valuation carried
out on that date by Grant Sherman Appraisal
Limited, an independent firm of professional
valuers not connected with the Group, is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Valuers
and has appropriate qualifications and recent
experiences in the valuation of similar properties
in the relevant locations.

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purpose are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted
for as investment properties.

At 31 December 2008, the investment properties
of the Group were located in the PRC and
re-classified as assets of disposal group
classified as held for sale. Certain investment
properties with a fair value of approximately
HK$853,835,000 have been pledged to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

18. GOODWILL 18. &
The Group
rEE
HK$’000
FET
Cost AR
At 1 January 2008 RZZEZEN\E—H—H 117,412
Acquisition of subsidiaries (notes a and b) WEKMBAT (K@) k(b)) 102,891
At 31 December 2008 and 1 January 2009 R=-ZBENF+=A=+—H
R=—ZFENF—A—H 220,303
Disposal of subsidiaries (note (c)) HEMB AT (A2 (c) (926)
At 31 December 2009 R-BBHLFE+=-A=+—H 219,377
Accumulated impairment Z5HEE
At 1 January 2008 R=-ZENE—HA—H 77,956
Impairment loss recognised O HERIREEE 142,347
At 31 December 2008 and 1 January 2009 R=ZEENF+=A=+—H
r—EZFNF—H—H 220,303
Disposal of subsidiaries (note (c)) HEMBAR (Aat(c)) (926)
At 31 December 2009 R=-ZEAFT=-A=+—H 219,377
Carrying amounts BREE
At 31 December 2009 R-ZBEAFT=-A=+—H -
At 31 December 2008 R=-ZBENF+=-A=1+—H —
Notes: Hiat -
(a) On 29 May 2008, the Group further acquired 3.3% (@) M=ZZFEENFHEA=-TNIA FXEBEE—
of the registered capital of tFFHEEMEFBGREL FWBLRIEEHMERBERAR(TL
7 (“de35IE”), a then wholly owned subsidiary of RPB ARBDERZEZENBEAR)FE
the Company. The total cash consideration of the MERZ33% - WBZHEBESNRELNS
acquisition was approximately HK$4,824,000. As a 4,824,000/ 7T c F It » RRUKEBERERE
result, a goodwill of approximately HK$926,000 was £%926,00078 T °

recognised from this acquisition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

18. GOODWILL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(d)

On 29 August 2008, the Group acquired a 100%
of the issued share capital of Rich Daily Group
Limited (“Rich Daily”). The total consideration of the
acquisition was HK$504,000,000, which was settled
by cash and issuance of convertible notes payable
(note 39). As a result, a goodwill of approximately
HK$101,965,000 was arisen from the acquisition of
Rich Daily.

On 8 April 2009, the Group disposed of 100%
interests in Shinhan-Golden Faith International
Development Limited (“Shinhan Golden”) and
World East Investment Limited (“World East”) to
China Star Film Group Limited (formerly known as
Golife Concepts Holdings Limited) (“CSFGL”) at
consideration of HK$212,732,000, which was settled
by cash, convertible note receivable, promissory
note receivable and ordinary shares of CSFGL.

Adjustment to cost of combination in respect of an
acquisition in prior year

Pursuant to the conditional sale and purchase
agreement dated 28 February 2008 (the “Sales and
Purchase Agreement”) relating to the acquisition
of the entire issued share capital of Rich Daily (the
“Acquisition”), Mr. Ng Cheuk Fai has irrevocably
and unconditionally guaranteed to the Group that
the services fee of Rich Daily for the period from 1
July 2008 to 30 June 2009 (the “Relevant Period”)
shall not less than HK$72,000,000. In the event
that the actual service fee of Rich Daily for the
Relevant Period is less than HK$72,000,000, the
consideration of the Acquisition shall be adjusted
by seven times the shortfall. The adjustment shall
be initially deducted from a convertible note in a
principal amount of HK$72,000,000 payable to Well
Will Investment Limited, the vendor, on a dollar
for dollar basis. If the convertible note payable is
insufficient to settle the adjustment, Mr. Ng Cheuk
Fai has undertaken to pay the Group the balance in
cash.

As the actual service fee of Rich Daily for the
Relevant Period amounted to HK$57,224,000,
the guarantee for service fee for the Relevant
Period has not achieved. According to the
Sale and Purchase Agreement, the adjustment
to the consideration of the Acquisition was
HK$103,434,000, of which HK$72,000,000 was
deducted from the convertible note payable on
a dollar for dollar basis and HK$31,434,000 was
settled in cash by Mr. Ng Cheuk Fai.
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(b)

(c)

18. BE (&)

BiaE ()

R-ZEZENFNA=-+ALA > AEEWK
B8 Rich Daily Group Limited ([Rich
Daily ) B #4TIR A 2100% ° & A F &
HE - W 2 B AE 4% 504,000,000 %
T UBRERBITARBREEZF XA
(FfEE39) o EIt » W Rich Daily #E:2
#%101,965,000 8 T °

R-ZZEZFNANE AEBHEER
Shinhan-Golden Faith International
Development Limited ([Shinhan-
Golden]) ® World East Investment
Limited ([World Eastl) Z100% % =
FTHEEEXEEERARA(AIBEAEF
FEERAERADE [CSFGL]) » KEA
212,732,000/ T HUEE - BRAE
BREE - EWAGFERCSFGLE B IRE

& -

RIBEFEETHIEZ S HFRAHE

RIBEF U EE Rich Daily 2 2302 2 4TIRAK
TWEDMR=ZEFENE=-A=1+N\AH
Yz ERGtEERE(ESEHE ]
[REPELES T ARE K E K4 it @ AR
EEER —EENFELtA-—HE=-Z
ZhEANB=1TEHB(HBEHE =
BR 7% & 48 ~ 4 72 72,000,000 8 7T ° it 48
BEE 2R EERLD MK 72,000,000 5
7T BB RESAREZE 2R - #
EREEREEEERI AT Well Wil
Investment Limited (B) 2 AR ZE
#1BR 72,000,000 7T ° fisl 7] 32 B% = 5
BUSANHAZSE B2 SHEEC A
DR S TEREE o

B R Rich Daily R BB 2 ERREE
#57,224,000% 7T - BUK 82 3E 2 AE BE 23
B2REER REEEHZE  RE2HA
#51083,434,000 7% 7T » & 772,000,000
BRDETEREBRSEEENR M
31,434,000/ 8 TIVHREHEEUBRSE

&
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

18. GOODWILL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(d) (Continued)

As the consideration for the Acquisition was
adjusted from HK$504,000,000 to HK$400,566,000,
an adjustment to cost of combination in respect of
an acquisition of approximately HK$103,434,000
was credited to the consolidated income statement.

Impairment of goodwill

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the
directors of the Company reassessed the
recoverable amounts of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”) with reference to the valuations
performed by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited,
an independent firm of professional valuers,
and determined that an impairment loss of
HK$142,347,000 was recognised.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are
determined from value-in-use calculations. One
of the key assumptions for the value-in-use
calculations is the discount rate. For the year
ended 31 December 2008, discount rates of
16.03% per annum for property investment and
17.68% per annum for provision of management
services were applied in the value-in-use models
which use cash flow projections based on the
financial forecasts approved by the directors
of the Company. The valuers estimate discount
rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risk specific to the CGUs.

18. BE (&)

Bret (&)
(@ (&)

A A Uk EE 2 KB E B 504,000,000 %8 T 7
# % 400,566,00058 T © WEE 2 & B
FE4103,434,000 8 TREZEEWFE R A
BR o

BERE

REBEZ-_ZEENF+-A=+—HLHF
ER E2RBEBEILEEMGERMTHHET
HERARETZMHER  XARES
EEHTERSELEEN(REELEE
NDzraWE$5E WEEREESE
142,347,000 B L O BEHER o

REeEEdBENcTWEER L RERE
EHEME - EFRAEEFEZ2ER—E
FEBRRABFER - BE_FTZEN\F
TZA=+—-BLEE EREERE
ERAZFTRID/UNEREMS &
F16.3% KA REHEEREMSEF
17.68% IERAEKBA LR ESHEZY
BEAFEH RS RERR o (EEAM L
BRBAIIT R RMAFTIN R R RBATHTIR
ERMeECKEEERRSELEEN
2 E R 2 ™SR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BILEE
The Group
KEE
HK$’000
FET
Cost R
At 1 January 2008 R=-ZBENF—HF—H —
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39) W big — RSB A R (f1aE 39) 456,857
At 31 December 2008, 1 January 2009 and R=-ZEZENF+=A=+—H -
31 December 2009 —EENF-A-BR-ZEELE
+=H=+—H 456,857
Accumulated impairment EZFRIE
At 1 January 2008, 31 December 2008 R=-BENF—A—Q-
1 January 2009 —EENF+ZA=+-HK
—EENF—HA—H —
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE (117,320)
At 31 December 2009 R-ZEBEZEhRF+=ZA=1+—H (117,320)
Carrying amounts FREE
At 31 December 2009 R-EEhE+=-A=1+—H 339,537
At 31 December 2008 R-BENF+Z-ZA=+—H 456,857

The intangible assets represent the carrying
amounts of services agreements held by Rich
Daily. The intangible assets have indefinite useful
lives and no amortisation have been made.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the
directors of the Company reassessed the
recoverable amounts of the services agreements
with reference to the valuation performed
by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, an
independent firm of professional valuers,
and determined that an impairment loss of
HK$117,320,000 was recognised (2008: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the services
agreements were assessed by reference to
value-in-use calculation. A discount rate of
19.12% per annum (2008: 17.68%) was applied
in the value-in-use model which uses cash
flow projections based on financial forecasts
approved by the directors of the Company
covering a ten-year period. There are a number
of assumptions and estimates involved for

19.
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BIVEE (&)

BEHZ2TREDCHEI2REMAEE
AAEAAFMG  ERECHAEEERNZ
FRERBF19.12% (ZZEZNF .
17.68%) ' HAMBA L AESHEZ
MBERAELH2RERERR - FURE
ZHERTH - REBAMBEDE 2
BERERASRSERKKMAET - £
ERREBBEENRRERE  ZEHF
EHASEEEERBEANTS 2%

the preparation of the cash flow projections
for the period covered by the forecast. Key
assumptions include gross margin and growth
rate which are determined by the management
of the Group based on its expectation for market
development. The discount rate used is pre-
tax and reflects specific risks relating to the
industry.

RMEE - TRAFNERREHA - AR
BREQITHEARE 2 ERME ©

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. REtENRI 2R

2009 2008
—EENE —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cost of investments in associates REBLHZEEATZ
listed in Hong Kong BE WA 266,778 —
Excess of acquirer’s interest in fair UWEEHAEE AT HBIFEE
value of associates’ identifiable EAFEZERBHBWEER
net assets over cost of N2 EZ8 (Kata ()Rb (i)
acquisition (notes a (i) and b (i) 702,500 —
Partial disposal of an associate O HEBRE AT 2
(note b (ii)) 18 (Mab (i) (343,130) -
Loss on deemed disposal of an RIELHEBRE AT Z
associate (note a (ii)) E518 (Kfaza (i) (6,629) -
Share of exchange reserve change ME{LE#E NTIE K
of associates a2 E (99) =
Share of post-acquisition results EEWBREER
and net of dividend received HIBRE WAL B 22,488 =
641,908 —
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20. AEBEERNT 2R (&)
At 31 December 2009, the Group had interests in N_ZBEHAE+=—A=+—0 ~EHE
the following associates: RUTHEARPEERER !
Principal Proportion
Country/place place of Class of of voting Principal
Name of associate of incorporation operation shares held power held activities
FsRER
BeEnNmER SEMRIER % TERENY FAEROER 2t TEXR
CSFGL the Cayman Islands ~ Hong Kong  Ordinary 15.66% Investment holding
and continued in
Bermuda
HEHRE IREFE BB EER REZR
&
China Star Entertainment Bermuda Hong Kong  Ordinary 29.61% Investment holding
Limited ( “CSEL") BRE BE LB RERR
FEI2EEAERAR ([CSEL])
Notes: Hrat -
(a) CSFGL (a) CSFGL

()  On 8 April 2009, CSFGL issued 11,769,194 new () MR=FBAEMABN\E  CSFGLIZ
shares at a price of HK$0.50 per share to the FhO. 501%713?1?*%|"’J$%.§§ﬁ
Group for settling part of the consideration 11,769,194 R K7 » UAX @A
for acquiring the entire issued share capital of SEWE Shinhgn-Golden&World
Shinhan-Golden and World East together with East?*‘BE?&ﬂHﬂl—‘Eﬂﬁ ﬁ
the loans due by each of them to the Group. HEREEBMzERZHBMBRE - Z
The 11,769,194 new shares represented 11 769,194 % ¥ IR 13 15 CSFGL &
20.36% of the issued share capital of CSFGL ‘3&@11,769,19459%)?%@?%?(25
as enlarged by the issue of 11,769,194 BITRZA20.36% MELAFEAE
new shares and the fair value of which is 2 118,000 Jt ° (A bt » 7 & [ 8%
HK$2,118,000. As a result, the Group recorded H&%Eﬁﬁ *ﬁ%”&jﬁﬁ’é{i?zﬂ FEE
an excess of acquirer’s interest in fair value ASFEZ*E@?@'CHU&E%J?ZZKZ%%E
of associates’ identifiable net assets over 16,286,000 T EREERESR
cost of acquisition of HK$16,286,000 which is FE{E CSFGLR HIB AR RBE=
included as income in the determination of the SENEL+_A=t-HLEFEZ
investors’ share of CSFGL and its subsidiaries’ TR FIRFEHEUA o
profit for the year ended 31 December 2009.

(i)  During the year, CSFGL issued new shares iy A CSEGL*E%%LA@E%&IZI
pursuant to a private placement and upon THEBREMBITIHRD > BIEK
exercise of share options which caused a SE N CSFGL 2% H20.36% #
dilution on the Group’s interest in CSFGL from HE1566% ° At - NEBES
20.36% to 15.66%. As a result, the Group RIELEHZE QT Eﬁ} 6,629,000
recorded a loss on deemed disposal of an B ARNFESR e T
associate of HK$6,629,000. The directors of BHRCSFGLES=gHhAaRX B
the Company consider that the Group has CSFGLMRBEALE S » HEE
retained significant influence over CSFGL by AEEFREERDIN20% @ ~5E
the representation of the Group on the board RBEZE-_ZEAF+-A=+—H
of directors of CSFGL despite the interest held Jl:irmilﬁ,.aﬂ—: CSFGLARSIAH
by the Group is below 20% and the Group B N E] o

has continuously accounted for CSFGL as its
associate for the year ended 31 December
2009.
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

CSFGL (Continued)

(iii)

CSEL

(i)

(iiif)

On 2 July 2009, the Group subscribed
94,153,552 new shares in CSFGL under the
open offer announced on 23 April 2009. The
consideration for subscription of the new
ordinary shares amounted to HK$9,415,000.

At 31 December 2009, the fair value of
the Group’s interest in CSFGL, based
on published quoted price on the Stock
Exchange, was HK$33,366,000 and the
carrying amount of the Group’s interest was
HK$27,465,000.

As a result of the conversion of the CSEL
Note (as defined in note 29), CSEL has
became an associate of the Company and
the Group recognised an excess of acquirer’s
interest in fair value of associates’ identifiable
net assets over cost of acquisition of
HK$686,214,000 which is included as income
in the determination of the investors’ share of
CSEL and its subsidiaries’ profit for the year
ended 31 December 2009.

On 10 December 2009, the Group disposed of
320,000,000 shares in CSEL to independent
third parties at a price of HK$0.20 per share.
As the net asset value of the 320,000,000
shares in CSEL was HK$343,130,000 and the
consideration (after deducting transaction
costs) was HK$63,110,000, the Group
recorded a loss on partial disposal of an
associate of HK$280,020,000.

At 31 December 2009, the fair value of the
Group’s interest in CSEL, based on published
quoted price on the Stock Exchange, was
HK$124,440,000 and the carrying amount
of the Group’s interest in CSEL was
HK$614,443,000.

20. NBE DT 2R (&)

BiaE ()

(a)

(b)

CSFGL (#)

(iii)

(iv)

CSEL

(i)

(iii)

R=ZZEZEAFEFLtAZH A5EH
BRER=-ZTAFNE=F+=H2
i 2 A B 2 & R B8 94,153,552 %
CSFGL# IR - RBEFZTER 2R
E%9,415,00058 T ©

R=ZZAF+=A=+-H"
AEBNCSFGLZ #EH 2 D F
BERBEBEIFMABERTE) S
33,366,000 T > MAEE#EZ=EZ
BRIEI{E A 27,465,000 8 7T ©

M EBCSELE B (& M F 29T &
%)% CSELERAARDQFZEE
AT MAEECHERWES R
EANFARAFEEAFEZERS
B H U BB AR AR 2 B4 58 686,214,000
B HEREEREE EL
CSELEEMBATRRBE=ZZ
hWE+ZA=+t—HALEFEZEF
BFETEURA o

R-ZEAF+=-A+H x&H
RER020BTZER BB
% = A H £320,000,000 % CSEL
B 3 » M $2 320,000,000 8 CSEL
B 2 2 & E F {8 343,130,000
B MREJABRIZRAE)
#63,110,00058 Tt W & %
BEHHEEBLE AT 2EHIE
280,020,000 & T °

R-ZFAE+-A=+-
RS EY Y TR
% ERCSELZ ME 2 AT EA
124,440,000 T ° M & & B R®
CSEL 2z AR {H 4 614,443,000
BT ©
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20. AEBEERNT 2R (&)
Notes: (Continued) et o (&)
(b) CSEL (Continued) (b) CSEL(#&)
Summarised financial information in respect of the FEAKEBRE AR 2 BEERBEN
Group’s associates is as follows: T
2009
—BEAF
HK$’000
FAET
Total assets EEAE 3,784,503
Total liabilities BEHAE (1,289,730)
Net assets EEFE 2,494,773
Group’s share of net assets of associates AEBRELBENRFERE 641,908
2009
—EEhE
HK$°000
FET
Total revenue T Lo 567,652
Total profit for the year REERFEEE 190,494
Group’s share of profit of associates REBEELEE D EER 22,488
Group’s share of other comprehensive income of AEBEELBEE QA REME2E RS
associates (99)
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21. BRANRE

The Group

rEE

HK$’000

FET

At 1 January 2009 R-ZEZAF—HA—H —
Subscription of promissory note receivable 5238 EUWIENSEE 25,952
Imputed interest income HERE WA 5,901
At 31 December 2009 R-ZEZEhRE+=-A=1+—H 31,853

As detailed in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements, CSFGL issued a promissory
note in a principal amount of HK$100,000,000 to
the Group for settling part of the consideration
for acquiring the entire issued share capital of
Shinhan-Golden and World East together with
the loans due by each of them to the Group.
The Group measured the promissory note
receivable initially at fair value and subsequently
at amortised cost.

The fair value of this promissory note receivable
as at the date of its issue is HK$25,952,000. The
effective interest rate of the promissory note
receivable is 30.97%.

The promissory note receivable is unsecured,
interest-free and maturing on 7 April 2014.

3 40 B 7 R 3R Y 5E 40 Frsf 4t - CSFGL
6] 7 &5 @ 2% 17 4~ £ %8 % 100,000,000 /&
T2 A ZEE > B X {4 W B8 Shinhan-
Golden ¥ World EastZ #2217 R A&
ZHHREUARESZEEAFAEBZE
Mo AEBYLTRATFEREZIREBH
R G 2 B RIS IR ©

REWENEZEBEREBRTEH 2 AFE
£25,952,000/8 7T - ERANEE S
MR A 30.97% ©

BWANZRELEER 28 TR
“E-NFEMHAEREH -
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22. CONVERTIBLE NOTE RECEIVABLE 22, EW AR ERE
The convertible note receivable contains two FEH&T#H&E‘%B“"@%W CBERRE
components, debts and conversion options HBEREI S
components.
The debt component of the convertible note ERABLREEEE ﬁB’\J})\Eﬁ%fﬁ
receivable was accounted for as loans and E MmEVRTHRREE 2RERID
receivables while the conversion options ABRBITESRMIA -

component of convertible note receivable was
accounted for as derivative financial instruments.

The movement of the debt component of the FEW CSFGL 2 AR EHEEH 2 A4
convertible note receivable from CSFGL for the FEZSHFHNOT :
year is set out below:

The Group
AEH
HK$’000
TFET
At 1 January 2009 R-EZENF—HA—H —
Subscription of convertible note REBUIRRKREE 2,789
Imputed interest income on convertible note ABREREZGERSRA 2,011
Interest income received and receivable 2 WK FEF 2 A (1,130)
At 31 December 2009 R-EBEENFE+-_H=+—H 3,670
(a) As detailed in note 40 to the consolidated (@) B W4 & B 1% ;K M E40FT
financial statements, CSFGL issued gt » CSFGLE A &£ B % 17 4N £
convertible note (the “GSFGL Note”) in a £E100,000,0008 T 2 A/ A IR =
principal amount of HK$100,000,000 to the E(TCSFGLE # 1) UL X 1+ Ur B8
Group for settling part of the consideration Shinhan-Golden & World East®
for acquiring the entire issued share capital MEBITRAZLL,REBEURES
of Shinhan-Golden and World East together BRNAEBZXE o CSFGLEE
with the loans due by each of them to the ﬂ%z]x’ilifgjg N-ZEZFHEN
Group. The CSFGL Note entitles the Group BNBZ —hEMmA+BE™H
to convert it into ordinary shares of CSFGL ;;zg«pj’]ﬁﬁ}ﬁlﬁgﬁx 0.229 3% 7t (1]
at an adjusted conversion price of HK$0.229 FRAVEHETBACSFGL2E A
per share (subject to adjustment) during the % c CSFGLERE AMEIKHT - RENR
period from 8 April 2009 to 7 April 2019. BHAZE—NEMNALtHEE -
The CSFGL Note is unsecured, interest-free
and maturing on 7 April 2019.
The debt component of CSFGL Note CSFGLEEZBEZ J}h{]‘%&fﬁﬁjﬁ
is measured at amortised cost and NE 2 5 MCSFGLE })EEJ
the effective interest rate of the debt ZEMBFZEEA43.04% o )3’\_.\, =5
component of the CSFGL Note is 43.04%. NE+=A=+—H » CSFGLEZ#$
At 31 December 2009, the fair value of the 2 ATF{E%A18,316,000 % T ©

CSFGL Note was HK$18,316,000.
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES

23. EZEWRE

The Group
%W

2009 2008

=EEAE —EIN\RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

0-30 days Z230H 6,022 4,443

31-60 days 31£60H - =

61-90 days 61290H - =

Over 90 days 90HU 396 2,396

6,418 6,839

Less: Impairment loss recognised B ERRREESE (396) -

6,022 6,839

Notes: Kt
(a) The following is an aged analysis of the trade (@) MEREK BEZEWFKENREEEISE
receivables net of impairment loss at the end of the BZEREDTMT ¢
reporting period:
The Group
AEHE
2009 2008

—EBAE —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FET
0-30 days Z%230H 6,022 4,443
31-60 days 31£60H - -
61-90 days 61Z290H - -
Over 90 days 90HM £ - 2,396
6,022 6,839

The Group allows an average credit period of 90

days to its customers.

KREBHATHEFFIH0HZEED -
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. ESEWFEIE(E)
Notes: (Continued) et (&)
(b) Aging of trade receivables which are past due but (b) EEHERBEESEVRREZRRN
not impaired are as follows: T
The Group
AEH
2009 2008

—BBAE —BIN\F
HK$°000 HK$°000

FHET FET
0-30 days Z£30H - -
31-60 days 31£60H - =
61-90 days 61Z290H - -
Over 90 days 90RM £ - 2,396
- 2,396
At 31 December 2009, the Company has no trade REZBZENF+ZA=+—H XEEL
receivables past due but not impaired (2008: FEAHERRECESERFZE(ZZ
HK$2,396,000). Z )\ : 2,396,000 T) °
(c) Aging of impaired trade receivables is as follows: (c) EREEZEWREZRERNT :
The Group
rEE
2009 2008
ZEENF —EENFE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
0-30 days Z£30H - -
31-60 days 31£60H - =
61-90 days 61Z290H - -
Over 90 days 90RM £ 396 -
396 -
(d) The directors of the Company consider the carrying d) AATNEERAEEZEWFEZREEER
amounts of trade receivables approximate to their HAFZEHRE -
fair values.
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24. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 24, € > AREREMEWRFIE

RECEIVABLES
The Group The Company
rEE NS
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZBEhE ZEBIN\FE ZBEAF CZ2INF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAET
Deposits e 842 827 - -
Prepayments FEFIE 162 15 - —
Other receivables Hith U FRIR 11 785 101 -
1,015 1,627 101 —
The carrying amounts of the deposits, Re BAREREMERNRIEZERE
prepayments and other receivables approximate BEHEHEAFEES -
to their fair values.
25. LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE 25. MBERNTER

The Group and the company

rEH
2009 2008
—BEAF —EEN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
FERFULBRERAF PEREFULBEREBRAT
(“Shanghai Shengping”) (TE87¥]) 155,536 —

Annual Report 2009 &% | 143



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= 8 M58 R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENFF+-—HA=1—HIEFE

25. LOAN TO AN ASSOICATE (Continued) 25. MBERNTERE)

On 8 April 2009 (being the date of completion of
the Disposal), Shanghai Shengping, a subsidiary
of World East, was indebted to the Group in the
sum of HK$375,536,000. Pursuant to the sale
and purchase agreement of the Disposal, the
loan made to Shanghai Shengping by the Group
was not settled immediately upon completion
and CSFGL has provided a guarantee to the
Group for a term of maximum of three financial
years ending 31 December 2011 to secure the
repayment. If any part of the loan has not been
settled on the day falling on the fifth anniversary
of the date of completion, CSFGL will issue
a convertible note to settle the outstanding
balance of the loan. During the year, Shanghai
Shengping repaid HK$220,000,000 to the Group.

The loan to CSFGL is secured by a corporate
guarantee given by CSFGL, interest-free and has
no fixed terms of repayment.

RZZEZAFEFNANBNHEHEREKA
Hi) - World Eastifi{B A" L8R ¥4
R AR & B A #375,536,000% T o R
BHECBEEHE  AEEOLERT
EHZERULEBRTRENEEE M
CSFGLEMASEREHER  FHES
ABE-_ZE——F+-A=+—-HBL=
BHBEE FRAERER - MEMNE
RBOUEREXBEHECHEBAFER
B8 BICSFGL#GETARIRERE - U
BEERENR - FR LEFFELE
B {& ¥ 220,000,000 38 7T °

BB SN CSFGLREH 2 IERIEEMT -
DREREEEERDY o

26. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 26. FEWEEE N\ TFIE
The Group The Company
KEE AR

2009 2008 2009 2008

—EBNE ZET\E —FEhE C—ZIINF

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$’000

FHET FET FET FHET

CSEL 5103 - 3,973 -

The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and
has no fixed terms of repayment.

144 | China Star Investment Holdings Limited FEIZ&EHRAH

ZREAREERR RERLEETEEX
H o



27.

28.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LOAN TO A RELATED COMPANY

On 29 April 2009, the Company made a loan
of HK$200,000,000 to CSEL pursuant to the
conditional loan agreement dated 11 March
2009. The Company may at any time before the
maturity date demand a repayment of the whole
or part of the loan by serving 20 business days
prior written notice to CSEL. The loan made to
CSEL was approved by the shareholders, other
than Mr. Heung Wah Keung, Ms. Chen Ming
Yin, Tiffany and their associates, on 22 April
2009. On 21 September 2009, the loan was
utilised to subscribe the convertible notes of
HK$200,000,000 issued by CSEL pursuant to
the conditional subscription agreement dated 23
July 2009 (note 29).

The loan was unsecured, interest bearing at
prime rate as quoted by The Hong Kong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited per
annum and maturing on 28 April 2012.

CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN
CONVERTIBLE NOTE RECEIVABLE

Conversion options embedded in convertible
note receivable represented the conversion
option element of the CSFGL Note and are
measured at fair value using a binomial option
pricing model, at initial recognition and at the
end of reporting period.

The movement of the conversion options
component of the CSFGL Note for the year is set
out below:

27.

28.

5 8 M358 R M
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BRAEQFER

RZZEZAFNAZ=ZF+AHHE  A2QFR
BER=-ZEZNEFE=A+—HiILzHBK%
# & X [ CSEL{E H 200,000,000 % JT
ZER o AQ TR EE B A E
FEIBMCSELX E20ME X B 2F &
EEBHNEREEEZRHABIER -
BICSELEHEZERR =TT hFEMA
“tHt-HEERESRELE BRPERZEIR
WECHBALTUNMN BRI AE - R
ZEENFEANA=+—H ZEEXREH
AURBCSELIRERHA-ZSZTLE
tAZ+=AZ2ERGRBHERT
2200,000,00078 7T o] # % Z & (K &%
29) o

ZEERABEA REBLEBEEZR
TERAAMBZREEFRNEGTE
WHRAZE——FHOA=Z+N\BHEH -

FERTRREE RS AIRRER

NERBERABRRKRRE 2 GIBBRERETD
JECSFGLRE 2 R BRERRE - N
NFPEARER/PARERA-BAXHEE
BRAZLAFENE -

CSFGLE# > X MR EMBHRFERNZ
SHMT :

The Group

AEE

HK$’000

FET

At 1 January 2009 R=Z2ZENF—A—H -

Subscription of convertible note RETBKREE

— conversion options component HpREREI S 82,858
Loss arising on change in fair value in R R ERE I

respect of conversion options component ZAFESBELEZEE (64,542)

At 31 December 2009 R-EZAF+=-A=1+—H 18,316
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28. CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED 28. EWTEREBCASHAIARER
IN CONVERTIBLE NOTE RECEIVABLE (4)
(Continued)

—IEAHEEEENT) AU CSFGL
Rz R ERD - & CSFGLEHER
TEENFTNANB(IRBEH)IR=
EENFFT-A=T-—RZzERXBAZ

Binomial option pricing model is used for
valuation for conversion option element of the
CSFGL Note. The inputs into the model of the
CSFGL Note as at 8 April 2009 (being the date

of subscription) and 31 December 2009, were as 25T -
follows:

8 April 31 December
2009 2009
—EBENF —EENF
ANB +=—A=+—H
Stock price HK$0.545 HK$0.315
AR E 1% 0.545% 7T 0.315%7T

Conversion price

HIRE

HK$0.5 per share
BRO5E T

HK$0.229 per share
§i0.2298 T

Volatility 119.64% 123.18%
]

Dividend yield Zero Zero
RS W = =3 z
Option life 10 years 9.27 years
HEFH 105 9.27%F
Risk free rate 2.101% 2.512%

EREBRFR
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTE DESIGNATED AS

AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS

On 21 September 2009, the Group subscribed
the convertible note (the “CSEL Note”) in a
principal amount of HK$200,000,000 from
CSEL pursuant to the conditional subscription
agreement dated 23 July 2009. The subscription
price of the convertible note was satisfied by
setting off the loan of HK$200,000,000 made
by the Company to CSEL on 29 April 2009
(note 27). The CSEL Note entitles the Group to
convert to ordinary shares in CSEL at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.20 per share (subject
to adjustment). The CSEL Note was unsecured,
interest bearing at prime rate as quoted by The
Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited per annum and maturing on 20
September 2012. The subscription of the CSEL
Note was approved by the shareholders, other
than Mr. Heung Wah Keung, Ms. Chen Ming Yin,
Tiffany and their associates, on 14 September
2009.

The CSEL Note was designated as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as the
CSEL Note met the criteria for the category of
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

During the year, the Group converted the entire
CSEL Note to 1,000,000,000 shares in CSEL at
a conversion price of HK$0.20 per share. As a
result, the Group recognised a gain arising on
change in fair value in respect of convertible
note of HK$55,244,000, which represent the
difference between the fair value of the CSEL
Note upon conversion of HK$255,244,000
and the carrying amount of the CSEL Note of
HK$200,000,000.

29. EERBAFEHFABRERZTE

=
=

R-ZZEZAFMAZ-Z+AA AQF
RER-ZSZAF=A+—HTILZ
ERUHRBHERBCSELETASH
200,000,000 % T 2 AT % Z= 5 ([ CSEL
ZED - TREREBERBEEBRK
HWALNAR=-ZZEZTARFEBE=+AHA
@ CSELE & & $200,000,000% 7T X
F(FIzE27) AT EEE F A S B RE
Ho RS ZBRESKR0.20E T(H
FRAB)GEAEEASERIBBCSELE
W -CSELEREAEEI - /B L
BELERITERLAFMBZHERFF
ZHE YR-_F-—-—FHWA=-+HEZ
Hl o RECSELEBER -_ZZThFWNA
“tHERERLLE RPRLZIR
WEZHBBA TN ZBRERAE -

HRCSELEBHERATFEFAES
RZTMEEZEL - MAKHES CSEL
FEEEERRLAFEFARSERZER
EE -

FR > AEERLBESR20BTHE
CSELEE 2 & 5% 1,000,000,000 i
CSELR M - Bt » AEEHBRRE
BN F B % B 25 55,244,00058 7T (ED
CSEL E#E A F{E255,244,00058 TEEH
BRMEI{E 200,000,0008 T2 =58) °
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTE DESIGNATED AS
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS (Continued)

The fair value of the CSEL Note as at 21
September 2009 (being the date of subscription)
was measured using a binomial option pricing
model. The inputs into the model were as

follows:

21 September 2009
Stock price HK$0.171
Conversion price HK$0.2 per share
Volatility 95.63%
Dividend yield 11.06%
Option life 3 years
Risk free rate 0.941%

30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a) Statement of financial position

29.

30.

EERBROAFEFARSERZ TR
REE (&)

CSELEBER=-ZZEAFNA=1+—H
(RBEM)2AFEDEA=ZERH
BEEEAEZAFENE - TAEXH
AZERNT :

—EENFNAA=T—H

IR1E 0.171%8 7T
RiaE BRO.2EBT
B8 95.63%
RE= 11.06%
B8 PR A 34
38 | B R == 0.941%
RERRESEEY

(a) BIARRE

The Group The Company
FEE NS
2009 2008 2009 2008
—E2FThE ZEBIN\FE ZBEAE ZZTINF
HK$°000  HK$000 HK$’000  HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Cash and cash equivalents & RELZEY 275,802 7,218 40,027 278
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30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the financial years as shown in the
consolidated cash flows statement can

30. RERBEEENW &)

(b) FEREREBERATRUBRFES

ERZRERRASEEYITEES

be reconciled to the related items in REAMRZBMABHRMT :
the consolidated statement of financial
position as follows:
The Group The Company
KEE b NG|
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EEhE ZEZN\FE ZEERF ZEINE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Cash and cash equivalents & RBELZEY
Included in cash and SEAGRE MR R
cash equivalents as per  fi3lzHE
consolidated statement RESZEY
of financial position 275,802 7,218 40,027 278
Included in assets AR EABELE
of disposal group ZHEARIEE
classified as held for (H&E31)
sale (note 31) - 82,152 - -
275,802 89,370 40,027 278

The carrying amounts of cash and
bank balances are denominated in the
following currencies:

ReRBTEKZIREABENULTIE
wIME -

The Group The Company
AEE AR

2009 2008 2009 2008

ZBEhE ZEBIN\F ZBEAF CZZ2INF

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET FET FET

Renminbi NG - 82,136 - —
United States of America %7t

Dollars - 36 - =

Hong Kong Dollars BT 275,802 7,198 40,027 278

275,802 89,370 40,027 278
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30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 30. RERBELEEY &)

(Continued)

(c) (Continued)

The conversion of Renminbi denominated
balances into foreign currencies is subject
to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC
Government.

31. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL

GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE

On 26 November 2008, Riche (BVI) Limited
entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement (the “Agreement”) with Mega Shell
Services Limited (“Mega Shell”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CSFGL, relating to the sale of the
entire issued share capital of Shinhan-Golden
and World East, both of them are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, to Mega Shell at
a consideration of HK$211,466,310 (subject to
adjustment). On completion, the consideration
was adjusted to HK$212,732,000 which was
settled by Mega Shell in the following manner:
(a) HK$5,581,713 (subject to adjustment) to be
paid in cash; (b) HK$5,884,597 by procuring
CSFGL to allot and issue 117,691,940 new
shares in CSFGL credited as fully paid; (c)
HK$100,000,000 by procuring CSFGL to issue
a convertible note; and (d) HK$100,000,000 by
procuring CSFGL to issue a promissory note.

The Agreement was approved by the
shareholders at the special general meeting of
the Company held on 12 February 2009 and
completed on 8 April 2009.
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(c) (#&

LARBIEZESRZIRBINER
18 RR TP B BT 98 e oz S0 BE B AR B
KRB

3. 7HEARBFLHEZLEARNEER

BEUAREBRIEREXER

R=ZZEZEN\E+—HZ=+7,3H  Riche
(BVI) Limited ([Richel) EZCSFGLxZ
%= & it B 2 "l Mega Shell Services
Limited ([Mega Shelll) 57 % & %
HEEHZ(HZE]D) AEZEEM@
Mega Shell HEX QXTI 22 ENE A
7] Shinhan-Golden & World EastzZ &
WEEITRA KEH211,466,310%8
(AT FRE) - RERE RERAEZE
212,732,00078 5t * © H Mega Shell &
THHE R XA (5,581,713 (A
FHAE)KURE X (b)5,884,597
BT & B (€ FCSFGLE 3 K 2 17
11,769,194 & A BR 5 1E 81 & 2 CSFGL
1B 19 1< 5 (c)100,000,000 8 7T i& 8
RECSFGLETABRKREEXZN K
(d)100,000,000 & T & B £ CSFGL 8
TERREXRA -

BRERAQDAR-ZFZENF-R+=
ARITZBRREFHAE LERRHME
YR=ZZZNFHANBREK e
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31. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL 1. 7 EABELECHERANEER
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR EEURCRIEREERL (&)
SALE (Continued)

Assets of disposal group classified as held PEAFEHEZHERERNEE
for sale
2009 2008
—EThEF —E2EEN\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Property, plant and equipment M BERZE - 21,421
Investment properties REWE - 906,960
Inventories FE - 28,969
Trade receivables B SR - 212
Deposits, prepayments and other e FANFIEREAM
receivables FEWFRIE - 9,698
Cash and cash equivalents RERBESEEY - 82,152
— 1,049,412
Liabilities of disposal group classified as held PEABELHEZHEARNAE
for sale
2009 2008
—EThE —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Accruals and other payables EstE AR B[ RIE - 13,961
Receipts in advance FEUR IR - 39,470
Secured bank loan BIRIFRITERK - 319,418
Deferred taxation IEEFTIE - 54,763
— 427,612
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31. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL 3. P EABFEHEZHEHNEER

GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR

SALE (Continued)

BEUARERIERERK (&)

Analysis of the results of discontinued ERIREXEE LB
operations
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Turnover =E 3] 3,102 20,826
Cost of sales SHER A (1,652) (7,176)
Gross profit EF 1,450 13,650
Other revenue and other income Huas R E U A 512 1,257
Gain/(loss) arising on change in REYHEZ
fair value in respect of investment AT EEBEEZ
properties Wi, (E518) 2,002 (74,045)
Impairment loss recognised in CREAEEREEE
respect of goodwill - (40,382)
Administrative expenses THAX (3,261) (25,177)
Profit/(loss) from discontinued RECRIEREER
operations wA (BR) 703 (124,697)
Finance costs RS E A (5,678) (25,289)
Loss before taxation from RECKRIEEEEK
discontinued operations BRELAIE 1B (4,975) (149,986)
Income tax (expense)/credit FIEH (FAx) /& (601) 22,214
Loss for the year from discontinued REEBKILEKESE 2
operations REEEIE (5,576) (127,772)
Loss attributable to the owners RABEBAELEE
of the Company (5,576) (127,772)
Analysis of the cash flows from discontinued DRIEREXEBCRAESREDIN
operations
2009 2008
—ETAF —EEN\F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Operating cash flows KERERE 44,252 160,660
Investing cash flows RERERE (52,668) (63,073)
Financing cash flows MERERE (22,301) (53,891)
(30,717) 43,696
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32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. R

Movements in the share capital of the Company RARERZBRAZENT :
during the year were as follows:

Number of shares Share capital
RG#E BA
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZEENE 3 J)t:2 ZBENE “EERNE
’000 000 HK$’000 HK$°000
& T FAT FET
Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each (2008: BRAEET (CEENE:
HK$0.01 each) SRAE.01ET) ZEBR
Authorised: RE:
At 1 January i Rl 2,000,000 6,000,000 20,000 600,000
Capital reorganisation JrENEER |
— share consolidation — RAEH (1,800,000) (5,400,000) - -
(notes a(i) and h(i)) (HZa()Rh()
— capital reduction — BRANHIE - = (18,000) (594,000)
(notes a(ii) and h(ii)) (fizta(i)&h(i)
Increase in authorised share capital (note b) EMEERK (f:20) - 1,400,000 - 14,000
At 31 December R+ZB=1-H 200,000 2,000,000 2,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAE:
At 1 January R—B—H 195,187 1,951,860 1,952 195,186
Exercise of share options (note c) TfEmRE (1) - 10 - 1
Issuance of new shares (note d) BITHRG Wita) 39,000 - 390 -
Issuance of new shares (note e) BITHRG (Hite) 200,000 = 2,000 =
Issuance of new shares (note f) BITHRG (422 300,000 - 3,000 -
Issuance of new shares (note g) BITHRG (HiZg) 367,093 = 3,671 -
Capital reorganisation ENEEF |
— share consolidation — RAEH (991,152) (1,756,683) - -
(notes a(i) and h(i)) (HiZa()Rh()
— capital reduction — BRANHIE - - (9,912) (193,235)
(notes a(ii) and h(ii)) (fizta(i)&h(i)
Issuance of new shares (note i) BITHIRG (Hti) 22,000 - 220 -
Issuance of new shares (note j) BTHRG W) 56,000 - 560 -
At 31 December R+=A=1+-H 188,128 195,187 1,881 1,952
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 30 April 2008, the shareholders approved the
following changes to the capital of the Company:

(i) the share consolidation on the basis of every
ten issued and unissued ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the
Company into one ordinary share of HK$1.00
each in the share capital of the Company;

(i) immediate after completion of the share
consolidation in (i) above, the reduction of
the nominal value of all issued and unissued
ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each in the share
capital of the Company from HK$1.00 each to
HK$0.01 each; and

(iii) the cancellation of the entire amount of
HK$813,058,000 standing to the credit of
the share premium account of the Company
at 31 December 2007 by transferring such
credit amount to the contributed surplus
account of the Company and the application
of HK$518,374,000 in the contributed surplus
account to set off against the accumulated
losses of the Company of HK$518,374,000 at
31 December 2006 entirely.

The capital reorganisation became effective on 2
May 2008.

On 19 December 2008, the shareholders approved
the increase in the authorised share capital of
the Company from HK$6,000,000, divided into
600,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each, to
HK$20,000,000, divided into 2,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each, by the creation of an
additional 1,400,000,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each.

On 8 April 2008, the Company allotted and issued
10,009 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
pursuant to the exercise of share options granted to
an employee of the Group. The exercise price was
HK$0.1146 per share.

On 9 January 2009, 39,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued
at a price of HK$0.102 per share by way of top-up
subscription of new shares under general mandate.
The net proceeds of approximately HK$3,820,000
were intended to be used for reducing the Group’s
bank borrowings.
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(c)

(d)

32. RA(#&)

REZZNFEA=+H  REAEAT
RRBRAZE :

(i) ROEH BEZXRFIRATE
TREREECIOETZERTR
RETRODEHE - READARAE
HEREE.0087TZRH

(i) BHELAHGzZROEHTEHE &
AATRRAPEREE1.008TZ
FIEERTRARTRO 2EER
FR1.00/8 TH R ZEEKR0.018
7T R

(iiiy HEARBAR-ZEZLE+-A
St-HZBRREEREDER
£ %8813,058,00058 T+ A X A
GZERSEERZEAATAZER
BRE TEABEHABRBRERZ
518,374,000/ T A =2 EHE A D
AR=ZZEERF+=ZA=+—-HZ
R3HE518518,374,00058 7T °

RABANR-—ZENFER=BEN

RZZBZENFE+ZA+HAE BRRALESE
i@ # 3% 1,400,000,000 & &= IR M £0.01
BRL2HBRM BERADBAZEERANEH
6,000,000 7 Jt (42 % 600,000,000 A% = B%
H{E0.01%8 T 2 %) & N Z 20,000,000
# 7t(% £2,000,000,000% & K @ &
0.01BTZRMB) °

REZEZNFETMANE  AAFEFEFAR
SEEECEREETEMEERET
10,009 % T IR E{E0.108 T Z F IR °
TEEASRO0.11468 T °

R=ZZEZAF—ANEB AQARE—
BRREFSBEE#FTAB2AN  BER
0.102 8 Jt 2 fE 4% Bi 2% & 3 17 39,000,000
BREREEO.01 BT 2 HTE - FTBR
T8 7F 5649 3,820,000 /8 T AER D A&
EZRITEE -
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(e)

(h)

On 11 February 2009, 200,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued
at a price of HK$0.102 per share by way of placing
of new shares under specific mandate. The net
proceeds of approximately HK$19,870,000 were
intended to be used for reducing the Group’s bank
borrowings.

On 2 March 2009, 300,000,000 new ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued at a price
of HK$0.091 per share by way of placing of new
shares under specific mandate. The net proceeds of
approximately HK$26,850,000 were intended to be
used for reducing the Group’s bank borrowings.

On 30 March 2009, 367,093,498 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued
at a subscription price of HK$0.10 per share by
way of open offer to the qualifying shareholders on
the basis of one new share for every two existing
shares held on 6 March 2009. The net proceeds of
approximately HK$34,339,000 were intended to be
used for financing possible diversified investments
and general working capital of the Group.

On 22 April 2009, the shareholders approved the
following changes to the capital of the Company:

(i) share consolidation: that every ten issued and
existing ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in
the issued share capital of the Company be
consolidated into one issued ordinary share
of HK$0.10 (the “Consolidated Shares”) in the
issued share capital of the Company; and

(ii)  capital reduction - that (i) the total number
of the Consolidated Shares in the issued
share capital of the Company following the
share consolidation be rounded down to a
whole a number by cancelling the fractional
share arising from the share consolidation;
(i) the nominal value of each of the issued
Consolidated Shares of HK$0.10 be reduced
to HK$0.01 by cancelling the paid-up capital
to the extent of HK$0.09 on each issued
Consolidated Share; and (iii) the amount
of credit arising from capital reduction be
credited to the contributed surplus account of
the Company .

The capital reorganisation became effective on 23
April 2009.

32. RA(#&)

BiaE : (4)

(e)

(9)

RZZEZEAE-A+—B ' AQFE
BREBIRERSETRDZ2H X
BRERO0102B T 2 B E B K ZIT
200,000,000 B SR EE0.01 B T 2 &
B - FTBRIEFEEA 19,870,000 T
BAERDAREBZBTES -

RZEBEZERFEF=ZAZH AQ2AE
BREBIRERETBROZ2H X
EER0.091E T 2 EH KRBT
300,000,000 iz Z IR EE0.01 BT 25 &
R o FT 15 7K IE 7 649 26,850,000 78 7T
BAFEROAEEZRITEE -

R-ZZZBNE=ZR=+H  AQFEBL
R-ZEZNF=A~BESHEEMREER
HER -BRITRHAZEEQNESEERRA
HEERM2ZARN > BERKR010BTZ
B E 3 3517 367,093,498 IR & R E &
0.O1BTZHEZER - IEREBFHEY
34,339,000 8 ok A{ER T AREE 2 AT 58
ZHLRERTEBZ—REEES o

REZZNFRA=-+=H  RERHEY
RABBRAEHUT 28 (TRAEA] :

iy BHOEH: BETRALTE BT
RAHSREMEOCOBITZE LT
BERMBANAE—KBREAQATRAH
EECI0EBTZERTEERIAE
R R

(iiy  PRAHEIE — () EBFHEBRDEHE
E2ERRMG 0 BROSHEERA
AERTRAFZEHROEBET
FEEY ; () ERBBHMERATLH
BREHTEHEM0.098 T ¥
SREE010B T ZERTEHR
2 EEEl R Z0.018 T 5 R (i) #§
BRAERELE ZERSEBRALA
A ERBRIR -

RABAR-ZZBNFNA=-+=H%E
2 e
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

On 10 September 2009, 22,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued
at a price of HK$0.42 per share by way of top-up
subscription of new shares under general mandate.
The net proceeds of approximately HK$9,030,000
were intended to be used for general working
capital of the Group.

On 29 December 2009, 56,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued
to Thought Diamond International Limited at a
price of HK$0.50 per share. The net proceeds of
approximately HK$27,700,000 were intended to be
used for possible diversified investments of the

32. A& (&)

BiaE : (4)

()

RZZEZNFHA+H  RE—BRFEU
AERFRE2ANEER042BTZ
18 #& Bt 3% % 2% 17 22,000,000 R & KR @ &
0.O1TBTZHEZER - IEREBFEY
9,030,000 B TR AEAEE 2 —REE
BE o

R=ZZFZENRF+=B=+NH  Thought
Diamond International Limited &
FROS0B T 2 ERER B R ZIT
56,000,000 % & A% E {5 0.01 8 T 2 ¥ &
B - P75 R IEF £ 27,700,000 % 7T
RAETEEZUES TRE -

Group.
33. RESERVES 33. &
The Company b NN
Share-based  Convertible
Share  Contributed payment notes Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
NRAFR MaR
B BaRs e RERE ZitFE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEn FEn FEr FEn & FEn
(note)
Wi,
At 1 January 2008 R-BENE-A-R 813,058 163,456 28,442 - (742,010 262,946
Capital reorganisation ~ RAZEA
(note 32) (Hit32)
— capital reduction — RAHE = 193,235 = = = 193,235
— share premium — iHRG
cancellation (e (813,058) 813,058 - - - -
— set-off accumulated ~ — EHRETH
losses against BETER
contributed
surplus - (518,374) - - 518,374 -
Share-based payment  LURAFR
expenses IfieE% - - 3,608 - - 3,608
Issuance of convertible ~ E{TEMNTRREE
notes payable - equity  — REHS
component - - - 41,547 - 41,547
Deferred tax recognised BB ELHIE - - - (6,855) - (6,855)
Loss for the year TEERE - - - - (279,498) (279,498)
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33. RESERVES (Continued) 33. f#E#)
The Company (Continued) AT (E

Share-based  Convertible

Share  Contributed payment notes Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
NRAFR R
REE EdEs SL)- | FERE ZitER a3t

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn FEr FEL FiEn FEL FET

(note)
(i)
At 31 December 2008 ~ W=EENE
+ZA=1+-H - 651,375 32,050 34,692 (503,134) 214,983
Capital reorganisation ~ RAZEA
(note 32) (Hs232)
— capital reduction — RAHE = 9,912 = = = 9,912
— set off accumulated  — REH B
losses against ZiEE
contributed
surplus - (9,912) - - 9,912 -
lssuance of new shares ~ E{THRA 114,380 = = = = 114,380
Cancellation of THEMTAR
convertible note 2
payable - - - (17,346) - (17,346)
Share-based payment  LURAFAZA
expenses ZE% - - 3,729 - - 3,729
Loss for the year TEERE - - - - (17,149) (17,149)
At 31 December 2009 R=ZENE
+=A=t+-H 114,380 651,375 35,779 17,346 (510,371) 308,509
Note: Bat -

The contributed surplus account of the Company
represents the difference between the underlying net
assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company
as at the date of the group reorganisation and the
nominal amount of the Company’s share capital issued
as consideration for the acquisition as well as the net
amount transferred from share premium account and
to accumulated losses account pursuant to a special
resolution passed at the special general meeting held on
22 August 2003.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus account of the
Company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus, if:

(i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its

issued share capital and share premium accounts.

BRER-_ZZE=FNA-T-HETZRRESH
AELFRBIZEIRER  AAAZERBRIER
EARABFBEZHBARNEBREAR Y 2
BEEFEEADTESWBNEZ TR
ZEERBERAE  ROBERERZEZHER
BB ER o

BEBRE-NAN-—FRBE(EER]) - AAF
ZEHBBKRAT DI o R HRTHER - A
ARBFEERIRASREHEBHMBERTEL
DK -

() ARARFIRDIRKEBEEEEEIHE
&3

iy ARAEEALZREERZENEEE -
ERITRARROEER A -
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34. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 34. EFtERARHMENKIE
The Group The Company
rEE ARAT]
2009 2008 2009 2008

—2BAE ZEEFN\F —EEAE ZEFN\F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET

Accruals EstE R 6,414 6,571 3,042 1,080
Other payables Hith BRI 3,786 26,385 - -
10,200 32,956 3,042 1,080
The carrying amounts of accruals and other BitERARHEMEMNRE 2 REEEA
payables approximate to their fair values. NEEEE -
35. AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED 35. EfTEIE X FRIA
COMPANY
The Group
rEH
2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
CSEL - 600
The amount due to CSEL is unsecured, non- BN CSELREAEIKT - 2 EREF
interest bearing and has no fixed terms of EBENHE o
repayment.
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36. CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

On 29 August 2008, the Company issued two
convertible notes with a principal amount of
HK$72,000,000 each to Well Will Investment
Limited for settling part of the consideration for
acquiring Rich Daily. Each of the convertible
notes bears interest at a rate of 5% per annum
and carries a right to convert the principal
amount into shares of HK$0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company at an adjusted
conversion price of HK$16.00 per share (subject
to adjustment). The effective interest rate of the
liability component of each of the convertible
notes is 9.75% per annum.

During the year, a convertible note with a
principal amount of HK$72,000,000 was
cancelled for settling the adjustment to the
consideration for acquiring the entire issued
share capital of Rich Daily and a loss on
cancellation of convertible note payable of
HK$18,247,000 was recognised. Details of the
adjustment to the consideration are set out in
note 18 the consolidated financial statements.

The movements of the liability component of
the convertible notes during the year ended 31
December 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

36. AJRIKREE

RZEBEZENFENAZ+AAB  AAF M
Well Will Investment Limited 2% 17/ 17
£ %72,000,0008 T2 ATRRERE
LU & U BB Rich Daily 2 S RKE - 7
BPREBEZEBRENRSEFE » A
BREANUTRECABRLBESRKR16.008
T(AFAR)EASELBEARTR
AAFREMEOC.01 BT ZIRM o AR
ZEZEEENBI ZEBRNEAERNE
9.75[E °

FR o N5 72,000,000 5T 2 7 #5%
FEC T LUSEWEERich Daily
2HEBITRAZREAZESE > M
SHPE{S AR AR =45 18,247,000 8 TE F
UBR - EERERAERSEZ2HFERERN

REMERKRMFE18 ©
THREREBEEEMNINEE-_ZTZTNF

&_??A¢+—H_+ B IEFER
ZHENT

The Group and
the Company

AEEREAT

2009 2008

—EThEF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FE FET

At 1 January K—A—H 105,803 —

Proceeds of issue BATAISRIE - 144,000

Equity component IRFEB D - (41,547)
Liability component at the date of RETHHZEERS

issue 105,803 102,453
Cancellation of a convertible note of 4 72,000,000 % T2

HK$72,000,000 AR B (53,753) -

Imputed interest expense for the year ANFE Z{HEF EBX 8,051 3,350

Interest expense paid and payable B RENMFIERX (5,538) —

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 54,563 105,803
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-—HA=1—HIEFE

37. DEFERRED TAXATION 37. EIEBIA

The followings are the major deferred tax UTATECRIAEENBEEREE

liabilities and assets recognised and movements REBEE :
thereon:
The Group NEH
Revaluation
Accelerated Estimated of  Convertible
tax tax  investment notes Intangible
depreciation losses properties payable assets Total
Jef
MERERE HHARBEE REURER  TRRR BREE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FiEr FHr FEr FEr TEx 7Er
At 1 January 2008 R=ZENE
-A-H 254 (254) 73,502 - - 73,502
Acquisition of a Wi -ENELR
subsidiary (note 39) (Hz£39) - - - - 54,823 54,823
Issuance of convertible ~ ETEMTRREE
notes payable - - - 6,855 - 6,855
Exchange alignment EHAZ - - 3,475 - - 3,475
Credit to consolidated s AGAWER
income statement - - (22,214) - - (22,214)
Transfer to liabilities EREZNEANAN
of disposal group EZHEARIEE
classified as held for (Hrit31)
sale (note 31) - - (54,763) - - (54,763)
At 31 December 2008 ~ R=EFNE+=A
And 1 January 2009 =t-Ak=%%
NE-F-H 254 (254) — 6,855 54,823 61,678
Released on cancellation FHEHEMARKRE
of convertible note ERRR
payable - - - (3,428) - (3,428)
Released on impairment & EERRE
loss recognised in BRER#R
respect of intangible
assets = - - - (14,078) (14,078)
Credit to consolidated St ABAKERK
income statement - - - (415) - (415)
At 31 December 2009 R=ZBNE
t=B=+-8H 254 (254) = 3,012 40,745 43,757
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEFEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

37. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 37. EEBIE (&)
The Company ¥/
Convertible
notes
AR R B
HK$’000
FEr
At 1 January 2008 R-EBNE—F—H —
Issuance of convertible notes payable BITEMSTBRRERE 6,855
At 31 December 2008 and 1 January 2009 R-EBNFE+-_HBA=+—HEK
—EEAF-A—H 6,855
Release on cancellation of convertible note LS PEAT AR IR R R AR IR
payable (3,428)
Credit to income statement T AR (415)
At 31 December 2009 R-BEAFE+=A=+—H 3,012
The Group rEH
At 31 December 2009, the Group had unused R-ZBEAF+TZA=Z+—H ' KE
estimated tax losses of approximately B #2,345,0008 T(ZZENF:
HK$63,179,000 (2008: HK$205,791,000) 205,791,000 T ) 2 K & A fk 5 &
available for offsetting against future taxable BEBUMHEKEBRERBER -
profits. A deferred tax asset of approximately 254,000 (= & & /\ F : 254,000
HK$254,000 (2008: HK$254,000) has been BTIZCELEHBEEECEER - #
recognised. No deferred tax asset has been RARBEFEST A& &R - I & F R
recognised in respect of the remaining balance 8 8922,346,0008 T(Z & F N\ F:
of approximately HK$62,925,000 (2008: 37,557,000 8 7T ) RIELEBIBEE °

HK$37,557,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

38. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 38. RMBAR 2=

The Company

KATF
2009 2008
—EThEF —EEN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost FELEHERMD » IBEA 83,553 83,553
Impairment loss recognised BB EEE (83,553) (83,553)
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U /B A BRI FRIE 1,195,287 1,339,161
Impairment loss recognised R REEE (980,196) (972,856)
215,091 366,305

The carrying amounts of the interests in
subsidiaries are reduced to their recoverable
amounts which are determined by reference to
the estimation of future cash flows expected to
be generated from the respective subsidiaries.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
repayment terms. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the carrying amounts of the
amounts due from subsidiaries at 31 December
2009 and 2008 approximate to their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

38. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31

December 2009 are set out as follows:

38. RMBE QA 2R (&)

RKABAZMBRAAR-ZEZAF+ZA
=t—RZHEBHEINOT :

Particulars
Country/ of issued
place of share capital/
incorporation registered capital
Name of subsidiary MR L BRITRE Principal activities
MEARER Bx it HMERFE TEXH
Best Season Holdings Corp. British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares Dormant
KBELHEES of US$1 each gme
100 R BREE1ET
ZEBR

Bluelagoon Investment
Holdings Limited

Dragon Leader Limited

Gainful Fortune Limited

Legend Rich Limited

Ocean Shores Licensing
Limited

British Virgin Islands
REBREUEHE

British Virgin Islands
REBRUEHE

British Virgin Islands
RBRUEHE

British Virgin Islands
RBRUEE

British Virgin Islands
REBRUEHE

1 ordinary share of
US$1
TREE1ZT2EBR

1 ordinary share of
US$1
1TREE1IEZEIZEER

160,000,100 ordinary

shares of HK$1 each

160,000,100 RERE
B1BT2EBR

1 ordinary share
of US$1
1REEI1EZEIZEER

10,000 ordinary shares

of US$1 each
10,000 REREE

1XTZEBR

Investment holding, sales
of financial assets,
distribution of films and
sub-licensing of film
rights in the PRC

REZR  HESREE
RPBERTEY
BREZRITE

Investment holding

REEZER

Holding of film rights
BREFRTE

Investment holding
REEZER

Holding of film rights
outside Hong Kong
REBUMEBRHEEY

BITRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

38. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

38. RMBE QA 2R (&)

Particulars
Country/ of issued
place of share capital/
incorporation registered capital
Name of subsidiary AR L BRITRA Principal activities
L) PNCIEE xR/t HMERFE TEXH
Rich Joy Investments Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares Dormant
ERREERRA BB of HK$1 each gmeEx
BREREE1BTZ
EBR

Riche Advertising Limited

Riche (BVI) Limited

Riche Distribution Limited

EXBITARDT

Riche Multi-Media Limited

EXZHREARAT

Riche Pictures Limited
EXYEERAT

British Virgin Islands
REBRUEE

British Virgin Islands
RBRUEE

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands
RBRUEHE
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1 ordinary share
of US$1
1REEI1IEZEIZEER
1,000 ordinary shares
of US$1 each
1,000 REREE1ET
ERR

1,000,000 ordinary

shares of HK$1 each

1,000,000 REREE
1BTZEER

2 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

2REBREE1EBTZ
EBER

1 ordinary share of
US$1
1TREE1XT2EBR

Sales of financial assets

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REBREEZER

Sub-licensing of film
rights in Hong Kong and
sales of financial assets

REBEREZRITER
HETRERE

Distribution of films and
other video features in
the PRC

RAERTEY
Ra5eE

REAS

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REBREER
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

38. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

38. RMBE QA 2R (&)

Particulars

Country/ of issued

place of share capital/

incorporation registered capital
Name of subsidiary AR L BRITRA Principal activities
L) PNCIEE xR/t HMERFE TEXH
Riche Video Limited Hong Kong 10 ordinary shares of Distribution of video
EXBTERAT Ebe HK$100 each products in Hong Kong

Rich Daily Group Limited British Virgin Islands

RBRUES
Stable Income Limited Hong Kong
BRARDA BB
* The non-voting deferred shares, which are not

held by the Group, carry practically no rights to
dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or
vote at any general meeting of Riche Video Limited
nor to participate in any distribution on winding up.

20,000 non-voting REBRTERER
deferred shares of
HK$100 each*
10REBREE100#E T
ZEBER
20,000 R Z R E{E 100
B2 BRERIEL
R -

100 ordinary shares of Provision of management

US$1 each services
100RERAEE1ET RHUHSERY
ZEBR

1,000,000 ordinary Travel business
shares of HK$1 each Mz %%
1,000,000 R B REE
1BTZERBR

* ZEEREREEROERLEEND =
RE -~ R EMEXFEERIARRAKA
E2EE  HEZERSHEELREZ
ER  EERET A EBEMDIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-—HA=1—HIEFE

38.

39.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The Company directly holds the interest in Riche
(BVI) Limited. All other subsidiaries are indirectly
held by the Company.

All of the subsidiaries are wholly owned by the
Company, except Best Season Holdings Corp.
which is 75% owned by the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the reporting period,
or at any time during the reporting period.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 29 August 2008, the Group acquired the
entire issued share capital of Rich Daily at
an initial consideration of HK$504,000,000,
which was satisfied by the Group by paying
HK$360,000,000 in cash and
convertible notes payable in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$144,000,000. The
amount of goodwill arising from the acquisition
was approximately HK$101,965,000.

issuing of

Rich Daily entered into three services
agreements with three gaming promoters in
Macau for the provision of management services
to their concierge departments. The service
fee income is calculated at 0.03% of the rolling

turnover generated by the gaming promoters.
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38.

39.

RSB DB R (&)

AN B E#EFERiche (BVI) Limited 2
g4 o TEHMHEB A RYHAL A
EEE -

FEMBARSEBRARARZERS »
Best Season Holdings Corp. A% E
HBH75% °

EWE A BN 2R RN FEEME
B EEME RER 2 EHES o

W iE — BB A E

R-ZZENFNAZ+HAB > ZFEER
BB Rich Daily 22 EERITRAE 915
X {8 & 504,000,000 T - B4 & HE L
I £ % £+360,000,0008 5T © LA K% 34T
7N & 48 %8 144,000,000 78 T 2 & {1 AT #
BREEXZF EARBEMELEZEENAS
101,965,00078 7T °

Rich DailyBi=FBRMBEEREER D
HEESRREHEERKI L=0RERH
EoRBBRADEKBEEEEMES
B E ¥ 20.03%FE ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 8 M58 R

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEFEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

39. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 39. WiE—REMEBAT &)
(Continued)
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount
before Fair value Fair
combination adjustment value
ORI B
AFREE A ERE ATE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Intangible assets (note) B ERE (M) — 456,857 456,857
Cash and bank balances RERRITEER 1 — 1
Deferred taxation IEIERL TR — (54,823) (54,823)
Net assets acquired Frugig & =R E 1 402,034 402,035
Goodwill = 101,965
504,000
Fair value of purchase UTHAXZABER
consideration settled by: Bz A¥HE:
Cash BHE 360,000
Issuance of convertible BTG ABRREE
notes payable (note) (B1aE) 144,000
504,000
Net cash flows from WiE—EHE AR Z
acquisition of a subsidiary: HEREFE :
Cash paid EffRE (360,000)
Cash and bank balances Frit g IR & R IRTT
acquired E5 3 1
(359,999)
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-—HA=1—HIEFE

39.

40.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
(Continued)

Note:

The fair values of the intangible assets and the
convertible notes payable were determined based on
the valuations performed by Grant Sherman Appraisal
Limited, an independent firm of professional valuers
and not connected with the Group, as at the date of
acquisition.

Details of the acquisition were disclosed in the
Company’s circular dated 30 May 2008.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, Rich Daily
contributed a profit of approximately HK$18,215,000 to
the Group since the date of acquisition. If the acquisition
had been completed on 1 January 2008, turnover
for the year ended 31 December 2008 would have
been HK$18,215,000 and profit for the year ended 31
December 2008 would have been HK$18,215,000. The
pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of turnover and results
of the Group actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2008, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 8 April 2009, the Company disposed of
100% interests in Shinhan-Golden and World
East to Mega Sell at an aggregate consideration
of HK$120,564,000 (at fair value) which
was satisfied by cash of HK$6,847,000, the
convertible note receivable with a fair value of
HK$85,647,000, the promissory note receivable
with a fair value of HK$25,952,000 and
11,769,194 new ordinary shares in CSFGL with a
fair value of HK$2,118,000.
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39.

40.

W B — B 2 B ()

BREEREBNIRREBEZAFEDIRERE
B RS 2 B Y EE AL EMAT R E A ARD
BAIRURES B BT 2 fhEERE °

R ZHERADEAR-EZNFREA=TAT
BZBRPIRE -

REBZ-ZZ/N\F+-A=+—HILFER "
Rich Daily B W8 B HR AR B AR E B FEFIA
18,215,000 T ° B ER -—ZSZENE— A
—HER BBZE=-ZEE/N\F+=-A=+—H
I FE &% 518,2150008 7T MAEE
ZTEENETZA=+-BLEEZHEIBA
18,215,0008 7T - EZERHEM K » B —
ERRAEEERER -_ZSENE-—A—HBEK
ZERTESRERCEERRER  TTREE
BRREETEA o

HEHE A F

RZZFEFAFEFTMANB AAFME
Mega Sell i} & # Shinhan-Golden &
World EastZ2100% & & AR E A
120,564,00058 T (R A FE) > TIAK
TARZA: 8 £6,847,0008 T 2
F{E 585,647,000/ 8 T 2 AT R ESE
A F B £25,952,000 8 JT 2 FE W& 1
ZEUEAFES2,118,0008 T 2
11,769,194 i CSFGL Z FZ @R ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEFEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The net assets of Shinhan-Golden and World

East at the date of disposal were as follows:

40. HEKE QT (&)

AHE B » Shinhan-Golden & World

East 2 HEEWT -

HK$°000
FET
Property, plant and equipment M~ BERFZE 20,130
Investment properties BREYHE 920,564
Inventories FE 28,969
Trade receivables B 5 ERIE 184
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables &% - FATFIE R H bR E 6,660
Cash and cash equivalents HeERBEEEEY 51,434
Amount due to ultimate holding company FEA B 45 12 IR 1\ B SRR (875,536)
Accruals and other payables FEST & A & H A (S 518 (13,469)
Receipts in advance FE WK IE (89,644)
Secured bank loans BEFRITER (302,794)
Deferred taxation IEAER 18 (55,363)
Translation reserve &S (71,703)
Net assets disposed of EHEFEE 169,432
Loss on disposal HEBE (48,868)
Total consideration HWRAME 120,564
Satisfied by: LUTHHEHEA:

Cash e 6,847
Fair value of shares in CSFGL CSFGLE 2 A& 2,118
Fair value of promissory note receivable W AN E 2 AFE 25,952
Fair value of convertible note receivable BRATBRBREE 2 A FE 85,647
120,564

Net cash outflow arising from the disposal: HEEE RS R EEE -
Cash consideration received EWRERE 6,847
Less: Cash and bank balances disposed B EHERSRIRITER (51,434)
(44,587)

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the
above subsidiaries were engaged in investment
holding and had contributed turnover of
HK$3,102,000 and loss of HK$5,576,000 to the

Group.

185,576,000 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

41. COMMITMENTS 41, =i
(a) Lease commitments (a) HERIE
As lessee ERAMA
At the reporting date, the Group had REWMBH » REERBEN T HIH
commitments for future minimum lease REB-HENETTHELEH
payments under non-cancellable operating Nz BEREHESEEOT @

leases in respect of rented premises which
fall due as follows:

The Group
rEH
2009 2008
—BEAF —ETN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiEr
Within one year —FR 1,836 845
In the second to fifth year inclusive K-ERDF (BEER
M) 1,703 473
3,539 1,318
Operating lease payments represented REHSEASER LA EYEEN
rentals payable by the Group for its office 2L - HAFTERFIWMEHETR
premises. Leases are mainly negotiated for #r o mESFIMFEERE -
an average term of two years and rentals
are fixed for an average of two years.
As lessor ERB AN
At the end of the reporting period, the REMER  NEERBEBFFT
Group had contracted with tenants for HARTIHRIB 2 AEEREY
future minimum lease payments under non- EFAHESCEREN 2 ABRER
cancellable operating leases in respect of EWT :

the Group’s investment properties, which
fall due as follows:
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

41. COMMITMENTS (Continued) 41, AEE)
(a) Lease commitments (Continued) (a) FHERIE(E)
The Group
rEH
2009 2008
=EEAE —EIN\RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Within one year —FR - 4,492
(b) Other commitments (b) Hth#&iE
() At the end of the reporting period, () MRERBR AEEHEEC
the Group had capital commitments HERNEE B RRE LR
contracted but not provided for in the B2 EREE
consolidated financial statements:
The Group
rEH
2009 2008
—EENF —EENFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Renovation works in respect of the BEREYFE 2£1&
investment properties Iz - 10,408
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

41.

COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Other commitments (Continued)

(i) At 31 December 2008, the Group had
the following commitments:

(a)

Pursuant to the undertaking letters
issued by the owners of Shanghai
Shengping during the year ended
31 December 2003, they will
transfer their ownership in the
registered capital of Shanghai
Shengping to the Group at a price
to be determined by the valuers in
the PRC when the laws in the PRC
allow foreign investors to own
more than 51% in the registered
capital of Shanghai Shengping.

Pursuant to a facility agreement
dated 11 May 2007 entered into
between Rich Joy Investments
Limited,
subsidiary of the Company, and

a wholly-owned

Best Season Holdings Corp.
(“Best Season”), a 75% owned
subsidiary of the Group, Rich
Joy Investments Limited agreed
to grant Best Season a revolving
facility of up to HK$200,000,000
for the purpose of its business
and working capital requirements.

42. CONTINGENCIES

At 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Group had

neither material contingent assets nor liabilities.
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41, RIE(F)

42.

1]

(b) EAthRiE (&)

(i) R=ZFBENE+=ZA=+-—
B AEEBUTHEMAE :

() BBLBIFXBE
ERAAZEEARE
E-EE=F+=7
=St-ALFEREHE
ZAEEE D
EHNEREERE L
BREXERERA
AEMERBBE1% 2
A BRI E L
EFEEzMEEEL
REBREFXLBRE
RAFEMERZES
RFAEE -

b) BRBEEHLEKRERRA
A(RARI 22 EMB
A 7 ) B Best Season
Holdings Corp. ([ Best
Season] X"EE#EHE
5% 2B AT )R
ZE+ERAB+—HF
YemEHE TR
EERLAFAEREMRE
XBREEETSHERD
Best Seasoni% i & &
# & & % 200,000,000
BT o

HAREE

R-BEAER-FBNE+=H

T—B AEELEEARAREEDN
& o



43.

44.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BANKING FACILITIES

At 31 December 2009, the Group had no secured
bank loan.

At 31 December 2008, the Group’s secured
bank loan of approximately HK$319,418,000 was
secured by:

(a) a legal charge over certain of the Group’s
investment properties with the fair value of
approximately HK$853,835,000;

(b) a legal charge over the Group’s bank
deposits with balance of approximately
HK$23,470,000; and

(c) a corporate guarantee provided by the
Company.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the
“Option Scheme”) was adopted on 21 January
2002 to replace the share option scheme
adopted on 19 January 2000 and will expire on
20 January 2012. The purpose of the Option
Scheme is to enable the board of directors of
the Company to grant share options to selected
eligible persons as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the
Group.

43.

44.

5 8 M5 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

RITRME

R-BEAF+-A=+—0 A%£H
T EAR TR -

RZZBZENF+ZA=1+—-8B ' X&H
ZBEBIRITEFL 319,418,000 T
THEAT Bl & THAF R 4

(a) ZEM A F{E# 853,835,000 T
ZETREMEZEERT ;

(b) AEBIRITEREF4 23,470,000
BITZEERT S R

() BARRTARMFZDTER-

UBRBEAXNZ2RS

RARAFAR-BZE-ZF-R =+ - HEM
BRESTE(ERESS D LEHK
R-ZZEZEF-FTNABRNZBERE
8 YR -F-——F-A=-tHE
wme BRENAEERLANAESET
MEESERATIRHIBREERRE
HAKECEMUEEEMZ2RBRD
# -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Under the Option Scheme, the board of directors
of the Company may grant share options to the
following eligible persons:

(a) any director or proposed director, employee
or proposed employee of, or any individual
for the time being seconded to work for,
any member of the Group or any controlling
shareholder or any company controlled by a
controlling shareholder.

(b) any holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any controlling
shareholder or any company controlled by a
controlling shareholder.

(c) any business or joint venture partner,
contractor, agent or representative of,

(i) any person of entity that provides
research, development or other
technological support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other
services to;

(iiy any supplier, producer or licensor of
films, television programmes, video
features, goods or services to;

(iii) any customer, licensee (including any
sub-licensee) or distributor of films,
television programmes, video features,
goods or services of; or

(iv) any landlord or tenant (including any
subtenant) of, any member of the
Group or any controlling shareholder or
a company controlled by a controlling
shareholder.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all share options to
be granted by the Company under the Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not exceed 10% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the Option Scheme. Such limit may
be refreshed by shareholders in general meeting
from time to time. The maximum number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding share options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Options Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the Company’s shares
in issue from time to time.

The maximum number of shares issued or to be
issued upon exercise of share options granted
under the Option Scheme and any share option
schemes of the Company to any eligible person
in any 12 months period shall not exceed 1%
of the Company’s shares in issue. Any further
grant in excess of such limit must be separately
approved by shareholders with such eligible
person and his associates abstaining from
voting.

Any grant of share options to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company (or any of their associates) must
be approved by independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any grant of share options
to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive directors of the Company (or
any of their associates) in excess of 0.1% of
the Company’s shares in issue and having an
aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000
in any 12 months period, is required to be
approved by shareholders in general meeting in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

4. DUBB AN 2R S (&)

HTEAQXFARBEBRETERAAF
EAEBBERESEETREZFAEE
BREMATRTZRSROEHE - 76
BEAEBRESTIEARQRAE BT
BRHD10% ° ZRBEABEADFRBKRRK
BEETRESH - RITEREBEBRESS
KA AR E A BB IR AE ST BIIR 2 B
BRITEMBGFTEZBRER T T2
TzEERHHE  FTHEBEBARKZA
DA HITRD30% °

AR 1218 B 8B A R 1T R 15 88 I8
StEIRARBEMEMmERETERE
ZEBREMEEASER AL BRITRS
TFTROTZESROHE  THEEBEEXA
AEBRITRD1% - E—SRHBBZR
BAzBREASRRZTHE  M&E
BRATREBBATARERR -

BARBDES TRETHRAEHETER
REBREZEMBBEAL)REER
BREVASHBIFANTESRE - It
Sy RAEM1I2ERBEABARRAREE
BRRIABUFHNTES(IREZEM
BEAL)RHEBARACSHITRG
0.1% T 42 {88 18 5,000,000 & JT = i& I
B ARBLETRAINKRRASE LER
RHLAE ©
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44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 44. URGBEXNZNZR S (&)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

An offer of the grant of share options must be REBREZSILVEAREEZEZZA
accepted within 30 days inclusive of the day (B¥EZA)EFT30 B ABARABAA
on which such offer is made, with a payment A1 BTEMN EREBEBREZT
of HK$1 by the grantee to the Company. The FHHEESET  HEROATSE
exercise period of the share options granted is BERE AR TF o

determinable by the board of directors, but in
any event shall not exceed ten years from the
date of grant.

The exercise price of share options is determined BRETHEELDESSET  HHSEZE
by the board of directors provided that it shall LPETIZERSE :

be at least the highest of:

(a) the closing price of the Company’s shares (a AATRLROEERATIERLE
as stated in the daily quotation sheet BEEB(WEABEXH)RBERF
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date NEZBERERAL 2 W HE
on which a share option is offered to an &
eligible person, which must be a business
day; and

(b) the average closing price of the Company’s (b) RATRORBERL BRI RE
shares as stated in the daily quotation EERZFHBEIMBUTE K=
sheet issued by the Stock Exchange for the BATHEEEHRNAAEERAEA A
five business days immediately preceding R ZEE °

the date on which a share option is offered
to an eligible person, provided that the
exercise price per share shall in no event
be less than the nominal value of the
Company’s share.
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44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4. DUBB AN 2R S (&)

TREEFAXRQABREZEE :

The following table discloses movements of the

Company’s share options during the year:

Exercise Exercise Adjustment
price per price per for the
share before  share after open offer
Category Date the open offer the open offer and Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
of of Exercise and the capital and the capital  Outstanding capital during during during at
participants grant period reorganisation ~reorganisation at 11,2009 reorganisation 2009 2009 2009 31.12.2009
(note a) (note b)
ReEARR% HARRE e 98
kS haE@nAA  CBRORE  RSRBME RRAEA HSREAE HCERAE RCEEARF f2RSt-H
SREEH =k (Wida)  ZSBARE (Widh) -R-REAE ] Rt fi 5 i
Employees 832002  8.3.2002- HKS26.1507  HK$271.19 BT 1,889,326 (1,707.141) - - - 182,185
| 732012
Employees 13120004 13122004 - HKS19.51087  HK$202.33%7 2,741,511 (2477151) - - - 264,360
| 1212.2014
Employees and 2032000 2232007 -  HKSAT30RT  HKS49.05%7 1,503,506 (1,358,526) - - - 144,980
consultants 21.3.2017
EERER
Employees and 3152007 3152007~ HKSTO40ET  HK$T3.01ET 1,868,446 (7:109,703) - - - 758,743
consultants 30.5.2017
EEREE
Employees and 172000 172007 - HKS6.340%  HKS65.75%7 9,798,342 (8,853,502) - - (944,840) -
consultants 10.7.2009
EERER
Employees and 032008 2032008~  HKS1M6ET  HKSH.88%7 12,742,999 (11,514,210 - - - 1,208,789
consultants 19.3.2010
EEREE
Employees and 2872009  28.7.2009 - - HKS064ER - - 11,000,000 - = 11,000,000
consultants 21.7.2010
[EERER
Employeesand ~ 30.10.2009  30.10.2009 - - HK$060%T - - 11,010,000 - - 11,010,000
consultants 29.10.2010
EERREE
36,544130  (3,020,283) 22,010,000 - (944.840) 24,589,057
Exercisable at
the end of
the year
RERTR 24,589,057
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 44. BB EXNXZGF 2R 5 (#)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Notes: Krat -

(a) The exercise period commenced on the date of (@) TEEEARIRHE A IR -
grant.

(b) The exercise prices per share and the number of by BRITFEERBEREHBEEIANZENR=-Z
share options have been adjusted for the open ENF=ZA=THERZARZBERK=
offer completed on 30 March 2009 and the capital EZENFNA -+ =HERZRAEAE
reorganisation that became effective on 23 April o A2 (FRE32) ©

2009 (note 32).

The fair value of the share options granted BE-ZZNFR-ZEENFT=A
during the years ended 31 December 2009 and =t+—HIEFEEREZEREZAFE
2008 were HK$3,729,000 and HK$3,608,000 2 Bl %3,729,000 % jt & 3,608,000 /&
respectively which had been expensed as share- 7T ERFRIMEURMGER X2
based payment expenses during the years. & o
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44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The fair values of the share options granted
on 28 July 2009 and 30 October 2009 were
measured, using a binomial option pricing
model, by Grant Sherman Appraisals Limited,
an independent firm of professional valuers.
The following table lists the inputs to the model

4. DUBB AN 2R S (&)

RSN ELtE=-Z+NBER=ZZEZEAN
F+A=+tHARHZEBREZAFED
REEL BEBEB L EE A EMTPEFT
HERQAARA-ZEXNPEEEERT
B TRITBAFARL ZER :

used:
28 July 2009 30 October 2009
—EENEF —EEAF
tA=+NH +HA=+H
Option life BRESH 1 year 1 year
15 15
Grant date share price = HERR(E HK$0.64 HK$0.60
0.647%& 7T 0.60%8 7T
Exercise price TEE HK$0.64 HK$0.60
0.647%8 7T 0.60/& 7T
Expected volatility (%) TEHA R & (%) 111.18% 111.68%
Expected lives of share options [ % & 78 Hi &£ HA 1 year 1 year
15 15
Dividend yield (%) REZE (%) 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate 12 [ b R = 0.09% 0.14%

The expected lives of share options are based
on the historical data over the past five years
and are not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility
reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may
also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

BREANFHNREEAFZELHY
BefE  F—ERTAUBERZITERE
I o TEHIRK 8 S BRI 520K i 3R R R 2R 8
BolBR TR —ERERER -
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44.

45.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

No other feature of the share options granted
was incorporated into the measurement of fair
value.

At 31 December 2009, the Company had
24,589,057 share options outstanding under the
Option Scheme (2008: 36,544,130), representing
13.07% (2008: 18.72%) of the issued share
capital of the Company.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group
has set up a defined contribution retirement
scheme, the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), for all the eligible
employees of the Group. The Group did not
provide retirement benefits for its employees
prior to set up of the MPF Scheme.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are
required to contribute 5% of their monthly
salaries up to a maximum of HK$1,000 per
employee and they can choose to make
additional contributions. The employer’s monthly
contributions are calculated at 5% of each
employee’s monthly salaries up to a maximum
of HK$1,000 (the “Mandatory Contribution”).
The employees are entitled to 100% of the
employer’s Mandatory Contribution upon their
retirement at the age of 65 years old, death or
total incapacity.
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44.

45.

UBRBEAXN 2R S (#)

BEAGERHBREZSRHETER
FERFEER -

R=ZZBEAE+Z=ZA=+—H &2
7 H 24,589,057 R IE B AR &K
H2ERITEBERECZEZENF:
36,544,13017) » th A AR E HITRAK
13.07% (ZZ=Z/\F : 18.72%) °

RIKBREE

BE-ZZETHFE+-A—-HEB ~5EHA
FEEERREERY —HEREIRIK
stE — Bl LEEE(BEEE
) ARUBBEEFTER  AEEL
BEHREESREMMEMBAKER -

RiERESTE EEHARERF
5% (BRZUUEBEE1,0008TAHR)E
B WAEEBEHENMR - EE
BAZHIRDNREEERFH 5% (BRZ MU
1,000/8 T BR)FTE(TRBIEMRK) o
BEEARSHmBIN - it HTERET
ERENBE 2B EBEE 2RI -
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z _—FEZEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

46. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

46. EABEALRS

BRAGEE R R EM TS rifE
BN REZEZZZNER-ZE
NFE+ZA=+—HLEFER &

(a) Save as disclosed elsewhere in these (@)
consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material

related party transactions during the years
ended 31 December 2009 and 2008:

(i)

During the year, the Group entered into

EEETTIERFEALRS :

(i)

TR AEEECSELETT

the following transactions with CSEL: N5 :
2009 2008
—EThE —ET)N\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
Nature of transaction REME FAET FET
Paid or payable to: 2SR IR ¢
Salaries e 500 (1,260)
Amount due by the Group REBEMNRIE - (600)
Loan advanced by the Group AEBCZEBNER 200,000 =
Subscription of convertible note  REEAIRKRERE 200,000 —
Received or receivable from: 2 WS EUBRTX ¢
Loan repaid to the Group EAREEEEER 200,000 =
Interest income on: UT&EZFEWA :
— loan advanced — BBFER 3,972 =
— convertible note — AR ERE 1,130 —
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46. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

On 28 February 2008, the Group and
CSEL entered into a deed of variation
pursuant to which the parties mutually
agreed to further extend the long-
stop date in the conditional sale and
purchase agreement dated 1 August
2007 from 28 February 2008 to 31
March 2008.

On 31 March 2008, the Group and
CSEL entered into a deed of variation
pursuant to which the parties mutually
agreed to further extend the long-
stop date in the conditional sale and
purchase agreement dated 1 August
2007 from 31 March 2008 to 30 May
2008.

On 29 May 2008, the Group and
CSEL entered into a deed of variation
pursuant to which the parties mutually
agreed to further extend the long-
stop date in the conditional sale and
purchase agreement dated 1 August
2007 from 30 May 2008 to 31 July
2008.

On 31 July 2008, the Group and
CSEL entered into a deed of variation
pursuant to which the parties mutually
agreed to further extend the long-
stop date in the conditional sale and
purchase agreement dated 1 August
2007 from 31 July 2008 to 31 October
2008.
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46. EXBEEALRZ (#)

(a)

(48

(ii)

(iii)

R-ZBENFE-A=+NA -
N B ECSELE] M BT &
B Bl TS EHERER
R-ZZEZELFNA—HF XL
ZERHEEHRREZREHR
H-—ZEENF_A=-+N\RHE
—SERZE-_ZFEZENF=A
=t+—H-

RZBEENF=ZA=+—8 -
ANEBECSELFT M BE R
B Bt STRAEHERER
R-ZZEZELtFNA—HBF XL
ZEHRHEEHR R IR EIR
H-ZEZENEF=ZA=+H#E—
SERE_ZFZENFHEA=T
E| o

R=-ZBENFRBE=+ANA:
A& B ECSELE] M B E] 2
B Bl TS EHERER
R-ZZEZELtFENA—BFIXZ
B EEMREZREHRA
—EEN\FRA=THE—H
ERZEZZZEZENFEtA=1T—
E|o

R=ZBENFLtA=+—-H"
AN & B B CSELR ¥ & 7] 2
BBl TNSTEMEERE
R-ZZBZELFNA-HFTX
ZHERGEEH R 2 RERBIR
H-ZENFLtA=1T—H#
—PEREZZZENFTA
=t—H-
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46. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) (Continued)

(b)

(vi)

(vii)

On 31 October 2008, the Group and
CSEL entered into a deed of variation
pursuant to which the parties mutually
agreed to further extend the long-
stop date in the conditional sale and
purchase agreement dated 1 August
2007 from 31 October 2008 to 31
January 20009.

On 23 December 2008, the Group
entered into a deed of termination
with CSEL to terminate the conditional
sale and purchase agreement dated 1
August 2007.

Compensation for key management

personnel

Remuneration for key management

personnel, including amount paid to the

directors of the Company and certain of

46. EXBEEALRZ (#)

(a)

(b)

(48

(vi)

(vii)

R-ZZBENF+A=+—8"
N B ECSELE] M BT &
BBl THAFEMEBE
BRZEZELENA—RHF X
ZERUHEEHZEZHREMR
H-ZEZN\F+A=+—RH#E
—SPRERE_ZEZNEFE—5
=t+—H-

R-ZBBNE+ZAZ=+=
B ANEBECSELFT M &LE
2 DBRIER-_ZZLFEN
A—RALZBEKRHEEW

=3
iR ©

FTEEEAEHM

TEREBABFN(BREESUH
HBRMFEIIRI2ABESSTA
RAEBRETEREFREEZSE

the highest paid employees, as disclosed )T
in notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated
financial statements, is as follows:
2009 2008
—EThE —EENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries and other allowances ok HAERy 3,412 4,080
Contributions to retirement benefits E{REFIEFT2IHIR
scheme 18 24
Share-based payment expenses DB EXZFzix 3,524 349
6,954 4,453
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47. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2008, the Group pledged
certain of its investment properties with fair
value of HK$853,835,000 and its bank deposits
of approximately HK$23,470,000 which were
held by dt53%35 to secure the secured bank
loan amounted to HK$319,418,000.

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Categories of financial instruments

47. EERKH

R-ZZEENF+ZA=+—HB &K
BEeEAEHLIESHEREATES
853,835,000 B T 2 & FTIREMERY
23,470,000 B T 2 RITFER ° UEARE
HY & 3K 5 4R 17 B8 F0 319,418,000 8 T 2
R o

48. MK EKRERE

(a) EWMITEZEA5

2009 2008
—EThEF —EEN\F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FEx
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including BERREWFIE(E1E
cash and bank balances) HERIBITEER) 479,113 106,505
Available-for-sale financial assets AfHECEREE 172 172
Financial assets at fair value through ZEAFEFABRZRZ
profit or loss EREE 18,316 —
Financial liabilities cRAE
Amortised cost 1§85 B A 65,240 473,215
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ENF+ZA=1F—HAULFE

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety
of financial risks: market risk — foreign
currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk
and cash flow and fair value interest-rate
risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(i)

Market risk — Foreign currency risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong,
the PRC and Macau and is exposed
to foreign currency risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Renminbi. The Group
does not hedge foreign currency
translation risk because translation
gains or losses do not affect the
projected Company’s cash flows or the
Group’s annual results.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in foreign currency exchange
rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Company’s profit or
loss before taxation (due to changes in
the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities).

BEERERE
(b) HBEEEEZE

AEBZEHAZZBYHRER
mERAE — SERKR - FER
B RBESRBERERERD
FEMNERE - RNEBZEERR
BEFEFEENMB S 2B
M BRESRMEHAEESBR
BeBREANZE -

(i) mEmEE— IERER

AEERER - PERRMAK
g WERZHATREBEL
ZERR  FEHEARYSE
Bo-HRERRBYEZER
REZBERESILEBZF
E 5 WAKEIL &L H 5
BEE /2 Bz ©

TREREBERAMBHMEHE
B8 ARARBADERH
BERHENMEER(ARERE
EREELAFEEZH)HES
HEU RS o HRAE -
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 48. A EE (&)

(Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued) (b) BIEREREZEE)
(i) Market risk — Foreign currency risk (i) TEEE — SEEREE)
(Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRE ST (&)
Increase/
(decrease)
Increase/ in profit/
(decrease) (loss)
in Renminbi before
rate taxation
RRBL AT

ARBER &F (F8)
LA (FRR) 80 GR4)

% HK$’000
B FET
2009 —EFTNEF
If Renminbi weakens against ¥ AR¥HEBTEE
Hong Kong Dollar - -
If Renminbi strengthens HAREEEBTHE
against Hong Kong Dollar - -
2008 —EENEF
If Renminbi weakens against HMARBERBTRE
Hong Kong Dollar 5 4,107
If Renminbi strengthens against fi§ A R#5 8 T &
Hong Kong Dollar (5) (4,107)
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT R ERE
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued) (b) BIEREREZEE)
(ii) Credit risk (i) EEREME

The Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties and the financial
guarantees issued by the Group
arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Included in loan to an associate,
amount due from an associate,
promissory note receivable and
convertible note receivable amounting
to HK$155,536,000, HK$5,103,000,
HK$31,853,000 and HK$3,670,000
respectively, as at 31 December 2009
(2008: Nil), which expose the Group
to the concentration of credit risk on
two counterparties. Other than that,
the Group have no other significant

concentration of credit risk.

REBFRAZBHREFHRE
BATEB R A KB P M
ERMSEHRAEE L RMK
BAZESEERRARGS
BMBRRKRMIEEACEIE
BMEE ZIREE °

BEREKEERR  A5H
EEECREEE NEAEE
EfFERE  FEMEREAM
EERF  UBREHEBUT
TBWEEMESE - I &K
SERNZ 2P RS E 5
BRZAKESHE - UBRE
AR W E £ 2R AE R 2 RE
BR -BEMS  AQXFES
ARAEEZFERBREER
AR °

R-ZZBZNFETZA=+—
EI AEEZFERBEER

2 5 & #155,536,000 % T
5,103,0007% T ~ 31,853,000
78 7t ) 3,670,000 78 JT i [6) Bk
ERNFER - BRBE QTR
H  BUOKE RIER B &
BEB(CZZNEF: &)
LAREAZZEERBRET
RREHEFT o RIS - &
SETEABEREERRE
H o
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT R EREE
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued) (b) BIEREREZEE)

(iii) Liquidity risk (i) 7B E 2 /E

The Group manages its liquidity risk
by ensuring it has sufficient liquid
cash balances to meet its payment
obligations as they fall due.

The Group closely monitors its
exposure to liquidity risk by reviewing
the cash position report monthly.
It analyses efficiency of fund
management appropriately on the
drawdown of bank loans and appoint
dedicated personnel to ensure loans
are serviced on a timely and accurate
basis.

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its
non-derivative financial liabilities. The
tables have been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of
the financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The tables include
both interest and principal cash flows.
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 48. MK EKRERE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued) (b) BIEREREZEE)
(iii) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iii) HEEL/EEE(E)
Less than 1to3 3 months 1to5 Over
1 month months  to 1 year years 5 years Total
=R
YR-BR -Z=fEA E-F —-E2If RENE H
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$’000  HK$000  HKS$000  HKS$’000
FiEx FiEx FiEx FiEx FiEx FiEx
2009 ZEENE
Continuing operations JSEZEEHK
Accruals and other T ERR Eftr
payables E5E 10,025 - - - - 10,025
Less than 1t03 3 months 1t05 Over
1 month months  to 1 year years 5 years Total
=faR
PR—BRE —Z=fA E-F -RHE  RELE st
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FEx FiEr FiEr FiEr FiEr FET
2008 —EEN\E
Continuing operations 5 & T &£k
Accruals and other  JESIERREf
payables Ef50E 32,956 - - - - 32,956
Receipts in advance  FAWFIE 477 - - - - 477
Discontinued BRIEEEEHR
operations
Accruals and other  JEIERREM
payables Ef50E 13,961 - - - - 13,961
Receipts in advance  FAWFIE 39,470 - - - - 39,470
Secured bank loan  HEMBTER - 17,526 17,006 284,886 — 319,418
86,864 17,526 17,006 284,886 - 406,282
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZ —EZENF+ A =1+—HIEFE

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT R EREE
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued) (b) BIEREREZEE)

(iv) Cash flows and fair value interest rate

(IV} ﬁﬁ”/j/bs,& Z_\‘—‘—Fﬁﬂg—zﬁlﬁ

risk

The Group’s cash flows interest-rate
risk arises from bank borrowings. The
Group’s fair value interest rate risk
mainly arises from fixed-rate short-term
bank deposits. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should need arises.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below presents
the effects on the Group’s post-tax
profit or loss for the year (as a result of
change in interest expense on floating
rate borrowings). For floating-rate
borrowings, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole
year. The sensitivity to interest rate
used is considered reasonable given
the market forecasts available at the
end of the reporting period and under
the economic environments in which
the Group operates, with all other
variables held constant.
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5 8 M5 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT B B R (4
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk factors (Continued) (b) BIEREREZEE)
(iv) Cash flows and fair value interest rate (iv) B nERAXFEFEERE
risk (Continued) (&
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRE ST (&)
2009 2008
—EThE —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Hong Kong dollars BT
If interest rate was 2% i RIZE EFH 2%
(2008: 2%) higher (ZZENEFE : 2%)

Post-tax profit or loss REERFREZFNER

for the year

- (492)
If interest rate was 2% i FZET B 2%

(2008: 2%) lower ZEEN\F I 2%)KEE

Post-tax profit or loss MBI & EF,EE

for the year - 492

(c) Fair value estimation (c) AFEME

The carrying amounts of the Group’s ZF%%EQEF(@%IE%&I&%
financial assets, including cash and cash LZEY BEZERWFIE - &Ee A
equivalents, trade receivables, deposits, ﬁ,%xlﬁ};zﬁ{ﬂgﬁqﬁz— I8 - [N
prepayments and other receivables, loan AEXR - BWHEDNTFRIE - B
to an associate, amount due from an Tl R = ?FZINAFE#* EERE)R
associate, conversion options embedded cREE(EEETERARHEME
in convertible note receivable and financial NRERENSEEQARRNE) 2R
liabilities, including accruals and other HEREREHRNEE E&Eﬁiﬁ’i\\
payables, and amount due to a related FEMEE PR/ IR-—F2z&
company, approximate to their fair values ﬁﬂﬁ%&ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ&ﬂ%%%ﬁ
due to their short maturities. The face BEDBRAEEQNFEES

values less any credit adjustments for
financial assets and liabilities with a
maturity of less than one year are assumed
to approximate to their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 BZ —EZENF+ A =1+—HIEFE

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT R EREE
(Continued)
(c) Fair value estimation (Continued) (c) DAFEME(E)

The fair values of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes are estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash

HEBEC2EHEBBEATFEDIEAE
EEESmM T ARK 2HSFZRE
BARENREREMAE -

flows at the current market interest rate
available to the Group for similar financial

instruments.
The fair value of financial assets and BB — RIGFE R G REBR
financial liabilities with standard terms MEEBECEMEEREBELAYF

BENDRSZMEHRERERERE

and conditions and traded in active liquid

FH}

markets are determined with reference to
quoted market bid prices and ask prices
respectively.

AEEREEREBEHB LA
TERAATER

The Group uses the following hierarchy for
determining and disclosing the fair value of
financial instruments:

RE AR TAEERTS 2
HREREARIEHRBE) |

Level 1: quoted prices in active markets
for the same instrument (i.e., without
modification or repackaging);
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 48. KA EIE (&)

(Continued)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued) (c) DAFEME(E)
Level 2: quoted prices in active markets for FAl2: BUEESEGEHEEFE
similar assets or liabilities or other valuation mHEZHREREMEERN - M
techniques for which all significant inputs FitskAZmBERBAER DR
are based on observable market data; and RABEMIGZHE . &
Level 3: valuation techniques for which FAI3: FIRAZEMERBAE
any significant input are not based on R EERABEEMSHIE 2 HE
observable market data. By o
The following table shows an analysis of TRETUAFESERIZAFER
financial instruments recorded at fair value BeemMIADN:

by the fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
A Al # 5l2 #% 75l3 et
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET FET FAETT

At 31 December 2009 Z=—ZZhF
+=A=+-8
Conversion options FEW TR EE 2
embedded in convertible A& R iRBIERE
note receivable — — 18,316 18,316
There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 FA - RFIT - 2% 3 2B MmERE o

and 3 in the current year.

(d) Capital risk management (d) EXEBER
The primary objective of the Group’s capital AEBEBEERAZETEEEARE
management is to safeguard the Group’s AEBIFELSEZRD BB
ability to continue as a going concern, EETRREBRIERUZISEER
maintains a strong credit rating and healthy REARREE -

ratios in order to support its business and
enhance shareholders’ value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009 B Z —FZENF+-HA=1—HIEFE

48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

48. M EAREE (&)

(d) Capital risk management (Continued) (d) EXREEEE)

The Group manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it, in light
of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or raise and repay debts.
The Group’s capital management objectives,
policies or processes were unchanged
during the years 2009 and 2008.

The Company monitors capital using
gearing ratio, which is the Group’ total
borrowings over equity attributable to
owners of the Company. The gearing ratios
as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 were as
follows:

AEBERHERNGBIRE LK
BREBELHAR - BESHAR
BEXRGER  ASETHAEDRRIK
BZRE - OBRREREBER - BT
HROABERBEGE -R=F
BENERZZZENE  XEEHZE
FAEBEER BXIBFHEFT

%o

AATERAEBLEREAEBRE
BERUKRQATEE AEERE)
ERER - RZZEZFNFR-ZZF
NE+_B=+—HAzZABkEN
T :

2009 2008

—ETAEF —E2EEN\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Amounts due to related companies EEIEATFIE - 600

Convertible notes payable AR R EE 54,563 105,803

Total borrowings wEE 54,563 106,403
Equity attributable to owners RATEE AL

of the Company B 1,371,044 894,423

Gearing ratio B8Ek= 4.0% 11.9%

194 | China Star Investment Holdings Limited FEIZ&REERAE



49.

50.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to 31 December 2009, Riche (BVI)
Limited entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement with Mr. Man Kong Yui,
an independent third party, relating to the
acquisition of a 4.5% interest in the issued
share capital of Hantec Holdings Investment
Limited at a consideration of HK$18,000,000.
The consideration was satisfied by Rich (BVI)
Limited procuring the Company to allot and
issue 26,420,000 new ordinary shares credit as
fully paid to Mr. Man upon completion. Please
refer to the Company’s announcements dated 31
March and 9 April 2010 for details.

The conditional sale and purchase agreement
was completed on 16 April 2010.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on
26 April 2010.

49.

50.

5 8 M5 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2009 #Z —FEEAF+-H=1+—HIFE

mEBRRER

RZZBEZAFE+=-A=+—H% ' Riche
(BVI) Limited B X BI85 £ £ (B L B =
7 ) 5 LA X 818,000,000 T W BB =
EZEEEEZERBRERRLAASHITRA
ZAS%E L ERGEEHZ - RED
LLRiche (BVI) Limited {242 TR %
FX B 0] 32 %6 4 Bie 3% & 8% 47 26,420,00 iR
FEBERIEAME - FBEBF2ELAQ
SARMAE-E-TFE=FA=1+—-Hz2
fff o

BRHEEHZRER-_ZE-—Z2FNA
TREFRER -

#E R SRR

MBHBRENR=-"F-—FFHOA=F+AH
KRESSHERRETIE -
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Five-Year Financial Summary

AFEMBEARE

For the years ended 31 December
BET-A=t-HLFE
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
ZEFAE  ZBE\F  CERtF  CERNE CEFEE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

FEx FE7 FE7 FE7 FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(85)) (&%) (&%)
Results ES
Turnover e 74,711 19,253 7,722 9,375 17,965
Profit/(loss) from operations && &%)/ (&) 415,731 (107,240) (44,749) (11,484) (29,324)
Finance costs MEEH (8,086) (3,350) - (9,615) (340)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BBiATAF/ (BE) 407,645 (110,590) (44,749) (21,099) (29,664)
Tax credit/(expense) BIEER () 14,493 13,854 = (195) -
Profit/(loss) for the year ~ RBBELLEK
from continuing operation ~ AEEERFI/ (EE) 422,138 (96,736) (44,749) — —
(Loss)/profit for the year ~ RECKLLE
from discontinued EReREE
operation (B18),/%F (5,576)  (127,772) 70,443 - -
Profit/(loss) KEERMN/
for the year (E518) 35 416,562 (224,508) 25,694 (21,294) (29,664)
Dividends BRE - - - - -
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 December
R+=A=1+-AH
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
“EENE “ZEENE ZETtF EEIRX “ZERF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Total assets EEME 1,480,772 1,524,280 1,542,452 922,228 235,227
Total liabilities =Ltk (109,728)  (629,857)  (492,476)  (518,696) (67,617)
Shareholders’ funds BRRES 1,371,044 894,423 1,049,976 403,532 167,610
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